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We contribute to the advancement of
society by providing people with quality
products and employing advanced
technology, with protecting the environment
always in mind. We hire and nurture
professionals and, together, we march
towards our goals in pace with time. Putting
customers first, we provide them with the
best products and services, assuring win-
win results.
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To become the leading and most
reputable and reliable EMS (Electronics
Manufacturing Services) provider in Asia.

RATEMNZMAASERNE FEREREE

B £
Corporate Information
ANSIE-EE

Financial Highlights
MM E
Chairman’s Statement

EFEHRE

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERENwmEOT

Directoriand Senior Management Profiles
BEERAREBABRRE

Corporate Governance Report
EERWE

Report of the Directors

EEgas

Independent Auditor's Report
bRV S TR

Balance Sheets

EEBER

Consolidated Income Statement
e lEE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e EmBAR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BARFEEDE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HEREMNER

Notes to the Financial Statements

B T Sk I 5

Five Year Financial Summary (unaudited)

hEM BB CREET)

15

22

28

42

62

64

66

67

68

69

71

184




Corparate Information
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Financial Highlights

. =7
B 1548 2
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
—F-mE —T-=F
FTi#Ex FHET
OPERATING RESULTS B& %45
For the year ended 31 March #E=F=+—H It FE
Revenue W z5 1,244,828 1,107,488
Gross profit E 7| 174,668 146,889
Operating profit 48 & ¥ A 90,661 81,806
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 78 A )% A A JE 14 i 7 81,487 77,841
Earnings per share — Basic (HK cents) &M% & % —E & (L) 29.93 28.59
Interim dividend, paid, per ordinary share (HK cents) &% & A% 2 1+ fp #AAL B (& 1l) 6.0 7.0
Final dividend, proposed, per ordinary share (HK cents) & f% & 1@ A& 8 R SR 2R & (B 4L) 8.0 7.0
FINANCIAL POSITION Bf # kiR
Asat31 March R=A=+—H
Total equity #Ez 4258 518,529 472,704
Net current assets i 84 & S & 270,262 339,009
Net cash 3 & 558 83,875 141,166
Capital expenditure & 78532 98,543 72,475
Net assets value per share (HK cents) &% & & FE (A1) 190.4 173.6
FINANCIAL RATIOS BA 7%tk &
Current ratio R )kt & 2.00 294
Debt to equity ratio & BRI X 16.5% 21.7%
Inventory turnover days 7 & 8% H & 48 56
Debtors turnover days FEURBR 71 E 8 H £ 44 40
Return on average equity “F 3 i& 7x [2] i &= 16.4% 17.1%
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Financial Highlights

e
REVENUE BY PRODUCT TYPE W& Z % E 38 5l o9 #7
For the year ended 31 March
BEZE=H=+—HLEE
2014 2013 % Change
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—MmE —E—=F EHBEHL
Fi#T T
Electronic products & F /= & 1,216,396 1,075,368 13.11
Moulds and plastic products & & & 8 B & 28,432 32,120 -11.48
Total 425t 1,244,828 1,107,488 12.40
REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT Y& Z iz i [E 4 #hr
For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—ALEE
2014 2013 % Change
HK$’000 HK$'000
—F-mE —ET-=F EHBEOL
F#T THT
The United States of America £ 523,527 458,159 14.27
United Kingdom 22 177,372 194,017 -8.58
Japan A7 276,167 233,575 18.23
PRC (including Hong Kong) B (B35 %5 ) 126,135 119,122 5.89
Australia JE N 61,140 34,090 79.35
Others H A 80,487 68,525 17.46
Total 85t 1,244,828 1,107,488 12.40
REVENUE BY PRODUCT TYPE REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT
W as 1R E B R A W 25 42 30 = 5 AT
Moulds and olasti ks PRC (including
2.3% wEnzEEs 491% f*”j}{a"a 10 13% $danas
J . 6.47% -
o) apan -
97.79% 22.19% B% 14.25%

United
Kingdom
ES

Electronic products
EFEMR

42.05%
The United States
of America

ESE
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Production Facility

DONGGUAN QINGXI PLANTS
RERFERE
;rg_ud}%t; % EDIDDectronic Products Gross I:Ic;g;iE %eé 7 8 3 ’0 00 ?Fq ;[Dp

HUIZHOU PLANTS
=M R B5

Products : Moulds and Plastic Products Gross Floor Area sq.ft.
Em:BANERER SR FHR
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the
annual results of Suga International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (“SUGA” or the “Group”) for
the financial year ended 31 March 2014 (“FY2013/14").

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the latest financial year, consumption sentiment
began to improve in many of the markets that SUGA operates
in, suggesting a more positive outlook held by the general
public towards the global economy. Correspondingly, the
Group saw its business maintain growth momentum, having
continuously improved since the second half of FY2012/13.
For FY2013/14, the Group recorded revenue of HK$1,244.8
million, representing a year-on-year rise of 12.4%
(FY2012/13: HK$1,107.5 million). Gross profit increased by
18.9% from HK$146.9 million to HK$174.7 million, while
gross profit margin rose to 14.0% (FY2012/13: 13.3 %);
reflecting the Group’s successful efforts in raising production
efficiency. Profit attributable to shareholders was HK$81.5
million (FY2012/13: HK$77.8 million). Net profit margin was
6.5% (FY2012/13: 7.0%) and basic earnings per share was
HK29.93 cents (FY2012/13: HK28.59 cents). If the one-
time special gain of HK$8.9 million on the remeasurement of
previously held equity interest in a joint venture was excluded
in the FY2012/13 figure, net profit for the year under review
would be 18.2% higher than that recorded in the preceding
year.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK8.0 cents per share (FY2012/13: HK7.0
cents per share) to shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of Shareholders of the Company on 20 August
2014. Together with an interim dividend of HK6.0 cents per
share already paid, total dividend for the year will amount
to HK14.0 cents per share (FY2012/13: HK14.0 cents per
share). Subject to approval by shareholders at the 2014
Annual General Meeting, the proposed final dividend is to be
paid on or before 27 August 2014. The dividend represents
47.0% of the net profit of the Group for the financial year.

TEmE

AAERREFE MARZEEEEREES
RAR (TARAD) REMBATR (A1 [{FE]
FAEEDBEE-_T—NF=A=1+—H1t
FREE ([ Z2—=/—NFHHRFE N2

XERB

R-ZE—=/—NFHREE  EEZEETED
SHEBENFRTE SRERADHERE
BRI SESLE AEENEKE T ——/
——FHREE TEFRIFERES  WIRFIE
REBE-R_T— =/ —NEHREE A&£H
5215 Uk 251,244,800,00008 7T IR E 1 K12.4%
(ZZ—=—/—=ZF Y HFE :1,107,500,000
¥ 7T) o % FI B1146,900,000% 7T FA18.9% %
174,700,000 7t * EF KB EA=14.0% (=
T—— /—ZFHREE 13.3%) RRANEER
RIRSEERRHEMNE HEUSR R - BRERE
6% ) 481,500,000/ T (=T — =/ —=F8f
B4 FE : 77,800,000/ 7T ) 45 F R 56.5% (=
T—— ) —ZFHREE7.0%) - BFREARE
FAE29BBIWN(ZE—=/ —=FHHREE:

28.5981) - fWBEMB T — = —=F K
FEAANRBEAELERAEEENT=N
— R M4 BRI 258,900,0005 7T + Bl B BE 4 R &Y
MHEEFRHEEHNEES H18.2% °

iz 2

EERZRMN KRB EERAMD8.0EBIL(ZF
——/—ZEBREE : SR70BM) F =
—ENA =+ BRYIARQ B R M
HeE R R ATREA S HRE FRR6.0EBI - 2
FERBAEAERIAOEN (ZE——/—=%
BBERE  SRI4.08) - FRER-ZT—N
FRRFAFASHER BEORAREBR
—ZE-ENA - +EBRZATRA B EE
ANEF AR B AN B AT R E947.0% ©
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Chairman’s Statement
FEWE

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Electronic products represent the Group’s core business
segment, generating HK$1,216.4 million in revenue
(FY2012/13: HK$1,075.4 million) and accounting for
97.7% of SUGA’s total sales in the latest financial year.
The electronic products segment consists of specialized
electronic products such as pet training devices, professional
audio equipment, auto-fare collection systems, interactive
educational products, general consumer electronic products

and other electronic products.

During the year under review, the Group's major products
recorded sales gains when compared with the preceding
year. In particular, pet training devices recorded satisfactory
growth due to increasing demand from the US market.
Capitalizing on our partner’s leading position in the US pet
training devices market, SUGA will benefit from rising pet
ownership and the desire for related training devices. The
Group expects this business to continue providing a stable
stream of income and will remain a key pillar among its

businesses.

In respect of the professional audio equipment business, this
segment achieved moderate sales growth over the previous
financial year, and has continued to perform steadily. At
the same time, the Group’s general consumer electronic
products experienced a rise in sales, largely due to increased
orders from our Japanese customers, as well as a change in
procurement strategy adopted by our clients to streamline
suppliers. SUGA was able to capture more opportunities
owing to its consistency in delivering quality products.

As a result of contributions from our new auto-fare collection
system client and increased orders from an existing client,
the auto-fare collection systems business achieved notable
growth during the review year. We also enjoyed a rise in
orders for our Wifi modules, thus supporting our belief that
still greater demand for Wifi modules can be expected since
they can be integrated into a large number of electronic

devices.

On the interactive educational products front, despite a
decrease in sales compared with FY2012/13, the Group
experienced a healthy recovery, moving on from soft demand
encountered in the latter half of FY2012/13. A newly
launched model has been well-received, and we look forward
to seeing more new markets adopting interactive educational

products to complement their education system.

B OE

ETERABAEENZOERD S HEBEE
1,216,400,0008 T (=B — = /—=F 8 K&
€ :1,075,400,00087C) " (b AEE —F—=
— N F R FENEIEEREI. 7% - ETEM
DR EBEMETERNEDE BN B
ZERE APRERS ERHBER K
HEETERRHEBETES-

REBEFA AEBEXEEMNEERRESF
BRI IN - B Rl E SR BT 5 H B MR JI 2R A Y
BREASCARERERER - BREEKEH
REB YIRS T I5 R BE A 0 L £
B RO ABUA RS E RS IS 0B SRR
b ARERRFZE  AEETEMI IR
B EER BEEER A RIZEWAK
i

EXEERAEFRBNHEERER L —VRFER
MR REMHERTE - RS AEEN—K
HEETEMNHERNMEMER T2/HN
KB BAREPHFIEE N UREP EWRE
REABHHERBE - BREARERE
wiRHEEERMNGED SHRMASULEES
P o

BPRERXAEENOBFABRZERE T2/
RIEBRERGREEFNER MEBAERF
RIRT BB ANFT B o L AN - WifilR 4B 5T EE IR B
e ARWIfEAR AR ZEEBEFEMR
AEBETEHREEERNT B EEIL M-

ERHBERTE HERR _T——/—
FHBRFE TR - LWAEHE T~/ —
FHRFE N HFEERSFL A BERE
BT UE - FE R AR R IS EUE - A&
EHEEZHM S RAEIRBEERIARLSE
PIRFHH B HIE -
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
ACTIVITIES AND GREEN ACHIEVEMENTS

At SUGA, we consider corporate citizenship as an integral
part of our corporate culture. As such, we believe in
championing a number of worthy causes, including
environmental protection. Correspondingly, Suga Electronics
Limited employs a “Supply Chain Sustainability” method
that received recognition at HSBC Living Business Awards
2013, earning a Green Achievement Award. Also, with
regards to community involvement, we have participated in
a variety of activities, including Green Council’s Hong Kong
Green Day and International Coastal Cleanup 2013 Hong
Kong; and Green Power's Green Power Hike 2014. While
the money raised from such activities help fund a number of
worthwhile causes, just as importantly, the events attract staff
participation, resulting in greater camaraderie.

PROSPECTS

As consumer confidence continues to rise in the key markets
of the US and Europe, sentiment from our customers will
likewise improve, thus creating the necessary tailwind for the
sustained growth of the Group’s various businesses. Thus,
in view of such a scenario, and given the sound line-up of
products within our business portfolio, we are cautiously
optimistic about our ability to make further strides forward in
the coming year.

Already, the Company has laid a solid foundation for growth,
with its key businesses continuing to deliver steady streams
of income. Far from complacent, SUGA will leverage its
sound fundamentals to proactively explore new opportunities.
One direction that we will explore is the provision of more
value-added solutions to our customers. In view of the
increasing popularity of Wifi-related devices, the Group has
discussed with its clients the possibility of integrating Wifi
technology in their products. We have received positive
feedback from our partners, and aim to commence new
projects in this area in the coming year.

Chairman’s Statement
FREHWmE

CEHEEEREREEABM

EEALERAREAAECELEEZEN—
ROA AEBEYRZERERGY BIER
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Chairman’s Statement
FEWE

With increasing disposable income and rising pet ownership
in China, such trends have helped boost revenue for players
in the pet-related products market. The Group thus considers
China as one of the key pet markets to tap in the coming
years. Taking into account consumption patterns and the
popularity of online shopping in the country, we believe that
the online pet products market in China holds particularly
rich opportunities. Consequently, we have been operating a
dedicated online retail platform for our pet products since
November 2013. This strategy has proven to be a success
as sales from the online platform has surpassed that of
its physical store. We will nonetheless maintain a physical
store, which will serve as a flagship and to showcase our star
products, as well as provide personalized customer support.
Moreover, the benefits of operating a physical store include
gaining up-to-date knowledge of the retail pet market, which
allows us to quickly react to the latest trends. We will continue
to proactively introduce more quality products from overseas
as well, so as to strengthen our presence in China, which is
set to further grow in affluence.

Our R&D capabilities will also be leveraged as we seek to
explore fresh opportunities that ultimately bolster our product
portfolio. We have a strong track record of successfully
establishing niche product lines, and aims to build on this
record, leading to new revenue stream for the Group in the
future.

As we build on past achievements and seek new
opportunities, we will be able to rely on greater production
strength, as our new factory in Dongguan will be fully
operational in August 2014. Although the relocation process
that will run from May to July will disrupt certain production
schedules during the first half of the coming financial year,
the management believes that with greater capacity available,
the Group will be in a stronger position to achieve long-term
growth. Given that the Group will also complete the disposal
of its Buji Shenzhen property following the relocation process,
additional proceeds will be generated, providing capital for
further business development.

Under the leadership of our experienced management team,
we have confidence in the long-term prospects of SUGA,
and the Group’s capacity to generate better returns for its
shareholders.

BEE P B R A A R RN ARG E
E-BRiESEMHBERM S HNRE - F
th AEBEERTBEAEF —EAXEZEYTS
WEEBMAEENE - ABRBE R
EEYOERBARE RMABEFENEL
EVMERTSAKER BRIt AEEE-F
—ZF T AL RHEEVERRRNB LT
E¥e MEREMLYENEERTBEHER
J& - BUR LR ESEIS RO - @B WLt AR B
QHBREERE FREREEARTERE
an DA RBR BB AMC T PSR IRFS < tesh - &2
ERERREEAEERSENERTETSN
RITAB  BAEBEMERERFBE - HFIR
EoAEZBIMBEER AMBNBARER
HY AR B T 5 R AR R o

AN AEERERASNEE N SRR
Wl AR ERMAS - HMANBLBEMERR
JITEEEES WHEREERIARAAR
5 B 70 R 2 ) #0 3T U 2 SRR

EENBENES TEERNRARERES
Mg BEURNROFHEHN TN
FANAzERE BMABZAEERDEL &
ERAAZELAETHRERERE T MK
FEL¥FETEERBRAMTE HEE
BREEERENRR AEEHEREANUIE
PUEBRBE R - AERBIERIE TR IE H
ERYAENYE  MEK BRI REINK
R ERRREBERNES -

EREEZRRSENEREREET HMY
EENRHASHEREL WREANKERLS
P IR 45 3 A B ¥
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend my appreciation to every member of the management
team for their dedication and contributions, along with the
SUGA workforce for their tireless efforts. | wish to also offer
my gratitude to all of our business partners, customers and
stakeholders for their unequivocal support.

Ng Chi Ho
Chairman

Hong Kong,
25 June 2014

Chairman’s Statement

EFEHE

B

RABRERAEERAPEEEFZKENEIT
BRAKER AREEZRBETIN RSN I
AEEBBH BPMFNENSNIFHRT

g4 ==
o B ©°
=N

E:
RAE

&5
—E—PEXA-+EHH

EEBRREEFRAR | 2013/1453K



' —_—

.

\‘n_

Understanding

Requirements

o RAEAER




B Eﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁv@ﬁﬁ

FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE

During the year, the Group recorded revenue of HK$1,244.8
million, representing an increase of 12.4% as compared with
HK$1,107.5 million in last year. The increase was mainly
due to the improvement of the consumption needs of the
markets that the Group operated since the second half of the
FY2012/13.

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports that are used to make strategic decisions by the
Group senior management. The Group senior management
considers the Group business mainly from product
perspective, and the products of the Group are mainly
divided into electronic products and moulds and plastic
products.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, sales of electronic
products increased by 13.1% to HK$1,216.4 million (2013:
HK$1,075.4 million). The electronic products segment covers
specialized electronic products, general consumer electronic
products and other electronic products.

B %5 1B B

e
RAFER AE BB 2K E
1,244,800,0007% 7t * 8 % F 2 1,107,500,0007%
TCIMNI2A4% - EMEBRHARAEBRE-F
——/—ZHBRFETEFREEZMHEHE
Bk E TR

AEEZEEDMEARERREEABEL
REREMMZMEREEETE - NEESR
ERAET2RERTIEARBERBERE M
AEBZEMABD REFEmMUREA RS

BEMm-

HE-_Z-—NFEF=A=1+—BItFE BFE
MmO E I AN13.1% % 1,216,400,000 7T ( —
T —=%:1,075,400,000/& 7T ) - NEFEDD
AREEMETER —REBSTERNRE
thETFEmR-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIRE R i

As for moulds and plastic products, revenue decreased by
11.5% to HK$28.4 million (2013: HK$32.1 million) and
accounted for 2.3% of the group’s total revenue.

Geographically, for the year ended 31 March 2014, revenue
generated from the top 3 countries, the United States of
America, Japan and United Kingdom, accounted for 78.5%
of the Group’s total sales (2013: 80.0%).

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

FY2013/14 proved the Group's successful effort in improving
production efficiency, gross profit margin rose to 14.0% from
13.3% in last fiscal year. Gross profit for the year increased
18.9% to HK$174.7 million (2013: HK$146.9 million).

Operating profit was HK$90.7 million, compared with
HK$81.8 million last year, an increase of 10.8%. If excluding
the one-time other gain on re-measurement of previously
held equity interest in a joint venture in last year, the increase
would have been 24.4%. The increase in operating profit was
contributed by the increase in sales and gross profit margin.
Distribution and selling expenses remained at similar level
of last year. General and administration expenses increased
7.0% mainly attributable to the increase in depreciation
expenses, stamp duties for properties and staff costs and
benefits.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group has achieved
a net finance income of HK$1.7 million (2013: HK$1.9
million). The finance income was arising from income
received from bonds investments and short-term deposits.

As a result of the aforementioned factors, profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company increased to HK$81.5 million
from HK$77.8 million last year, representing an increase of
4.7%.

BALBBERAE WHERPILLE%RE
28,400,000/ 7T ( =% — = £ : 32,100,000/%&
TT) G ANE BB ZE2.3% o

FEmns HE_T-—NF=ZA=+—HLF
R = Kl%( >R AR BAKREER)
ZWE A EERHEERE2785% (ZE—=
F:80.0%) °

KRB A AT A

—E-= /M REEERRTALEERRES
EERRIE 2K EFRE LEAMREE
Z133%ERE14.0% - EREMERIZINE
174,700,000/ 7T ( —ZZ&— =4 : 146,900,000/
JT) e

4% % 5% N /90,700,000 7T - 8 == F [ EP
81,800,000 L1 K10.8% M B IEEHTE
ERREF—HEECERBCRAERSME
A7 —IRIEEME - APE R A24.4% o 88 &
FIEINTIRREE REF RGN 58 &
HEBRBFEAFTFORLOKFE - —REITHE
FIEmM7.0% FTEHRINER S - WEEHTE
T & B TR & @ FIJ 38 pn AT B

E—E-NFE=A=1+— amir ztxﬁlﬁ*
BREVE W A F 581,700,000 7T (— =
1900000,.175)oﬂéﬁﬂ&)\ﬁxaﬁfﬁxé&

RHFE AT ELZ WA o

ERNEREARE ARAREFE ARG ENHE
277,800,000/ 7L )1 %81,500,0008 7T * 14
1BEL7% ©
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group has current assets of
HK$540.8 million and current liabilities of HK$270.6 million.
The current ratio was 2.00 (31 March 2013: 2.94).

Bank borrowings were HK$85.5 million as at 31 March 2014
(31 March 2013: HK$102.5 million). The decrease in total
bank borrowings was mainly due to the repayments of long-
term bank loans during the year. Gearing ratio (calculated
by dividing total bank borrowings by total equity) was 16.5%
(31 March 2013: 21.7%). The Group maintained a net cash
balance of HK$83.9 million as at the balance sheet date (31
March 2013: HK$141.2 million).

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had aggregate banking
facilities of approximately HK$587.5 million (31 March 2013:
HK$437.7 million) from its principal bankers for overdrafts,
loans and trade financing, with unused facilities of HK$474.4
million (31 March 2013: HK$312.6 million).

The Group generally finances its operations by internally
generated resources and banking facilities provided by its
principal bankers in Hong Kong. Banking facilities used
by the Group include revolving loans, trust receipt loans,
overdrafts, leasing and term loans, which are primarily on
floating interest rates basis.

RELOCATION OF MANUFACTURING
PLANTS

The construction works of our new manufacturing plants
in Dongguan has been completed in the second quarter of
2014 and our existing Xi Xiang and Buji plants are to be
relocated to these new manufacturing plants in Dongguan
by phases from May to July 2014. The total Gross Floor Area
“GFA") of the new manufacturing plants is about 782,784
sq. ft. which is larger than the total GFA of Buji and Xi Xiang
plants by 22%. The relocation process will unavoidably
disrupt the production schedule during the relocation period
and incur relocation cost. The Company has already taken
measures to minimize the disruption.
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DISPOSAL OF UNIVERSAL GAIN

On 19 December 2012, Suga International Limited (the
“Vendor”), and Mr. Wong Chun Leung (the “Purchaser”)
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the
“Agreement”) pursuant to which the Purchaser conditionally
agreed to purchase, and the Vendor conditionally agreed
to sell, the entire issued capital of Universal Gain Assets
Limited (“Universal Gain”) for a cash consideration of
RMB138,000,000 (the “Consideration”). Universal Gain
holds 100% of the entire issued share capital of Typhoon
International Limited (“Typhoon International”) which owns
two factory blocks, three staff quarters, one electricity room
and one canteen with a total gross floor area of 48,300
square meters erected on Li Lang, Buji, Shenzhen City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC (the “Buji Property”). The
Vendor had received from the Purchaser RMB13,800,000,
being 10% of the Consideration, within five days from the
date of the Agreement. The balance of the Consideration shall
be paid by the Purchaser to the Vendor after the delivery
of the Buji Property by the Vendor to the Purchaser. The
Group expects the transaction will be completed in second
half of FY2014/15 (the “Completion”). Upon Completion,
the Group expects to recognize an unaudited accounting
gain of approximately HK$147.5 million, being the difference
between the Consideration of RMB138,000,000 and the
unaudited consolidated net asset value of Universal Gain as
at the date of Completion. The actual gain or loss as a result
of the disposal of Universal Gain to be recorded by the Group
is subject to audit and will be determined as at the date of
Completion.

tH € UNIVERSAL GAIN
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group’s total capital expenditures for the year under
review were HK$98.5 million. The capital expenditures
were mainly for the construction of new factory buildings
amounting to HK$88.1 million. The remaining balance of
the capital expenditures was mainly for the additions of
machineries and equipment for PRC production plants.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s transaction and monetary assets are principally
dominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and United
States dollars. The Group has not experienced any difficulties
or effects on its operations or liquidity as a result of the
fluctuations in currency exchange rates during the year
ended 31 March 2014.

During the year, the Group had entered into several foreign
exchange contracts to manage the currency translation
risk of Renminbi against United States dollars. All these
foreign exchange contracts were for managing purpose and
it is the policy of the Group not to enter into any derivative
contracts purely for speculative activities. The net realized
and unrealized loss on derivative instruments for the year was
HK$2.2 million.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2014, the Group pledged its office premise
located at 22nd floor, tower B, Billion Centre, Kowloon
Bay together with 4 car parking spaces to secure a
bank mortgage loan of HK$18.0 million for financing the
acquisition of the office premise and car parking spaces.
Other than the said mortgage loan, the Group did not pledge
any of its assets (31 March 2013: HK$20.8 million) as
securities for the banking facilities granted to the Group.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had a capital commitment
of HK$75.1 million (31 march 2013: HK$92.5 million) for the
construction of new manufacturing plants in Dongguan.

On 6 December 2012 Suga Technology (Dongguan) Co.,
Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a construction contract with Guangdong Hongda
Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. (the “Contractor”), under
which the Contractor has agreed to construct two factory
buildings and three dormitories with gross construction
floor area of approximately 72,723 square metres on the
Dongguan Land for Suga Technology (Dongguan) Co., Ltd.
for RMB78.2 million. As at 31 March 2014, the Group had
a capital commitment of HK$30.0 million for the above
construction contract (31 March 2013: HK$92.5 million).
During the year, the Group also entered into various
renovation contracts with the Contractor, under which the
Contractor has agreed to carry out the installation of power
distribution system, air conditioning system, low voltage
electrical system and other renovation work for the factory at
the contract price of RMB43.5 million. As at 31 March 2014,
the Group had a capital commitment of HK$38.1 for the

above renovation contracts.

Corporate guarantees given to banks to secure the borrowings
granted to subsidiaries as at 31 March 2014 amounted to
HK$113.1 million (31 March 2013: HK$125.1 million) and
the Group did not have any significant contingent liability.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2014 the Group has approximately 2,091
employees, of which 51 were based in Hong Kong and
Macao while the rest were mainly in Mainland China.
Remuneration policy was reviewed regularly, making
reference to current legislation, market condition and both
the individual and company performance. In addition to
salaries and other usual benefits like annual leave, medical
insurance and various mandatory pension schemes, the
Group also provides educational sponsorship subsidies,
discretionary performance bonus and share options. A new
share option scheme was adopted on 6 August 2012 which is
valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the adoption
date, detailed of which are specified in the Section “Share

Option Scheme” on page 46 of this annual report.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. NG Chi Ho, aged 64, is the founder, chairman
and managing director and a member of the corporate
governance committee of the Group. He is responsible for
the formulation of corporate strategy, strategic planning
and development, and overall management of the Group.
Dr. Ng has over 37 years of management experience in the
electronics industry and had been a lecturer in electronic
engineering at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University for 4
years. Dr. Ng holds a bachelor degree in science from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong, a master of philosophy
degree in computer engineering from the University of Hong
Kong, and an honorary doctor of engineering degree from
Lincoln University, USA. Dr. Ng is a chartered engineer,
a fellow of the Institution of Engineering and Technology,
UK, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and
an honorary fellow of the Canadian Chartered Institute of
Business Administration. In addition, Dr. Ng is a general
committee member of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries, an advisor of Technology Development Committee
of Federation of Hong Kong Industries, chairman of Hong
Kong Electronics Industries Council, honorary vice chairman
of Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association. Dr. Ng is an
advisory professor in the School of Electronic and Information
Engineering of Beijing JiaoTong University. He is also a
member of the advisory committee on Electronic Engineering
of the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. MA Fung On, aged 56, is the deputy chairman and
a member of the corporate governance committee of the
Group. Mr. MA is responsible for the formulation of the
Group’s overall strategic planning and policies, as well as
overseeing the personnel, administration and logistics of the
Group. Mr. MA has worked with the Group for more than 21
years and has over 32 years of experience in the electronics
industry. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a higher diploma in electronic engineering.
Mr. MA is the Electronics and Telecommunications Training
Board Member, the Advisory Committee Member on Pro-Act
Training and Development Centre (Electronics) Courses of
Vocational Training Council and member of Working Party on
Manpower Survey, Electronics & Telecommunication Training
Board.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LEE Kam Hung, aged 55, is a non-executive director of
the Group. He holds a master degree in engineering business
management from the University of Warwick in the UK. Mr.
LEE is now the founder, chairman and technical director of
Kolinker Group of companies since its inception in 1983. In
addition, Mr. LEE is the fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, the Hong Kong Affairs Committee
Advisor of Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council, Vice
president of Youth Council, member of Design Smart Initiative
Assessment Panel, executive committee member of the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries and Evaluation Panel
member for the selection of Technology Transfer Offices
(TTOs)/Projects for the Soft-landing Programme (organizing
by the Hong Kong Science & Technology Parks Corporation).
He is also an honorary life director of Poly U Development
Foundation of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Professor WONG Sook Leung, Joshua, aged 75, is an
independent non-executive director of the Group. He is
also the chairman of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Group. Prof.
WONG is presently the Professor Emeritus of the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He has over 34 years of working
experience with tertiary educational institutions including
28 years with the Hong Kong Polytechnic University of
which 6 years as the vice president, 2 years as the senior
consultant, 10 years as chair professor in electronic and
information engineering department and 16 years as the
head of electronic engineering department. Prior to joining
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, he was an associate
professor of California State University at Los Angeles, US
from 1968 to 1974. In addition, he was the president of the
Hong Kong Association for the Advancement of Science and
Technology in 1988/89. Prof. WONG is currently president
of the Hong Kong Semiconductor Industries Council. Prof.
WONG obtained his bachelor of engineering degree from
the University of Hong Kong and his doctor of philosophy
degree from Leeds University, UK. He is also a chartered
engineer, a fellow member of the Institution of Engineering
and Technology, UK and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers.
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Mr. LEUNG Yu Ming, Steven, aged 55, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Group and a member of
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Group. Mr. LEUNG holds a master degree
in accounting from Charles Sturt University in Australia
and a bachelor degree in social science from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. LEUNG is an associate member
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, a practising certified accountant of CPA Australia and
a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong
respectively. Mr. LEUNG is also a practising certified public
accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. LEUNG previously worked in
Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited as an assistant
vice president in the International Finance and Corporate
Finance Department. He commenced public practice in
auditing and taxation since 1990. He is now the senior
partner of a certified public accountants firm. Mr. LEUNG
has over 29 years of experience in assurance, accounting,
taxation, financial management and corporate finance.
Mr. LEUNG is also an independent non-executive director of
C C Land Holdings Limited, The Cross Harbour (Holdings)
Limited, Y.T. Realty Group Limited and Yugang International
Limited, all of which are companies listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHAN Kit Wang, aged 61, is an independent non-
executive director of the Group and a member of audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Group. Mr. CHAN graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1977 with a higher
diploma in accountancy. Mr. CHAN is a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. He is now a senior partner of a certified
public accountants firm. Mr. CHAN has over 37 years of
working experience in accounting, auditing and taxation.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. NG Man Cheuk, Alfred, aged 33, is the assistant to
managing director of the Group. He is responsible for
exploring new business opportunities and overseeing
Research and Development (R&D) of the Group. Dr. NG
holds Bachelor of Engineering (BEng) degree in Computing
from Imperial College London, Master of Science (S.M.) and
Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D) degrees in Electrical Engineering
and Computer Science from Massachusetts Institute
of Technology (MIT). His research focuses on modular
hardware design methodologies that can greatly reduce
hardware development time. During his time at MIT, he had
collaborated with IBM, Nokia and Qualcomm in various
research projects. Prior to joining the Group, Dr. NG worked
in a research group at Qualcomm in the United States for 3
years. He is the elder son of Dr. NG Chi Ho, the Chairman
and Managing Director of the Group.

Mr. LEE Yiu Cheung, Alex, aged 56, is the chief financial
officer of the Group. Mr. LEE is responsible for overseeing
the corporate and financial matters of the Group. Mr. Lee is
a practising certified public accountant in Hong Kong. He
is also an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. LEE
joined the Group in early 2005 and has over 34 years of
experience in corporate finance, accounting and auditing.
Before joining the Group, he worked for a blue chip listed
company in Hong Kong for over 18 years in a senior
executive position. Mr. LEE graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a higher diploma in accountancy.
He is the brother-in-law of Dr. Ng Chi Ho, the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Group.

Ms. WONG Sin, Kathy, aged 44, is the general manager
of electronic manufacturing service (“EMS”) division of the
Group in Xixiang plant and is responsible for overseeing
the operations of the factory. Ms. WONG holds an EMBA
from Shanghai Jiao Tong University, China. She joined the
Group in 2002 and has over 21 years of experience in the
electronics manufacturing industry.
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Mr. TENG Boon Han, Eric, aged 36, is the general
manager of EMS and pet training products divisions
and is responsible for the overall operations including
programme management, order management, supply chain
management, product development and manufacturing in
Buji plant. Mr. TENG holds a bachelor degree of Business
Administration in Finance and Economics from University
of New Brunswick, Canada. He joined the Group in 2007.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. TENG worked for global IT
and telecommunication companies. He has had international
working exposure in the USA, Malaysia, Indonesia and
Thailand within those companies.

Mr. FUNG Chi Leung, Mark, aged 50, is the general
manager of the marketing division in Buji plant. He holds a
Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Toronto in
Canada. Mr. FUNG has over 27 years of working experience
in electronics sales and marketing.
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Corporate Governance Report
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EERRE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the management
of Suga International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) are
committed to attain and uphold a high standard of corporate
governance that properly protect and promote the interests of
its shareholders and other stakeholders including customers,
suppliers, employees and the general public.

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the
Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for CG Code
A.2.1.

CG Code A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this
report, the Group does not have a separate Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and Dr. Ng Chi Ho currently holds
both positions. The Board believes that vesting the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership
in the development and execution of long-term business
strategies. Going forward, the Group will periodically
review the effectiveness of this arrangement and considers
appointing an individual as Chief Executive Officer when it
thinks appropriate.

Save the abovementioned deviation, none of the directors of
the Company is aware of information that would reasonably
indicate the Company is not or was not in compliance with
the CG Code for the year under review.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Group’s overall management is vested in its board of
directors, which now comprises six members, coming from
diverse businesses and professional backgrounds. The
Board consisted of two executive directors, Dr. Ng Chi Ho
(Chairman), Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman), one non-
executive director, Mr. Lee Kam Hung and three independent
non-executive directors (‘INED’), Professor Wong Sook Leung,
Joshua, Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven and Mr. Chan Kit Wang
(collectively the ‘Directors’).

The principal functions of the Board are to supervise the
group’s business and affairs; to review the Group’s financial
performance; to review the Group’s systems of internal
control; to approve the strategic plans, investment and
funding decision. For the financial reporting accountability,
the Board has the ultimate responsibility for preparing
the financial statements. The day-to-day management is
conducted by senior management and employees of the
Group, under the direction and supervision of the Directors.
When the Directors are aware of any events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, such events or conditions will
be clearly set out and discussed in this Corporate Governance
Report.

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10 (1) and (2) of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
INEDs among whom one has to have appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related finance management
expertise. The role of INED is to bring an independent and
objective view to the Board’s deliberations and decisions.
The Company has received from each of the INED an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs
are independent.

All non-executive directors (including INEDs) have been
appointed for a term of one year and is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the bye-laws
of the Company and Listing Rules at each annual general
meeting. Save as disclosed in the biographical details of each
director, there is no other relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship)
among members of the board.

Corporate Governance Report
PEERME

EEg

AREZBEEERESERT EFERHAN
HARETNRATERERESHALTAX EFE
KREBEMANTEEREZEL (EF) - F
ERRE (BER)  —RBIFNITESTFRMESL
ER=RBUIFNTES ([BUIFRTES])
ERSUER RFHREENRANEZLELE (5
[E%]) -

EXZeI2REREBRBEEBLER 2
AAKREZMBRE B ANKRE 2 AEFEEE
B BLERESST B  RE RE SIREK - NI
REEEAH EFSREAERRMBHRERZ
ERAT - ARESREEEREENESE
SINEETRERFEEEH -RWESANESR
EAIAT R S AR BB AR B AR 2 B

BREXRRBZEHXBR ZEFMHAER

KB RN AREERRE LN E T 5w

ARREEST LA RHE3.10(1) R ()5 2 47
o RERL=ZRBIUFRTES AP KA
BABEXERIAA ST IHBEYEEESR
EHB-BUNTEEFZABGRRERTSL
HEMRARRERBYUTHER -RIELTARA
FE3.13MF ARFE BN BB IERITEE

BUFRTESARBIAL

ERFATES (BRBUIFNTES)HE
RE—F2EH AAREBEARR 2 ARAA
LETHRANEERBFAE LHESERRE
B-BBREFZREABAREEIN EFEN
ERMELMBAR (BRI %55 KiksH
hERIHEBR)

FEBEBREEAR AR | 2013/14FH



30

Corporate Governance Report
hEERRE

ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board meets at least four times annually to review
business development and overall strategic policies. The
Board is supplied with relevant information by the senior
management pertaining to matters to be brought before the
Board for decision as well as reports relating to operational
and financial performance of the Group before each regular
board meeting. At least 14 days notice of a regular board
meeting is given to all directors to give them the opportunity
to attend. Board papers are dispatched to the directors
at least three days before the meeting to ensure that they
have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the meeting.

The Board is responsible for the system of internal controls
of the Company and its subsidiaries, setting appropriate
policies and reviewing the effectiveness of such controls.
Internal control is defined as a process effected by the Board,
management and other personnel, designed to manage
rather then eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable, not absolute
assurance of the following:

- effectiveness and efficiency operations

- reliability of financial reporting

- compliance with applicable laws and regulations
- effectiveness of risk management functions

The Board conducted a review of the system of internal
controls of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2014 including the consideration of the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function
and their training programmes and budget. The Board
assessed the effectiveness of internal control by considering
reviews performed by the Audit Committee, executive
management and is satisfied that the system of internal
control of the Group is functioning properly.
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Four regular meetings of the Board and one Annual RZ-Z—=/—NFER K{TURERE
General Meeting were held during the year of 2013/14. The Ee€@#Lk— ABRRBAFASC REZHES
attendance of each director at the meeting is set out as 2 HEEBWT

follows:—

Name of directors Board meeting AGM
EEnA EFeEE RBREEEXE
Executive directors HITES

Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman) RextEL(£E) 4/4 11
Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman) EERRE (FFE) 4/4 11
Non-executive directors EHITES

Mr. Lee Kam Hung FIRME S AE 4/4 1/1
INEDs BAERITES

Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua EHROHE 4/4 1/1
Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven RFHEE 4/4 1/1
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRZNR S 4/4 1/1
DIRECTORS’ TRAINING EE=157

Based on the training records provided to the Company by 1EBEEFRAAQAGEHE 72 EILE R
the directors, the directors have participated in the following —=/—NFERN EEHL2HELTEI:

training during 2013/14:

Attended training courses,
seminars, workshops,

Directors in-house briefs
HEEANRRE  #AstE -

) FME NMEE

Executive directors HITES

Dr. Ng Chi Ho REZEL v

Mr. Ma Fung On BEREE v

Non-executive directors EHITESE

Mr. Lee Kam Hung IR v

INEDs BIaAEHITES

Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua EREOHE v

Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven RFETE v

Mr. Chan Kit Wang RN R S HE v
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DIRECTORS” AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against
all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by
them in the execution of and discharge of their duties or in
relation thereto, the Company has arranged insurance cover
for this purpose.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The board has established four committees and has
delegated various responsibilities to the committees
including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and the corporate governance committee (the “Corporate
Governance Committee”). All the Board Committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective
terms of reference. The Board Committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and,
upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs who are
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua, Mr. Leung Yu Ming
Steven and Mr. Chan Kit Wang. The composition and
members of the Audit Committee complies with the
requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
Chairman of the Audit Committee is Professor Wong Sook
Leung Joshua.

The Audit Committee meetings are held not less than twice
a year to review and discuss the internal control systems of
the Group, to review the Group’s interim and annual financial
statements, and also monitors the appointment and function
of the Group’s independent auditors. Additional meetings
may also be held by the Committee from time to time to
discuss special projects or other issues of which the Audit
Committee considers necessary. The Committee’s authorities
and duties are set out in written terms of reference and are
posted on the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

EELAABEZEERRLBE

RRAEARREZLRSABMEANTRETE
BEXE BRAMELEZMEER KE 8
K RAXRER AARERU R HRBIZR -

%%‘E%TEW MEAZEg IRSEBE
NRERRESG BRNERZE® ([BRZE
g2]) FMHEZEE ([FHEZEE]) REHZE8

A(fh%%éﬁ DhktxeEr%B8g ([bX
BREBg]) MAEFEREEHRERA
MBERERTERE AR EXEZES
BRAREBRABITERE BEAGEERT
AHARFEBEHEEABRATSRBUEEE
Bo

WA
il

&=
=

i

%

ENZEeH-_2BUFATER (DRAE
B RFREERBANBEL)EX-F
“ZBE ZHERMKENE EWARREI21EF
BTZRE - BREZEGIERERSHEK -

EZZEeBFETIORMASE  Kias

Rl AREABEEHE  FHASKESH
REEMBERER AR BB AN R BB T AZ B
MEENBE - BERZEENAS THT%—%TT%E
S HRERNEERERZEERATE
A M EE- 2/\.5.2%?7&?‘&;%5"2
HRELEAN HEKHRAR A REBHR
Fft 2 5 A o

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2013/14



During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held
and the individual attendance of each member is set out
below:—

Member of Audit Committee

Corporate Governance Report
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FARBITMABEZZESEH SNEZE
Bl BT :

Meeting attended

ENZBEBEHE HEEHXH
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua (Chairman) & &ase 2% (£/E) 212
Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven RFERTE 2/2
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRSNS 2/2

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the fiscal year
2012/2013 annual report and fiscal year 2013/2014 interim
report, including the accounting principles and practice
adopted by the Group, reviewed and discussed the financial
results and internal control systems of the group, conducted
discussions with the independent auditors on financial
reporting, compliance, and reported all relevant matters to
the Board.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the fiscal year
2013/2014 annual report in a meeting held on 18 June
2014.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs and is
currently chaired by Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua. No
director or senior executive will be involved in any discussion
in connection with his own remuneration. The meeting of the
Remuneration Committee shall normally be held not less than
once a year.

The Company has adopted a model where the Remuneration
Committee performs an advisory role to the Board, with
the Board retaining the final authority to approve the
remuneration of executive directors and senior management.

FRN BREEQEEMN T~/ —FT—=
FUBRFEFRR -_ZT—=/""F—NFHK
FEPHERES BRBRAAEBMARAZ SR
FRAI K BB~ 28 5 Ko 7 i 5= 1 B 765 56 48 e I 6
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The Committee’s principal responsibilities are to make ZE&7 X E2BEAFERIHT %%&%?&%

recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages B AEB v HMiFEmEE SR MHER IEH
of individual executive directors and senior management, TT%%Z SR E SR ER Ejtﬁf'ﬁ 2
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration FENEETGRERHEZ - ZESTRIAKE

of non-executive directors and make recommendations to BFRI[END 2 FEN 5 R IR B FT 8 5l EEJ%IE
the Board on the remuneration structure. It also reviews FTNEZESRAECBREEARENETA

and guides the formulation of the Group’s performance BEARB AT 2 MuhN - ﬁﬁaﬁﬂ/\ﬁéﬁ:\%ﬁ A
related pay schemes. Term of reference which described the SPAl

authorities and duties of the Remuneration Committee are

publicly available on the websites of the Company and the

Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the contents of which are in

compliance with the CG Code.

During the year, two Remuneration Committee meetings was  FREBITMAFTMHNEZES S5 SKEZME
held and the individual attendance of each member is set out Bl BB X EE L 0T

below:—

Member of the Remuneration Committee Meeting attended
HFMESEME HEERXH
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua (Chairman) & rase28% (£/E) 212
Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven RFRTE 2/2
Mr. Chan Kit Wang PR 2/2

During the year the Remuneration Committee reviewed and ~ FA - HEEZE e EMERERRITES  IE
made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration MITES BYFNTESRAERERBEZH
packages of individual executive directors, non-executive EFBHMEECREER YEEMaRERE
directors, the INEDs, and senior management; and reviewed [ 2 TE4T -

the bonus to senior management.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EFZENSNEERE 2 H
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 March, 2014, the remuneration of EHZ-_ZFT—MNF=ZA=+—HILFE SHE
the members of the senior management by band is set out I A SRS EE|H 2 FHEE 50T :

below:—

Remuneration bands (HK$) Number of persons
FMEE (Ex) N
$500,001 to $1,000,000 500,001/ 7T 21,000,000/ 7T 2
$1,000,001 to $2,000,000 1,000,001% 7T £2,000,000/% 7T

$2,000,001 to $3,000,000 2,000,0017% 7T 23,000,000/ 7T 1

Further particulars regarding director’ remuneration and  #R4F R BIMIER1678 T AR B A 8 & = 57 B
the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed FhEZBEaHEECE —TFBIANGENE
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in WK MIFE3S -

notes 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises three INEDs who are
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua, Mr. Leung Yu Ming
Steven and Mr. Chan Kit Wang and is currently chaired by
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua.

The meeting of the Nomination Committee shall normally be
held not less than once a year. The Committee will identify
qualified candidates to fill the Board membership whenever
such vacancy arises. It will nominate such candidates for
the Board to consider, and regularly review the composition
of the Board as well as make suggestions as to any change
that may be required. The Committee’s authorities and duties
are set out in written terms of reference and are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the
year. Details of individuals attendance of its members are set

out in the table below:—

Member of the Nomination Committee

Corporate Governance Report
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Meeting attended

REZEBEHE HEEHE X
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua (Chairman) & &ase2i% (£/E) 3/3
Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven RFeEE 3/3
Mr. Chan Kit Wang PR e 3/3

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board; make
recommendations to the Board on re-election of the directors
subject to retirement by rotation under the bye-laws at the
2014 annual general meeting and asses the independence of
the independent non-executive directors.

FR RELZEERTESTS 2R/E  ABMAE
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted the board diversity policy in June 2013.
The policy sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board.

The Company considered diversity of board members
can be achieved through consideration of a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board developed measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy, where selection of candidates
will be based on the range of diversity perspectives as set
out above, and the ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidate will bring to the
Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Corporation Governance Committee of the Company
was established on 21 February, 2012. As at the date of
this annual report, the Corporation Governance Committee
comprised of two executive directors, namely Dr. Ng Chi Ho
(Chairman) and Mr. Ma Fung On.

The role and main function of the Corporate Governance
Committee is to assist the Board in developing and reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance which are
applicable to the Group and making recommendations to the
Board.

The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance
Committee include the duties set out in Code Provision D.3.1.
(a) to (e) for the time being in force. The terms of reference
of the Corporate Governance Committee are available on the
website of the Company.
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The Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting
during the year. The attendance at this meeting is as follows:—

Member of the Corporate Governance Committee
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Meeting attended

TCEERZEENRE HEEZEXHY
Dr. Ng Chi Ho REREL 1/1
Mr. Ma Fung On HBEREE 1/1

During the year, the Corporate Governance Committee
reviewed and discussed the new requirements of the
Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules and reviewed
and monitored the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. The
Company made specific enquiry of all directors as to whether
they complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code regarding their securities transactions. It was confirmed
that there was full compliance. The relevant employee
who, because of their office in the Group, are likely to be in
possession of inside information, have been requested to
comply with the provisions of the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
PREPARING THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. The
finance department of the Company is taken charge by the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company. With the assistance
of the finance department, the Directors ensure that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
properly prepared in accordance with relevant regulations
and applicable accounting principles.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Group’s independent auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers
(“PwC”). The financial reporting responsibilities of the
independent auditor are set out on page 62 to 63 of this
annual report.

During the year, remuneration of approximately
HK$2,476,000 was payable to PwC for the provision of audit
services. In addition, approximately HK$162,900 was payable
to PwC for other non-audit services. The non-audit services
mainly consist of tax compliance and other services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged and appointed Mr. Huen Po Wah,
a representative from an external secretarial services provider
as the company secretary of the Company. The primary
contact person with the company secretary of the Company is
the chief financial officer, Mr. Lee Yiu Cheung, Alex. Mr. Huen
has duly complied with the relevant training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there is no change in the
Company'’s constitutional documents.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a
sound and effective internal control system of the Group.
The system includes a defined management structure with
limits of authority, safeguard its assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, ensures the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensures
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The system is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss, and to manage the
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the
achievement of the Group’s objectives.
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The Board believed that the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls and key areas of the Group’s system of
internal controls are reasonably implemented, which provide
prevention of material misstatement or loss, safeguard the
Group’s assets, maintain appropriate account records and
financial reporting, efficiency of operations and ensure
compliance with applicable laws and regulation. The Board
will endeavour its best effort to enhance and improve the
internal controls in all aspects of the Group, and will regularly
monitor the issues raised by the Audit Committee to ensure
appropriate remedial measures have been implemented.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining effective
communications with shareholders. In order to develop and
maintain continuing relationship with the shareholders of
the Company, the Company established various channels to
facilitate and enhance communication:

(i)  the annual general meeting provides a useful forum for
the shareholders of the Company to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board,

(i) publication of announcements and circulars on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company,

(i) publication of financial statements containing a
summary of the financial information and affairs of the
Group for the interim and full financial year via the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company,

(iv) interim reports, annual reports and circulars are sent to
all shareholders,

(v) notices of and explanatory notes for general meetings,

(vi) the management of the Group continually conducts
meetings with investors, analysts and the media, and
provides them with up-to-date and comprehensive
information regarding the Company’s development and
answers to their queries.
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The Company also maintains a website at www.suga.com.hk,
where updates on the Company’s business developments
and operations, financial information and news can always be
found.

Shareholders and investors may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing through the
contact details as follows:—

Address: 22nd Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre,
1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax: 2953 1523

Email: investorrelations@suga.com.hk

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

Shareholders are entitled to requisition a special general
meeting and put forward proposals at general meeting. The
procedures are as follows:

(A) PROCEDURES FOR REQUISITIONING A
SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

In accordance with Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
the shareholders of the Company holding at the date of
the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
such of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company, shall
have the right to convene a special general meeting
of the Company. If the directors do not within twenty-
one days from the date of the deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists
representing more than one half of the total voting rights
may themselves convene a meeting.

The written requisition for the special general meeting
can be lodged at the Company’s principal office in Hong
Kong at 22nd Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang
Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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(B) PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD

PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
to vote at general meetings of the Company or not less
than 100 shareholders may, at their expense, provide
a written request to the attention of the Company
Secretary signed and deposited in accordance with the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

The procedures for the shareholders to propose a
person for election of a director at an annual general
meeting is available for viewing at the Company’s
website at www.suga.com.hk.

The above procedures are subject to the bye-laws of the
Company and applicable legislation and regulation.

Besides, the updated memorandum of association
and bye-laws of the Company has been posted on
the website of the Company at www.suga.com.hk
and the designated website of the Stock Exchange at
www.hkexnews.hk.
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The Directors are pleased to present to the shareholders their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together, “the Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Its principal subsidiaries are engaged in the research and
development, manufacture and sale of electronic products,
moulds and plastic products. Details of the principal activities
of the Group’s subsidiaries are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
reporting and geographical segment is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 66
of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK6.0 cents per ordinary share was
paid during the financial year. The Directors have proposed
the payment of a final dividend of HK8.0 cents per ordinary
share for the year ended 31 March 2014. Total dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2014 amounted to HK14.0 cents
per ordinary share.

The proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 13
August 2014 is expected to be paid on or before 27 August
2014 to shareholders of the Company whose names appear
on the Register of Shareholders of the Company on 20
August 2014.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS (continued)

The register of Shareholders of the Company will be closed
for the following periods:

(1)

(i)

The Register of shareholders of the Company will
be closed from 11 August 2014 to 13 August 2014
(both days inclusive), during which period no transfer
of shares in the Company will be registered, for the
purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders
entitled to attend and vote at 2014 Annual General
Meeting. In order to qualify to attend and vote at the
meeting, all transfers of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
8 August 2014.

The Register of Shareholders of the Company will
be closed from 19 August 2014 to 20 August 2014
(both days inclusive) during which period no transfer
of shares in the Company will be registered, for
the purpose of determining the entitlement of the
shareholders to receive the proposed final dividend.
Subject to approval of the shareholders at the 2014
Annual General Meeting, the proposed final dividend
will be payable to the shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Shareholders of the Company
on 20 August 2014. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
18 August 2014.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in share capital and share options
of the Company during the year are set out in notes 23 and
24 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2014
calculated under Company Act of Bermuda amounted to
HK$88,934,000 (2013: HK$94,716,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its shares during
the year. Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares
during the year.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$256,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings as at 31 March 2014 are set
out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of retirement schemes are set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate,
is set out on page 184 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lee Kam Hung

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven
Mr. Chan Kit Wang

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. Ma Fung On
and Mr. Chan Kit Wang will retire by rotation in accordance
with Bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws. All the retiring
Directors are being eligible and offer themselves for re-
election.

Each of Non-executive Director and Independent Non-
executive Directors is appointed for a term of one year.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continuea)

Dr. Ng Chi Ho, being Executive Directors of the Company has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial
fixed term of three years commencing from 1 September
2002 and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party
on the other. Mr. Ma Fung On, being Executive Director, has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial
fixed term of three years commencing from 1 April 2004 and
will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed
for re-election has a service contract with the Company,
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Directors consider the share option scheme, with its
broadened basis of participation, will enable the Group
to reward the employees, Directors and other selected
participants for their contributions to the Group and will also
assist the Group in its recruitment and retention of high
caliber professional’s executives and employees who are
instrumental to the growth of the Group.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 6 August
2012, the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 17
September 2002 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) was
terminated and cease to have any further effect except that
the Old Share Option Scheme will remain in force to the
extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of the options
granted thereunder prior to termination thereof. A new share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted which will remain in force for a period of 10 years
from adoption of the New Share Option Scheme and will
expire on 5 August 2022.

For details of the principal terms of the New Share Option
Scheme, please refer to the circular of the Company dated 5
July 2012.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Principal terms of the New Share Option Scheme are as
follows:—

B ESE (2)
AT A ERE 8l B 5% —

PURPOSE OF THE NEW SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is
to enable the Group to grant Options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group.

The Directors consider the New Share Option Scheme
will enable the Group to reward its employees, Directors
and other selected participants for their contributions
to the Group and will also assist the Group in its
recruitment and retention of high calibre professionals,
executives and employees who are instrumental to the
growth of the Group.

WHO MAY JOIN

The Directors (which expression shall, for the purpose
of this Appendix, include a duly authorized committee
thereof) may, at their absolute discretion subject to the
Listing Rules, invite any person belonging to any of the
following classes of participants, to take up options to
subscribe for Shares:

(@) any employee (whether full time or part time
including any executive director but excluding any
non-executive director) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(b) any non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of any member the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

2.

WHO MAY JOIN (Continued)

() any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or
consultant to any area of business or business
development of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; and

(h) any other group or classes of participants who
have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business
arrangements to the development and growth of
the Group.

For the purposes of the New Share Option Scheme,
the Options may be granted to any company wholly
owned by one or more persons belonging to any of
the above classes of participants. For the avoidance of
doubt, the grant of any Options by the Company for the
subscription of Shares or other securities of the Group
to any person who fall within any of the above classes
of participants shall not, by itself, unless the Directors
otherwise determined, be construed as a grant of
Option under the New Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any of the above class of
participants to the grant of any Options shall be
determined by the Directors from time to time on the
basis of the Directors’ opinion as to his contribution to
the development and growth of the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

3.

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE
FOR SUBSCRIPTION

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the New Share Option
Scheme must not exceed 10% of the issue share
capital of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the New Share Option
Scheme was 27,229,400 shares (including 3,670,000
shares subject to options that had been granted but not
yet lapsed or exercised), which represented 9.97% of
the issued share capital of the Company.

At the date of this annual report, there were still options
that had been granted but not yet lapsed or exercised
under the Old Share Option Scheme and the total
number of shares available for issue under the Old
Share options Scheme was 436,000 Shares, which
represented 0.16% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH
PARTICIPANT

The total number of Shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
under the New Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group (including both
exercised, cancelled or outstanding options) to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company for
the time being (“Individual Limit”). Any further grant
of Options in excess of the Individual Limit in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant shall be subject to the issue of a circular
to the Shareholders and the Shareholders’ approval in
general meeting of the Company with such participant
and his associates abstaining from voting. The number
and terms (including the exercise price) of the Options
to be granted to such participant must be fixed before
Shareholders’ approval and the date of Board meeting
for proposing such further grant should be taken as the
date of grant for the purpose of calculating the exercise
price under note (1) to Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing
Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

5.

BASIS OF DETERMINING THE SUBSCRIPTION
PRICE

The subscription price for Shares under the New
Share Option Scheme shall be a price determined by
the Directors, but shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on the date of the
offer of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of
the grant of an Option.

EXERCISE PERIOD OF AN OPTION

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the New Share Option Scheme at any time
during a period to be determined and notified by the
Directors to each grantee, which period may commence
on a day upon which the offer for the grant of Options
is made but shall end in any event not later than 10
years from the date of grant of the Option subject to the
provisions for early termination thereof.

TIME AND PAYMENT ON ACCEPTANCE

An offer of the grant of the Option may be accepted by
a participant within 21 days from the date of the offer
of grant of the Option and the Option in respect of the
number of Shares in respect of which the offer was so
accepted will be deemed to have been granted on the
date of grant of the Options.

MINIMUM PERIOD AND PERFORMANCE
TARGETS

Unless the Directors otherwise determined and stated in
the offer of the grant of Options to a grantee, a grantee
is not required to hold an Option for any minimum
period nor achieve any performance targets before any
Options granted under the New Share Option Scheme
can be exercised.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuea)

9.

REMAINING LIFE OF THE NEW SHARE
OPTION SCHEME

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in
general meeting, the New Share Option Scheme shall
be valid and effective till 5 August 2022. After the expiry
of such valid period, no further options will be offered
or granted but in all other respects the provisions of the
New Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and
effect.

Details of the share option movements during the period
from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 under the Old
Scheme Option Scheme and the New Share Option
Scheme are as follows:—

Number of share options
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HATEIET 2 B E BT —

EREZE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
at 1 April during the during the during the  at 31 March Exercise
2013 period period period 2014 price Date of grant Exercisable period
® S
it L —g-m4
R-8 =ZA=t+-H
H AT HnEd HmiTE HmER &7 friEE BHAH [ixid
(HK$)
(B1)
Mr. Lee Kam Hung - 200,000 - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
(Note 1) 20 March 2019
EX St (M) “E-MmE —E-MF
—A-t+-H “Azt+—-RH%
0%
—A-+H
Prof Wong Sook Leung, - 200,000 - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
Joshua (Note 1) 20 March 2019
BERRYR (P11 —F-mE —E-mE
“A-t+-H “AZt-B%
“E-hF
=R=tH
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, - 200,000 - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
Steven (Note 1) 20 March 2019
RFHEE (F3E1) | —Z-mE
“A-+-H s B el =)
ZE-nE
=A=tH
Mr. Chan Kit Wang - 200,000 - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
(Note 1) 20 March 2019
RABSEE (M) ;% “E-ME
—A-t+-H “Azt+—-RH%
0%
—A-+H
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuea)

9. REMAINING LIFE OF THE NEW SHARE
OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Number of share options

BERTE (2

9. BT SRR FH (&)

EREZER
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
at 1 April during the during the during the  at 31 March Exercise
2013 period period period 2014 price Date of grant Exercisable period
® 7
_5-=% —F-mE
A-B ZA=t+-H
BRI HnEd HmiTE HmER &7 friEE BHAH TEH
(HK$)
(B)
Continuous Contract 110,000 - - - 110,000 1331 29 April 2010 29 April 2010 -
Employees 28 April 2015
BEANEE %% -3-%
mAZtNA MAZTHhRZE
—Z-nf
mA-+N\B
Continuous Contract 990,000 - - 132,000 858,000 1.145 3June 2010 31 December 2013 -
Employees 3 June 2015
BEANEE —5-%% —E-=f
~A=A +ZA=+-HE
“E-RE
~AZH
Continuous Contract 386,000 - - 60,000 326,000 1.750 21 October 2011 22 October 2014 -
Employees 21 October 2016
BREAVEE —E—-F —E-mE
TA=t+-A TA-t+ZR%
—E-RE
TAZt-H
Continuous Contract - 2,670,000 - - 2,670,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2015 -
Employees (Note 1) 20 March 2019
BEANEE (P31 “E5-mE “I-nfF
ZA-t-H =R=t-R%
0%
“A-+H
Others - 200,000 - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
(Note 1) 20 March 2019
Efh (P31 | —E-mE
=A-t+-H ZR=t-RH%
ZE-0E
ZA-tH
1,486,000 3,670,000 - 192,000 4,964,000
Note: B 5

1. The closing price of the Company’s share immediately
before the date (21 March 2014) on which the share
options were granted, was HK$1.780.

1. EEBREEREH(-ZT-—OF=A
T B)RARER 2 W ER1.780

BT
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EEGRE
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BiRESE ()
9. REMAINING LIFE OF THE NEW SHARE 9. FNEBARMESTEIZ FIsRF HA (&)
OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Details of the share option movements during the period B-ZE—NFNA—HE-_F—WNFH
from 1 April 2014 to 25 June 2014 under the Old Share ZTHBHEA EERETE RIER
Option Scheme and the New Scheme Option Scheme BETEIE T o BRESEHFEOT: —
are as follows:—
Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
at 1 April during the during the  during the  at 25 June
2014 period period period 2014 Exercise price Date of grant Exercisable period
ZE-mE —3-mE
A-H ~AZT+EH
o K AT B HRiTHE BREH i# A AT TEE it A fTiEH
(HKS)
(%71)
Mr. Lee Kam Hung 200,000 - - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
20 March 2019
TRERE “ET-|mE —T-|mE
ZA=t-H ZAZt-HE
“E-nF
=A=+H
Prof Wong Sook Leung, 200,000 - - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
Joshua 20 March 2019
BEERAR —Z-|mF —T-mE
“F=t-H =A=z+-HZ%
“E-NF
ZAZ+A
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, 200,000 - - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
Steven 20 March 2019
2EHLE —E-QmF —E-|E
—F-t-H =ZA=t+-H%
—E-NF
ZA=+H
Mr. Chan Kit Wang 200,000 - - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
20 March 2019
BAEEE “ET-|mE —T-|mE
=A-+-8 “A=+-H%
“E-nF
=A=+H
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EEQHE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuea)

9.

REMAINING LIFE OF THE NEW SHARE

OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Number of share options

BERE (2
9. FNMBRHERT Sz R FHI (&)

BREZA

Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding

at 1 April during the during the during the  at 25 June
2014 period period period 2014 Exercise price Date of grant Exercisable period

B’ "

—F-mE —3-mE

A-H ~AZT+AH
B R AT B HRTE HREH i A A7 friEfE BHAH fTiEH

(HK$)
(#71)

Continuous Contract 110,000 - - - 110,000 1.331 29 April 2010 29 April 2010 -
Employees 28 April 2015
sEENES _Z-%F —T-%%
mA=t+AB MAZtNBZE
—Z-1F
mA=+N\H
Continuous Contract 858,000 - 858,000 - - 1.145 3June 2010 31 December 2013 -
Employees 3 June 2015
HEANES —2-%F% “T-=%
~A=A +=ZA=+-H%
“E-hF
~A=R
Continuous Contract 326,000 - - - 326,000 1.750 21 October 2011 22 October 2014 -
Employees 21 October 2016
REANER % “T-mE
+A=+—-8 +A=-t=B%
ZE-RE
tA=t-H
Continuous Contract 2,670,000 - - - 2,670,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2015 -
Employees 20 March 2019
BEANES —Z-mF —Z-1%¥
“F=t-H =A=Z+—-HZ
“E-NEF
=ZA=+H
Others 200,000 - - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
20 March 2019
it —T-mE “T-mE
—A=f-H =A=t+-HZ
ZZ-NF
ZAZ+H

4,964,000 - 858,000 - 4,106,000
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2014, the interests and the short positions of
the directors of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) which are required to
be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of the Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they have taken or deemed to have under
such positions of the SFO) or which are required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein, or which are required, pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the “Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange were as follows:—
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LONG POSITION

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
(Continued)

Interests in shares of the Company

EERNBWZER &)

7R

(@) RARARDZ #am

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

RN B Z IR RAERR G 2 &=

ShEEIBETZLERYE
Number of
underlying
Percentage of shares held
Number of Total issued ordinary  under equity
Name of Director Capacity shares interests shares derivatives
B#T BRAHTEIR
LER BETHEHER
EEHA a4 BEHEE HEE BRI BHEE
(Note 1)
(Fi3E 1)
Dr. Ng Chi Ho Beneficial owner 6,930,000 160,578,000 58.97% -
REFEL EaEEA
Interests of controlled 43,648,000 - - -
corporation (Note 2)
XEEEER (PaE2)
Founder of 110,000,000 - - -
a discretionary trust (Note 3)
PRETEANRE (P3E3)
Mr. Ma Fung On Beneficial owner 4,323,000 14,223,000 5.22% -
BEREE EREEA
Interests of controlled 9,900,000 - - -
corporation (Note 4)
REEE#R (Pit5E4)
Mr. Lee Kam Hung Beneficial owner 1,949,200 3,883,000 1.43% 200,000
FiRELE EaEEA
Interests of controlled 1,933,800 - - -
corporation (Note 5)
REEEER (Pi+5E5)
Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua Beneficial owner 220,000 220,000 0.08% 200,000
BRSYR EaEEA
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven Beneficial owner 330,000 330,000 0.12% 200,000
RFEHESE EREEA
Mr. Chan Kit Wang Beneficial owner - - - 200,000
BAREE ExBEBA
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
(Continued)

LONG POSITION (Continued)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company (Continued)

(a)

Interests in shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1.

These represent the interests in underlying shares in
respect of the share opinions granted by the Company, the
details of which are set out in the sub-section “Share Option
Scheme”.

43,648,000 shares are held by Billion Linkage Limited, the
entire issued shares of which is held by Dr. Ng Chi Ho and
his spouse in equal share.

110,000,000 Shares are held by Superior View Inc.,
the entire issued shares of which is ultimately held by
Fidelitycorp Limited as the trustee of the C.H. Family Trust,
the beneficiaries of which are the family members of Dr. Ng
Chi Ho.

9,900,000 Shares are held by Global Class Enterprises
Limited, the entire issued shares of which is held by Mr. Ma
Fung On.

1,933,800 shares are held by Quick Fit Enterprises Ltd, the
ultimate shareholder is Mr. Lee Kam Hung.
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EENRMZER &2

R (&)
ApRzRPRBERBRNZEE (&)

(@) RAERAERNDZ e (5
B aE -

1. FHEBRGERXFRMXLERES R 2
B o s ARIFHISERN [ 3l

77 B °

2. #43,648,000% I% {7 B Billion Linkage
Limited# 6 * Mz AR 2502 TR % Al A
REXETHR  EBSFE—F-

3. #110,000,0000% P& 15 B3 Superior View Inc.
BE mMzra2deBTROoBER
C.H.XI&{E7EX 5 A ZFidelitycorp Limited
BRER ZERZXBABREBTRELIZ
E-

4. #9,900,0000% #% 19 A Global Class
Enterprises Limited#5 4 * Mz AR 23 E 8
TROBIBEREREERA-

5. 5%1,933,8000% J% {7 F Quick Fit Enterprises
Ltd35E R EEEBZ LRI RERE-
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
(Continued)

LONG POSITION (Continued)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company (Continued)

(b)

Interests in shares of the Company's associated
corporation

Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each in Suga
Electronics Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the

EERNBWZER &)

R (%)
ERARZRM RBERKRGZEE(F)

(b) RARFFEZER .

RARBZEMBAREEEFARAA
B EEL0E T Z B EEELERD -

Company:
Number of
Non-voting
deferred Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity shares issued shares
BHEERE L&
EENA 5% TR E B BRBEST
(Note 1)
(MH5ED)
Dr. Ng Chi Ho Interests of controlled corporation 3,680,000 92%
(Note 2)
REZEL RyEEEER (Mt5E2)
Mr. Ma Fung On Interests of controlled corporation 240,000 6%
(Note 2)
BEREE R EEER (Mt5E2)
Notes: Bt 5 -
1. These non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights,

are not entitled to dividends, and are not entitled to
any distributions upon winding up unless a sum of
HK$10,000,000,000 per ordinary shares has been
distributed to the holders of ordinary shares.

The 4,000,000 non-voting deferred shares in Suga
Electronics Limited are held as to 80% by Essential Mix
Enterprises Limited and 20% by Broadway Business
Limited. Dr. Ng Chi Ho and Mr. Ma Fung On hold 92% and
6% interests in each of Essential Mix Enterprises Limited
and Broadway Business Limited respectively.

Save as disclosed above and under the “Share Option
Scheme”, none of the Directors of the Company have any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO as at 31 March 2014.

1. ZEERFREER D BRI ESEAR
B RRK REEBRISEACEDKE

% & 38 1% 10,000,000,000/8 7018 » 7% 55 S 1%

SRRERNDIFAADAED K-

=z

2. 4,000,000 EEEFAERRAAIEIEERE
5 JE A% 15 7> Bl i Essential Mix Enterprises
Limited & Broadway Business Limited# A&
80%K20% - RAZHE LT RFELREES
B 7 BlIF Essential Mix Enterprises Limited &
Broadway Business Limited$} 592% 6%
e

B EX R [BhiEstal | BTHEEN R=-F
—OFE=ZA=1t—B ARAEEHENAR
AR EARESAE (& RBESLBERD) 2 I
0 HERRR D RESFT EBEAEE AR
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

In the opinion of the Directors, there is no such competing
business as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2014, the following persons (not being a
Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and which have been recorded in the register kept by
the Company pursuant to the section 336 of the SFO.
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E$@ﬁ%$ \,\qﬂﬁhz&ﬁ&%ﬁij(%\
ZEREH-

i3

Y

7>
SOkk
iy

FREBE

EEZR/ UEBIMEEBMARSMERAR
Er EmRA ([ EWRAN) ez BT %K -

TERRE

R-T-—NF=A=1+—B BEARFREZE

7 LB GG F336FFE 2 B ML T

5'J)\i(§ﬁ3l5$ AESHTBITHRABR)IRA
REZB I REERO T EEARBESFK

HIE IR DI EXVER 235 B4R TE (A1 AN A AR 55

ZRETDBIRRE

Percentage of

Name Capacity Number of shares issued shares
LB T

Ha g =30 B & E B ESL

Superior View Inc. (Note 1) (Fi&E1) Beneficial owner 110,000,000 40.40%
EnEA A

Billion Linkage Limited (Note 2) (Ff5¥2) Beneficial owner 43,648,000 16.03%
EmEA A

Notes: P 5E -

1. The entire issued share capital of Superior View Inc. is ultimately 1. Superior View Inc. 222 BT AR IEAC.H XA

held by Fidelitycorp Limited as trustee of the C.H. Family Trust, the
beneficiaries of which are the family members of Dr. Ng Chi Ho.

2. The entire issued share capital of Billion Linkage Limited is held
by Dr. Ng Chi Ho and his spouse in equal shares and, as such,
Dr. Ng Chi Ho is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by
Billion Linkage Limited under the SFO.

{E5E X 7 A ZFidelitycorp Limited & #2555 » % {5
ArEZmARREZELZRE-

2. Billion Linkage Limited 2 # B B1TIR AR R 8 %18
TEE 2 BB S BURIRE S KA &N -
R A =8+ 18 A ABillion Linkage Limited Fr
BRI R
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continuea)

Save as disclosed above, as far as is known to the Directors,
there is no person, other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company, who has an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provision 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31 March 2014.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s largest customer for the year accounted for
approximately 20% of the Group’s total revenue and the
five largest customers accounted for approximately 64% of
the Group’s total revenue. In addition, the largest supplier
of the Group accounted for approximately 22% of the
Group’s purchases while the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for approximately 39% of the Group’s total
purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As at 31 March 2014, the Company was not involved in any
material litigation or arbitration and no material litigation or
arbitration were pending or threatened or made against the
Company so far the Company is aware.

FERE (&)
B EXHEEN R mE=/=+—1"
EEUTNMEREERAATTETRAS

Hh s B A TR AR BB M AR -
BERBEREES RS RN EXNVHE2RID
HRTEMARAWE 2 ERIORE -

BEEEH

FAARARE LRI BBEBARA 2
SERABOERXHZEERTERAL

TEERRBER

FR AEERKAEFPIEL 2 HEREAE
BB ERI20% MAAAREPIEL 2 $HERR
EARRBE R EEAI64% © LEAN - NEB R AH
EEEL ZBEREANEEABERN22% -

MARKHEEFH 2BERNGARERER
REAI39% o

EE REZBMEALTIARESAAEMES
le —JHXZK5%L/(LZHX$ *EEEE/\J: jEZZ'T/\
EESE PR ER TR

BEXEEFD

RZBE-—ME=ZA=1+—8 ARRLES K%
EREARFRSEINE  MBEARR A TREE
AR AR T A A REE RSB AR BIEH 2 E R
SRR AT EL
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 28 to 41.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offered themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Suga International Holdings Limited
NG Chi Ho

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

R TR

&
pwc B 5 Rk i

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SUGA INTERNATIONAL HIFEEBREEARABKRRE

HOLDINGS LIMITED \
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (REREZMUELZBERLA])

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of — ANZBAR (WA T [ 1)) BRI ER S
Suga International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its ~ 7/1=183REEBKREEABR AR (WA T EHE
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 71 to  [EAA) RET AR (HE[EXE])iRE
183, which comprise the consolidated and company balance ~ B ' iR G M BRI BER ZF —HF

sheets as at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated income ZA=+T—HNKEaRRREERER HE
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive £ BIEFERGEREE - HazEBAK

income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and ~ *REBHEBHXRNGERERER UREE

the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, ~ S aTBURBEE R MK ERREER -
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR EEMGEUMBHREARENSHE
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the BERREZAARREBEEESASRMN
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a ERMBRELERREFE (RFHEDD) BHKEE
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial MERBIRAEMHRET USHEEHBRKME
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of — HEEMAFHRER - RIEEER R AR
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements & M &5z M = AT 2o ARG - DAER S
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such MBHRR N FEERRFHERMEBNEK
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to SRR -

enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY REEHEE

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these BFMEERRERMNBTHZEFEE MK
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to BREFLBER LTERBERE (CAN—FRQ
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with BE) FOREMBBBRRRE - it 2SN
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for BEREEME B B TERANRENAR
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards AEMEMA TR ERAETAET

or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

62 SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2013/14



_E
pwc

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2014, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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Balance Sheets

BERERX

As at 31 March 2014 R=-Z—HW&E=A=+—H
Group Company
rEE b /N
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-mfE —E—=F CZE-NFE —ET—=F
=A=+—-H =A=t—H =ZA=+—-H =A=+—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 T#xT FATT FHET FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #9% 5 & & & 6 200,943 117,366 - =
Land use rights T Hb{F A 7 58,973 60,798 - =
Intangible asset | A E 8 15,892 21,046 - -
Goodwill [(5ES 9 3,949 3,949
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR Z%E 10 - = 66,303 66,139
Interest in an associate R—EEE R E 2
S 11 1,702 1,868 - -
Amount due from an associate & Ui — & Bk & 1 &)
FRIE 11 267 267 - -
Long-term loan receivable REEREWFIA 17 - 16,575 - =
Available-for-sale financial asset ] it 1 & 81 75 & & 13 7,547 4,323 - =
Financial assets at fair value R 2 FEZA
through profit or loss BansHBEE 14 - 1,279 - =
Bonds investments EHIEE 15 7,711 7,711 - =
Deferred income tax assets BIEEHEE 22 2,811 3,524 - =
Other non-current receivables  E A FERBNEUFRIE 17 852 3,875 - -
300,647 242,581 66,303 66,139
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 16 147,378 132,252 - -
Trade and other receivables ~ EUNE 5 B8R 3K &
H b fE W R IE 17 206,103 126,582 264 313
Financial assets at fair value & A FEREA
through profit or loss BaZWHKEE 14 1,279 6,553 - =
Loan receivable B R W OR 17 16,250 = - =
Bonds investments BEHEE 15 - 1,428 - =
Tax recoverable AJ U [B] 7 18 257 2407 230 118
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Ut B A & 238 10 - = 116,685 114,054
Derivative financial instruments T4 £ g T A 18 145 696 - =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 19 169,404 243,625 475 7,903
540,816 513,543 117,654 122,388
Total assets EELE 841,463 756,124 183,957 188,527
LIABILITIES =1
Non-current liabilities FrBasE
Bank borrowings RITEE 21 47,731 85,532 - =
Other non-current liabilites ~— Ef 3R & & 20 - 17,595 - -
Deferred income tax liabilites EEFEFH B E 22 4,649 5,759 - =
52,380 108,886 - -
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Balgnqe Sheets
BEEAERX
As at 31 March 2014 R=-Z—NFE=HA=+—H

Group Company
AEH b /N
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2014 2013 2014 2013

“g-mg —F =F C"F-mE - =F
=ZA=+—-H =A=t—H =ZA=+-H =A=1—H

Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE FET FHAT FHET FHATT
Current liabilities nBaE
Trade and other payables R E SRR K
H it & T 508 20 217,488 146,722 3,082 2,391
Income tax payable e P15 % 12,870 10,885 - -
Bank borrowings RITEE 21 37,798 16,927 - =
Derivative financial instruments $74 4@ T A 18 2,398 - - -
270,554 174,534 3,082 2391
Total liabilities =gt 322,934 283,420 3,082 2,391
EQUITY #Ei
Capital and reserves attributable 57 /&R AN 2 F1#EA A
to the owners of the Company 2 B 7 & f# &
Share capital &N 23 27,229 27,229 27,229 27,229
Other reserves Hib & & 25 120,148 119,834 129,584 129,063
Retained earnings REBAH 25
— Proposed dividend — BRI E 21,852 19,061 21,852 19,061
— Others —Hfh 350,432 307,134 2,210 10,783
519,661 473,258 180,875 186,136
Non-controlling interests FEPOR I 1 A 25 (1,132) (554) - -
Total equity Bl 518,529 472,704 180,875 186,136
Total equity and liabilities EZRaBRER 841,463 756,124 183,957 188,527
Net current assets mENEEFE 270,262 339,009 114,572 119,997
Total assets less current EERER
liabilities Bk =R 570,909 581,590 180,875 186,136
Director Director
EE EBE

The notes on pages 71 to 183 are an integral part of these FINZIBE Wik RirE M BmEk—8o -
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE_—Z—

WE=A=+—RHILEFE

—Qammmdinmmeﬂaiemﬁn%

2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$'OOO
B 5T FET AT
Revenue UG %5 26 1,244,828 1,107,488
Cost of sales §HE R AN 29 (1,070,160) (960,599)
Gross profit EF 174,668 146,889
Other income E A A 27 411 692
Other gains, net H bWzt - HEE 28 3,848 17,595
Distribution and selling expenses DERHEEM 29 (17,351) (17,116)
General and administrative expenses —#& M ITH EIE & A 29 (70,915) (66,254)
Operating profit 4 | 90,661 81,806
Finance income BhE Y A 30 4,049 4,301
Finance costs B & A AN 30 (2,371) (2,425)
Finance income — net & WA — 5 EE 30 1,678 1,876
Share of loss of an associate FE(E — R & AR EE (742) (865)
Profit before income tax bR AT 15 B4 A& A 91,597 82,817
Income tax expense Frisfim sz 31 (10,688) (5,364)
Profit for the year F Wit F 80,909 77,453
Attributable to: BN

Owners of the Company IN/NEIE7Z =N 32 81,487 77,841
Non-controlling interests FE 12 ) 1 2 (578) (388)
80,909 77,453

Earnings per share for profit FARQBHEE A

attributable to the owners of the FEAG 5= A 8 T IR & )
Company during the year

— Basic (HK cents) — AR (B 33 29.93 28.59
— Diluted (HK cents) — 858 (Bl) 33 29.88 28.54
Dividends % 8. 34 38,189 38,122

The notes on pages 71 to 183 are an integral part of these FIVNEIBE M RGEETBRER —HBn -

consolidated financial statements.
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~onsolidated Sta o C hensive |
FaETEBRAR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZE=ZZ—NF=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—F-mE —T—=
Note HK$’000 HK$' 000
B 5 FHT FET
Profit for the year F Wit F 80,909 77,453
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: H it & &E (B#E), N :
ltems that may be reclassified to AgEEHHEE
profit or loss: BmZER :
Exchange differences arising on B INIT B A A
translation of foreign subsidiaries FTEEIER =58 (4,348) 2,527
Release of fair value gain upon & [B1 A] 6 & B 7
redemption of available-for-sale BERSHRAFERE
financial asset (2,958) =
Fair value gain on available-for-sale ] fif & B 75 B E HY
financial asset N ER S 7,099 1,644
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FREM 2T (EE),/
for the year, net of tax WA - kR IR (207) 4,171
Total comprehensive income for FNEEBRNERE
the year 80,702 81,624
Attributable to: BB
Owners of the Company PIN/NEIE7Z =N 81,280 82,012
Non-controlling interests FE 12 ) 1 2 (578) (388)
80,702 81,624

The notes on pages 71 to 183 are an integral part of these  $71E183B 2 Mt AR A P IEHREK —2H °
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE—-Z—NF=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ANRHEEANER
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling
Capital reserves earnings interests Total
S H it it RERF FEBEER BH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TAT TAT TRT TAT

Balance at 1 April 2012 RZE—-Z%&

MA—Hz#&% 27,229 115,499 294 644 (166) 437,206
Profit/(loss) for the year EREF,/ (Eﬂa) = = 77,841 (388) 77,453
Exchange difference arising on BEFINE R

translation of foreign subsidiaries Pﬁ&i[ﬁ%%&i - 2,527 = = 2,527
Fair value gain on available-for-sale  AIftHH&HEEE 2

financial asset NEEYE = 1,644 - = 1,644
Total comprehensive income 2HERNEHR - 4,171 77,841 (388) 81,624
Transactions with owners: HEFAZENRS:

Employee share option scheme: EEERETE:

Value of employee services EEREZEE = 164 - - 164
Dividends paid 2R E - - (46,290) - (46,290)
Balance at 31 March 2013 RZIE—=4

ZR=t—-Hz&#% 27,229 119,834 326,195 (554) 472,704
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREF (Eﬂ% ) - - 81,487 (578) 80,909
Exchange difference arising on BEFINB A

translation of foreign subsidiaries Pﬁ%i[ﬁ%%ﬁ = (4,348) - - (4,348)
Release of fair value gain upon REE A SR EEE

redemption of available-for-sale KERATEKR

financial asset - (2,958) - - (2,958)
Fair value gain on an available-for-sale A it i & B 5 B & 2

financial asset A EdE - 7,099 - - 7,099
Total comprehensive income SHBNEE - (207) 81,487 (578) 80,702
Transactions with owners: HBEBAZENZ S
Employee share option scheme: EERRETE: - 521 - = 521

Value of employee services EERBEE
Dividends paid Bk E - - (35,398) - (35,398)
Balance at 31 March 2014 RIFE-—NF

=R=+t—-Hz##% 27,229 120,148 372,284 (1,132) 518,529

The notes on pages 71 to 183 are an integral part of these  Z71F183H 2 Wit B4R A MBHRE — 30 °
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZE—-Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—F-mE —T—=
Note HK$’000 HK$' 000
B 5 FHT FET
Cash flows from operating activities BEEHZHRERE
Cash generated from operations KEEBEE RS 36 73,791 121,390
Interest paid EARFE (2,371) (2,425)
Hong Kong profits tax paid =EN] %c/% MIFHR (5,994) (11,380)
Mainland Chinese corporate BB EMEH
income tax paid (882) (2,152)
Net cash generated from operating &L HEELS 2R B5E
activities 64,544 105,433
Cash flows from investing activities REFEZHERE
Additions of property, plant and REWME BWERHK
equipment (98,543) (14,883)
Deposits paid for property, plantand ¥1% [ E K& & E 2
equipment [RENE & (852) -
Purchase of land use rights BEE b {6 - (53,767)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE MWMEMREZ
plant and equipment FT 15 3k 18 36 558 24
Deposits received from disposals of — H& i 2 B Wik &
land - 17,595
Retirement of financial assets at fair ~ #REEIZ A F(E
value through profit or loss AABE B EE 6,375 7,762
Redemption of available-for-sale Bor it ENFEE
financial asset 3,875 -
Retirement of bonds investments WEEHFEE 1,428 5,163
Increase in interest in an associate A —fEE#E QA Z SN (576) (1,000)
Interest received B U F B 4,049 4,301
Acquisition of remaining equity WE—HEELEZHT
interest of a joint venture, &% #E - 0Bk B W EE
net of cash acquired He 40 - 3,302
Net cash used in investing activites & & EENFTH 2R & /858 (83,686) (31,503)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
REREMER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HE-Z—NF=A=+—HItFE

2014 2013
—FT-mE —T—=
Note HK$’000 HK$' 000
B 5T FExT FET
Cash flows from financing activities FAZEEFBIZHEFRE
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITERATEHIE 90,000 185,000
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER (106,930) (114,380)
Dividends paid BEAKRE (35,398) (46,290)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BREES (FFA) Bz
financing activities HEFH (52,328) 24,330
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and R& RIREEEY
cash equivalents (R ) /38 hniF 58 (71,470) 98,260
Effect of changes in foreign &R G E) &
exchange rates (2,751) 1,406
Cash and cash equivalents, ReMASEEY F1)
beginning of year 243,625 143,959
Cash and cash equivalents, ReMASEEY TR
end of year 169,404 243,625

The notes on pages 71 to 183 are an integral part of these ~ F71Z183H 2 it B4 A MERER —3 5 -
consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Suga International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in Bermuda on 28 September 2001.
The Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 18 September 2002.

The Company is an investment holding company.
The Company and its subsidiaries (together, “the
Group”) are principally engaged in the research and
development, manufacturing and sales of electronic
products, moulds and plastic products. The Group has
operations mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macao.

The address of the Company’'s registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.
These financial statements were approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 25 June 2014.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basis and principal accounting policies applied
in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied for all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

B 15 R 2R P vt

— &R

EEBEREEERAR (RAAR DR
EE—FNAA-T/\BEBREZEMKL
RERRBRAR - ARRKRHA-FE
“FAATN\BRETEHARIMER
A ([HRpr)) £ e

ARRARBIREZER AT - AR A R EHK
BAR (E[AKE)EEREETE
m REANBBERMANFE BER
HEXK - AEEXBIBLNES &
B8 K R

ANRA A 2Tt E &Gz A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda °

FREEAN REVBHREAETHE
N2 - R -_F-—NFA-_tHHA &
EZeHETEZEMBHREK -

EZEFHERBE

BN EHEEMBRRAKAEERTE
A BREINWT BB BERAEIN It
ERRRIBEE2RFEHEREM-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R MY A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”). They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the
inclusion at fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative financial instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 4.

(@) The following new standards, amendments
to standards and interpretations are
mandatory for the Group’s financial year
beginning on or after 1 April 2013 and have
been adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
(Amendment) Other Comprehensive
Income
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
(Amendment)

HKAS 27 (2011)  Separate Financial
Statements

2 EEZEFBRBE 2

2.1 mEEE
REEMEGRE M BHREIIIBRERSH
BmEER (BT ERELEL])
R o W BARE M E MR IRBE LA
REFERE  WHLET AR &S0
BEEREBEAFELRAEBRE M
BEERNKAE (BETESRT
B) 2 AFEM FLAMERT ©

RIEEE I 75 3RS 2 Rl AR B B 7%
RBERETHRE A -EEE
RERAEE S BRKRAFED
HIE o K 2 E T AR SR 2 8
BAS Y R GRAEVHHREABEKX
Z R R E 2 BRSO MY FE A EE -

(@) LATHETEAEBIRREE
IR AEER _—_E—=FmA—
B B 46 2 B IR 4F [ 58 Il A5 -
YERRUZEGEMERE
B BR 4 ©

N|

Bpgstes
F15%
(EFTA)

AEeE  EERF
£19%

(5T K)

BReEN  BUNBRE
Fo7%

(Z2——F)

HRERE 2

B

Ho &
P

]

<
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEGRBRME#®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 MBEE (&)
(@) (Continued) (@ (#&)
HKAS 28 (2011)  Investments in Associates EHEEN REERERAED
and Joint Ventures F85% EMEE
(Z2—%)
HKFRS 1 Government Loans EAMBHRE BNEE
(Amendment) i
(BETA)
HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting BAMBRE RE-HENEEE
(Amendment) Financial Assets and ERIETH REBAE
Financial Liabilities CHES)
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial EANBRE FeMBEX
Statements EHIE 105
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements FEMBRE HBARH
ERIE11%
HKFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in BEMERE REAMTBEROR
Other Entities ERIF125; B
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement BAMBRE ATEHE
ERE135
Amendments to  Consolidated Financial FhEMBRE HAVERER BHAT
HKFRS 10, Statements, Joint LHIEI0NR:  HRREtEBE
HKFRS 11 and  Arrangements and EEMBERE HNEE:BEME
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in ERF1I%R 5
Other Entities: Transition BEMBRE
Guidance LRI E 125
ZEFT
HK (IFRIC) - Stripping Costs in the 5 (BRME BRBESEEHNH
Int 20 Production Phase of a REREZE  BAA
Surface Mine 2)-2E
E205
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements BERBMBHRELERFEIORLEA VI
provides additional guidance on the determination R BIE G 2 BRI INESI o
of control. Under HKFRS 10, the Group controls BIEE BT BEHRELEREION B
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has SEAXNEELEERBMAS Y
rights to, variable returns from its involvement o BB EREHER
with the entity and has the ability to affect those N EZF R MAF - B ARS BT Hl5%
returns through its power over the entity. The BER -AEEERRENEPRAST
Group has applied HKFRS 10 retrospectively B EERFEI05 B AEE
in accordance with the standard which had no CEBERUBERRNYEERNTZLE-

significant impact on the results and financial
position of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R Y A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The adoption of the above new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretation
has had no material effect on the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements, except
for certain revised disclosures in respect of
HKAS1(Amendment) and HKFRS 13.

(b) The following new standards, amendments
to standards and interpretation have been
issued but are not effective for the financial

2.1

2 EZERBRBE 2

REBLEE (&)
B4y bt sraT £R) R R R ER]
HREZ SV BRRITEAMNEAF
Z AT B ERELR (&
BN RBEAMBHREERFEIZHRZ
AT IHERINo

(b) AR ERER] Rk
EEMGER_T—=FHA—
Bk &AM REE R

year beginning on or after 1 April 2013 and

have not been early adopted by the Group:

R AN BN LR RN -

Effective for the
accounting period
beginning on or after

HHRRIT B

ZERBNEEHE

HKAS 19 (Amendment) Defined Benefit Plans: Employee 1 July 2014
Contribution

ERGERIFEINR RERMNGTE : BEMHRK —FE-AFtHA—H

CCHEN),
HKAS 32 (Amendment)

BRI EERFEI255
CCHEN),
HKAS 36 (Amendment)

BB SR E365
CCHEN),
HKAS 39 (Amendment)

BB G ERIE395%
(IBFT )

HKFRS 9

BB S 2RI

Additions to HKFRS 9

BB %M EERIER
2

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

HEMBEERMBRE

Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets

FEREEZ WO ENE

Novation of Derivatives and

Continuation of Hedge Accounting
THETAEZEBREHAGHECTE

Financial Instruments
SR T HE

Financial Instruments — Financial Liabilities

EMIA-MKEE

1 January 2014
—E-mF—-H—H
1 January 2014
—E-mF—-H—H
1 January 2014
—E-mF—-H—H
Not yet determined

R AR

Not yet determined
EEN: S
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By N
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EECTHHEREBE &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 BREXE (&)

(b) (Continued)

(b) (&

Effective for the
accounting period
beginning on or after
BARUTHABASR
Z R g HI R

Amendments to HKFRS 7

and HKFRS 9 Transition Disclosures
BB RS 2R 7B 1 o 2 R S99 2 58

FBIRRBEANEHRE AR A B RGRE M R
ERIEOSR 2 &5

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011)

BB GHRELEL #
F109% - BEAN B |mE
ERIFI12E R BB G
AR 275
—E——F)2EF]

HKFRS 14

Investment Entities

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

1 January 2015

—E-hF—H—H

1 January 2014

—F-mE-A-8

1 January 2016

BEMBHMELERE145% EERTKRAE —T-R¥-HA—H
HK (IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies 1 January 2014
% (BERMBHmERE #&F —T-HE—-HF—H
ZEg) REF2%R
HKFRSs (Amendment) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 1 July 2014
2010-2012 Cycle
ERTBHmEEL ERUBHRELEN T —TFE —E-MF+LHA—H
(BRI A) “E-—FRBCFENE
HKFRSs (Amendment) Improvements to HKFRSs 1 July 2014
2011-2013 Cycle
BB s £R ERENBRELEN T ——FF —T-HELHA—H
(BETA) —T=FREAZNE

Management is in the process of making
an assessment of the likely impact of these
changes but is not yet in a position to state
whether any substantial changes to the
Group’s significant accounting policies and/
or the presentation of its financial statements
will result.

ok 8y

EEEREMNAZFTEDN AR
& W REREEEEENAEE
MEZEBERNE HEMBRE
MR IREMERES -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R MY A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION
(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

2 EEg

n/\

BRI E (&

aRE

(@) Bt/ 2=
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FIRE AR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EECTHHEREBE &)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued) (a)

22 #REKRE (&)
MR (&)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as
a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners in
their capacity as owners. The difference
between the fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

X756 B 0 BE BUETT - AJIR
BHERRHE ZREES 2K
BRYER R ZREESEN
AERNBEBHRZATE:
BREMGEMEL ZEAK
SRR RERER

AEEKEZNERRERE
R BB R T ERER -
BREEXRENIARER
FENHRZEH REFES
FHERIEIGR MR E  EE R
FEREREMEE RS E
RN BAEaNNARE
TEHME H2RNEERE
EEB AR

7R 6% [ 4 B B R R Il 1 A
T TEHKREZHENRS
ARBEGER 5 —BNEES A
NEERBEBEAENDETH
RS NERKENRF
18 5248 B8 P& 1 AT AR R BT /8 12 )
FEERAENERCESE
a5 o [A) FE 12 1A 2 B R B RO
BB TSk s T
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R Y A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is
re-measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Inter-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continued)
(b) Separate financial statements

(c)

(Continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which
the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor's share
of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. The Group’s investment
in an associate includes goodwill identified
on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate
is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.
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B 5 R MY A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continued)
(c) Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit
or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting
date whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as
the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of profit/(loss) of an associate’ in the
consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream
and downstream transactions between the
group and its associate are recognised in
the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
The amounts reported by associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies
adopted by the Group.

Gains and losses on dilution of equity
interests in associates are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FIRE AR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continued)
(d) Joint arrangements

2 EEGHHREE @)

22 #AKRAE (&)
(d) BiE=H

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to its
joint arrangement as of 1 January 2013.
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on
the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor. The Group has assessed the nature
of its joint arrangement and determined
them to be joint venture. Joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting,
interests in joint ventures are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group's share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. When the
Group’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint
venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the joint venture),
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its joint venture is eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in the
joint venture. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint venture have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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B 5 R MY A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.3 SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the
Executive Directors collectively who make strategic
decisions.

2.4

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation
currency

Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$),
which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

2.4
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FIRE AR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

2 EZEFBRBE &2

24 SNEBE (&)

(Continued)

(c) Group companies (c) SEEETAR
The results and financial position of all SEETRAINEEEHEZ R
the group entities (none of which has the BB TRER (2B
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) BREECE®) 2 RE R

that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R MY A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2 EEGHHREE @)

25 W% BENMKE

Leasehold land interests classified as finance
leases and all other property, plant and equipment
are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are charged
to the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land whereas classified as finance
leases commence amortisation from the time
when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land
classified as finance lease and depreciation of
other assets are calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate costs less residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land whereas 38 years
classified as finance leases

Buildings 35-40 years

Leasehold improvements 5-10 years

Plant and machinery 5 years

Furniture and equipment 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes all
attributable costs of bringing the asset to working
condition for its intended use. This includes direct
costs of construction as well as interest expense
capitalised during the period of construction and
installation. Capitalisation of these costs will cease
and the construction in progress is transferred
to appropriate categories within property, plant
and equipment when the construction activities
necessary to prepare the assets for their intended
use are completed. No depreciation is provided in
respect of construction in progress.

LAND USE RIGHTS

Land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Land use rights are amortised using the straight-
line method over the period of the land use rights.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Contractual customer relationship acquired in
a business combination is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. The contractual
customer relationship has a finite useful life and
is subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the expected life of the
customer relationship of five years.

GOODWILL

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identified net
assets acquired. Goodwill is recognised initially at
fair value and subsequent at cost less provisions
for impairment. If a deficit arises, it is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Notes to the Financial Statements

FIRE AR

2 EZEFBRBE &2

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

ERNEVEINE S RE D)

HE 2 Ba R BAMEHRIAERKE
BEE  NiRE Wk AR -

R TIETIARAN R Rt & B
R-ABREAEKEESSELTE
PRS2 FEAA AN © It B FE B 2
EEAARRERLZRAREETE
A2 B BT AT BEEE
Ui B EE RERTE AR 25K
A2 BN ERIE WKERZTIE
BRME BB MREEERR -
ERTRBAERE

T i AE

318 PR AR AR A AR 2= R AT 8
EEIED R - T fE REIRE AR
AL PR B S o

BVEE

REBEHFPURBZEOEFHR
TIR IR B EIR AP ERER - A OE
FREREBREEAERAFHRER
BARANR Rt B HDBR - BV IRE
PRAEZBMFRLFRAERA

=5
al = °

L
KWENMBAREARBERIEEEE
RE RBEWEF 2 EAFEERER
TR MU B 5 2 (] S AT AR A
ZWEBBHATEBEMKEZE
BRIEEFEC A TTEZEE B8
TN T EER - W BB IRK AR
BB - W IR AL AR
U R R AFERR o

EEEREEAR AR | 2013/14F®

85




86

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.8

2.9

GOODWILL (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”),
or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit
or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

IMPAIRMENT OF INVESTMENTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES, JOINT
ARRANGEMENTS AND OTHER NON-
FINANCIAL ASSETS

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for
example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation
and are tested at least annually for impairment.
Otherwise, assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets
in the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purposes for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(i)

(1)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are
classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as hedges. Assets
in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They
are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date which are
classified as non-current assets. Loans
and receivables comprise trade and
other receivables, bonds investments
and cash and cash equivalents in the
balance sheets (Note 2.12 and 2.13).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
(a) Classification (Continued)

(ili) ~ Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the
end of the reporting period.

(b) Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date
— the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the consolidated income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the “financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss” category
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they arise.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Recognition and measurement
(Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary
and non-monetary securities classified as
available for sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are included in the consolidated income
statement.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are recognised only
if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event
(or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Notes to the Financial Statements

FIRE AR IR

2 EEGSHHRBME &)

210 B EE (&)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BRRFE (#)

PERAHLEZEB NS
BESZ N FEZS IR EM
2EBRAPHER

ENEAAHLENESEL
SR ER  ERET RN R
AP AP EARIALZA KA R
WO

mMEEMIA
ERRTEAANTENAIEEE
BREHE LEBERFEE
EREEIAREREENGEE
BER MKEEERABAE
HEH TEEERBERBS
H%5

5 EERE
AEBNERSHRGEERF
MRESAEMNEBEERTM
BEEX—HEMBEELER
E-HFERTBIEBEERARE
REREERBELE-REAER
EHETHREE(BEREE
H]) BRAREMEZ (3K
%% ) BIREREZIARZAM
BEEMARRESREBK
ZEE AV GEESLM
BB ERRRERRERRE -

EEEREEAR AR | 2013/14F®

89




90

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R Y A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
(d) Impairment of financial assets

(Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The asset's carrying
amount is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor's credit rating),
the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For equity
investments classified as available for sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in
the separate consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the
separate consolidated income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through
the separate consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less.

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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B 5 R Y A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.15

2.16

2.17

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and
other payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

BORROWINGS

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

BORROWING COSTS

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17

2.18

BORROWING COSTS (Continued)

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, its subsidiaries and its
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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B 5 R Y A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

2 EEGHHREE @)

218 BN RIEREFT 1SR (&)

(Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FIRE AR IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(a) Pension obligations

2 EZERBRBE 2

219 EERA
(a) BAEEE

The Group operates a number of defined
contribution pension schemes for its
employees. The pension plans are funded
by payments from employees and by
the Group. The Group's contributions to
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
established under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are
expensed as incurred. The assets are
held separately from those of the Group
and managed by related independent
professional fund managers.

For employees in Mainland China, the Group
contributes on a monthly basis to various
defined contribution retirement benefit
plans organised by relevant municipal
and provincial governments based on
specified percentages of the relevant
employees’ monthly salaries. The municipal
and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations
of all existing and future retired employees
under these plans and the Group has
no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as
incurred.
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B 5 R Y A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.19 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)
(b) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which
the entity receives services from employees
as consideration for equity instruments
(options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of
the options granted:

i) including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s
share price);

i)  excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

iii) including the impact of any non-
vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service
conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. In
addition, in some circumstances employees
may provide services in advance of the grant
date and therefore the grant date fair value
is estimated for the purposes of recognising
the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant
date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FIRERAR IR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)
(b) Share-based compensation

2 EZEFBRBE 2

219 BE®A (&)
(b) REp+5XEREM (47)

(Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the
group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on
the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the
income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the
company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium.

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investments in subsidiaries
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19

2.20

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employees’ entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employees’ entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

(d) Other benefits

Other directors’ and employees’ obligations
are recorded as a liability and charged to
the consolidated income statement when
the Group is contractually obliged or when
there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations is small.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20

2.21

2.22

PROVISIONS (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not
recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods in the ordinary course of the Group's
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.
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B 5 R Y A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.22 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and when specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group’s activities as described
below. The Group bases its estimates on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics
of each arrangement.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sales of goods

The group manufactures and sells a range
of electronic, moulds and plastic products
in the wholesale market. Sales of goods
are recognised when a group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products, the
amount of sales can be reliably measured
and it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entities.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loans
is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 LEASES

(a)

(b)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor), including upfront payment made
for leasehold land and land use rights,
are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’'s commencement at the lower of
the fair value of the leased property and
the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance charges
so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance lease balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in current
and non-current borrowings. The interest
element of the finance cost is recognised
in the consolidated income statement over
the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24

2.25

2.26

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

A financial guarantee (a kind of insurance
contract) is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. The Group does not recognise
liabilities for financial guarantee at inception, but
performs a liability adequacy test at each reporting
date by comparing its net liability regarding the
financial guarantee with the amount that would
be required if the financial guarantee would result
in a present legal or constructive obligation. If the
liability is less than its present legal or constructive
obligation amount, the entire difference is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
immediately.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivative financial instruments are initially
measured at fair value on the date the derivative
contracts are entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair values. The method of
recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedged
instrument, and if so, the nature of item being
hedged.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had not
designated any derivatives as hedging
instruments. Changes in fair values of derivatives
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are being
included in the consolidated income statement as
“other gains, net”.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders in case of final dividend
and the Company’s directors in case of interim
dividend.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s performance.

(i)

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong
and Mainland China and its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, US dollars (“US$”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”). Foreign currency risk arises
when future commercial transactions
or recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not an
entity’s functional currency. As Hong Kong
dollars are pegged against US dollars,
management considers that the Group is
mainly exposed to foreign currency risk with
respect to RMB. Management monitors
foreign currency exchange exposure and
will take measures to minimise the currency
translation risk. As at 31 March 2014,
apart from certain non-deliverable forward
foreign exchange contracts entered into
with commercial banks which were stated
at fair value, the Group has not used any
financial instruments to hedge against
foreign currency risk. The exchange rate
of RMB to foreign currencies and the
remittance of RMB funds out of Mainland
China is subject to the rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the Mainland Chinese Government.

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, if both
Hong Kong dollars and US dollars had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for each year would
have changed mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies of the relevant group
companies, as follows.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

3 MHERE

=8 (2)

31 MBRBEZE &)

Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) SMNERB (&)
2014 2013
—EF-lE —E—=%F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Post-tax profit increase/ Br R 1% 05 g 0,
(decrease) ORA)
— Strengthen 5% —F1E5% (159) 2,959
— Weakened 5% — B2 {E5% 159 (2,959)
Cash flow and fair value interest (ii)

rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates as the
Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for the loan receivable and
cash and cash equivalents, details of
which are disclosed in Notes 17 and 19,
respectively.

The Group's interest rate risk primarily
relates to its bank borrowings. Borrowings
obtained at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group
currently does not hedge its interest rate
risk. However, management monitors the
related interest rate risk exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant interest
rate risk exposure should the need arise.
The interest rates and terms of repayment of
borrowings are disclosed in Note 21.

The Group has no fixed interest rate
borrowings. Therefore it does not have any
fair value interest rate risk.

At 31 March 2014 and 2013, if the interest
rates on bank borrowings had been 50
basis points higher/lower than the prevailing
interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$357,000 (2013:
HK$428,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of higher/lower interest expense on
floating rate bank borrowings.
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FIRERAR IR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3 MBEKRER &)

31 MBEREER#)
(iii) 15 & Bk

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The
Group’s financial assets are trade and other
receivables, derivative financial instruments
and cash at banks. The amounts of those
assets stated in the consolidated balance
sheet represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.

The Group’s credit risk is concentrated on
a number of major and long established
customers. Trade receivables from the top
five customers amounted to approximately
55% (2013: 57%) of the Group’s total
trade receivables. The Group has policies
in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with appropriate credit histories
and to limit the amount of credit exposure to
any individual customer. The Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivable at each balance sheet date
to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. The
Group’s past experience in collection of
trade receivables falls within the recorded
allowances. In order to minimise credit risk
to the Group, the Group has certain non-
recourse factoring arrangements with banks
to cover the credit risk.
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B 5 R Y A

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

The credit risk on cash at banks is limited
because the counterparties are banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. Transactions in
relation to derivative financial instruments,
if any, are only carried out with financial
institutions of high reputation. The Group
has policies that limit the amount of credit
exposure to any one financial institution.

For loans and receivables, amounts due
from an associate and subsidiaries, the
Group regularly monitors the financial
positions of these companies/counterparties
to assess their recoverability.

No credit limits were exceeded during the
reporting period, and management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by
these counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities. The Group manages its
liquidity risk by controlling the level of
inventories, closely monitoring the turnover
days of receivables, monitoring its working
capital requirements and keeping credit
lines available.

3 HBERERE &)

3.1 MBRBREE (&)
(iii) 1F &R b ()

(iv)
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FIRERAR IR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3 MBEKRER &)

31 MBEREER#)
(iv) RENVE G ER (47

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Management monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s bank facilities and cash and
cash equivalents on the basis of expected
cash flows.

The table below analyses the Group's
non-derivative financial liabilities and net-
settled derivative financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date
to the contractual maturity date. Derivative
financial liabilities are included in the
analysis if their contractual maturities are

EEERBHRSAE/E
BE-ERASERTHENANR
Be MR EEBMIREFR
Al e

NRBRASEZIFITEMF
B EMRZFREAEEE 20TE
MBBaEIN BRNEERRE
EHRHBERBRTHRID R
BB -HITEMBE
BZEORHREHTHESR
EREEBEZ MEROFP
AABBITENBRBE - RN

RBESRABARMERS

essential for an understanding of the timing

of the cash flows. The amounts disclosed in ME ©
the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows.
Group AEE
Less than Between Between Over
1year 1and2years 2and5 years 5 years Total
PR—F —-EmE WELE BRLE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FTET FERT FTERT FiERx
31 March 2014 —E-mE
=B=+—-H
Trade payables FEf & 5 3R &K 171,749 - - - 171,749
Other payablesand ~ HittEfHER
accruals B:ER 28,144 - - - 28,144
Borrowings e 38,740 36,188 9,000 3,717 87,645
Net settled Derivative R4 Efi4
financial instruments 4@ IE 2,398 - - - 2,398
241,031 36,188 9,000 3,717 289,936
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BTSRRI st
3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMBEREIRE &)
(Continued)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.1 MBRBREE (&)
(v) RBEZER (4)

108

Group (Continued) AEM (E&)
Less than Between Between Over
lyear 1and2years 2andb5 years 5 years Total
PR—F —EWEF MERF AR F CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT THT THT THT
31 March 2013 —F-Z=f
=ZA=+—H
Trade payables BT E S RN 121,938 = = - 121,938
Other payables and Hitt R mER
accruals st E A 24,784 = = = 24,784
Borrowings fBE 17,245 38,582 41,822 6,646 104,295
163,967 38,582 41,822 6,646 251,017
Company VNN
Less than Between Between Over
lyear 1and2years 2and5 years 5 years Total
PR—% —-EZmME MELE BEELE Chl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiER TR TR TR
31 March 2014 —E-MNE
=B=+—H
Other payables and ~ H it B HER
accruals &R 3,082 - - - 3,082
31 March 2013 “E-=F
ZA=+—H
Other payables H eI 7IE R
and accruals e & 2,391 - - - 2,391
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
borrowings divided by total equity as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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32 BEAREREE
AEEEREARZ BRRREREE
BESIAEICE - T AR A 2R [ e
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RERFLAHABERER  AREXE
ABARRIKN 2B S5 BITH
s EEE  LOREETR -

AEEREEABHLRERER It
WERUEERERGREERER
PR ATH -

2014 2013

—_E—MEF —_Eg—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Total bank borrowings RITEEBE 85,529 102,459
Total equity T AR 518,529 472,704
Gearing ratio EERAELE 16.5% 21.7%
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BTSSR MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MHBERERE#)
(Continued)
3.3 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION 3.3 ATFEME

The table below analyses the group’s financial TRAEAEER=ZZE—NE=H

assets and liabilities carried at fair value as at 31 =+ —HEAFEARZVKEE

March 2014 by level of the inputs to valuation FABERFAEAFEMBZHEER

techniques used to measure fair value. Such ELZBABBREREL 2T - %E

inputs are categorised into three levels within a BASBRATEERRETD B

fair value hierarchy as follows: BATR = &l [ 4% -

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets e REEENBERERMSLZ
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1). WE(REAR) (B—4) -

e Inputs other than quoted prices included e WELININZHAEB BEE—
within level 1 that are observable for the Bz A EE (AMREERE) HE
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as B (MBHERGBL)AECE
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from EXBE(EZR) -
prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not o IWIELATDRIE THIZ &R (B
based on observable market data (that is, AAEZBMAE) REEZEE
unobservable inputs) (level 3). SBERABE(E=HR) -

The following table presents the Group’s financial TREVWASEER=_ZT—HER=

assets and liabilities that are measured at fair T—=F=ZA=1+—BEBRAFET

value at 31 March 2014 and 2013: EYUBEERBE:

2014 —E-ms

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—R -t F=H aEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FTERT FTERT FTERT
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale financial [t HEMEE E
asset - - 7,547 7,547
Financial assets at fair value &2 F (B AEZ
through profit or loss LB EE 1,279 - - 1,279
Derivative financial TEemITE
instruments - 145 - 145

Total Assets BEHE 1,279 145 7,547 8,971

Liabilities =L

Derivative financial PTEEFTA

instruments - 2,398 - 2,398
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BF 7 SRR M 5
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEAKRER &)
(Continued)
3.3 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued) 3.3 AFEME (F
2013 —T—=4F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—H =M FE=H =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET FHBT FET
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale AfHE
financial asset MBEE - - 4,323 4,323
Financial assets at fair value ¥ A F{ELABR
through profit or loss ZHEEE 7,832 - = 7,832
Derivative financial TEemITE
instruments - 696 - 696
Total Assets BERE 7,832 696 4,323 12,851
There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 RER F— —R=H2ELET
during the year. BEEEH
The following table presents the changes in level TRENE=FTEREE—_Z—N
3 instruments for the year ended 31 March 2014 EN_T-—=F=ZA=+—HItF
and 2013, ErEH-
2014 2013
—E—MmE —T—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
At 1 April R A—H 4,323 2,679
Fair value gain N ER S 7,099 1,644
Redemption &[0 (3,875) -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 7,547 4,323
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B 5 R Y A

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued)

The fair values of financial instruments traded
in active markets are based on quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market
price is the current bid price. These instruments
are included in level 1 which comprise primarily
equity investments classified as trading securities
or available for sale. The Group’s listed bond
under financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss as at 31 March 2014 is level 1 financial asset
and its fair value is determined by its quoted price
in an active market.

The fair values of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market are determined
by using valuation techniques. These valuation
technigues maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little
as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to assess the fair value
of an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2. The Group’s foreign currency
exchange notes recognised as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and its derivative
financial instruments above are level 2 financial
assets or instruments and their fair values are
determined with reference to quotations provided
by various banks. The fair value of forward foreign
exchange contract is determined using forward
exchange rates at the balance sheet date, with the
resulting value discounted back to present value.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. The Group's available-for-
sale financial asset as at 31 March 2014 above
is level 3 financial asset and its fair value is
determined based on the net asset value of the
fund calculated by the fund administrator with
reference to the quoted prices in active markets of
the underlying investments of the fund.
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BE HRFERENERMSZ®R
EmEE -
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MTEANAFEMAEZBEIEGEA
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B EdiASE AL EMEEE
RERPBEE  ERFEIIRE
ESEBEA2EZESZABKRER
BN REFECESEER
BEXE-

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2013/14



CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(A) INCOME TAXES

The Group is subject to various taxes in a number
of jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectation is different from the original estimate,
such differences will impact the recognition of
deferred tax assets and income tax charges in the
period in which such estimate is changed.
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B 5 R Y A

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(B)

ESTIMATED WRITE-DOWNS OF
INVENTORIES TO NET REALISABLE
VALUE

The Group writes down inventories to net
realisable value based on an assessment of
the realisability of inventories. Write-downs of
inventories are recorded where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised. The identification of write-downs
requires the use of judgement and estimates.
These estimates are based on the correct market
condition and the historical experience of selling
prices of similar nature. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of
inventories and write-downs of inventories in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

ESTIMATED PROVISION FOR
IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE RECEIVABLES
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group makes provision for impairment of
trade receivables and other receivables based
on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables and other receivables. Provisions are
applied to trade receivables and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible.
For trade receivables, the assessment is based
on the credit history of its customers and the
current market condition, and requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of trade
receivables and impairment is recognised in the
year in which such estimate has been changed.
For other receivables, the provision was made by
reference to the difference between the carrying
amount of the other receivables and the present
value of estimated future cash flows.

4 EEGTFTHEHAE &)

(C)
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(D)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS — SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS

The determination of the fair value of the share
options granted requires estimates in determining,
among others, the expected volatility of the
share price, the expected dividend yield, the
risk-free interest rate for the life of the option,
and the number of options that are expected
to become exercisable as stated in Note 24.
Where the outcome of the number of options
that are exercisable is different, such difference
will impact the consolidated income statement in
the subsequent remaining vested period of the
relevant share options.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of financial assets and derivative
financial instruments that are traded in an active
market are determined by the quoted market
prices.

For the fair values of financial assets and
derivative financial instruments not traded in an
active market, the Group would use the quoted
price provided by counterparty to estimate the
fair values. The methodologies, models and
assumptions used in valuing these financial
assets and derivative financial instruments require
judgement by management which are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date. For further details refer to
section 3.3 above.

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The Group tests annually whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment, in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.9.
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations prepared on the basis of
management’'s assumptions and estimates
(Note 2.9). These calculations require the use of
estimates.
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B 5 R Y A

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(G)

ESTIMATED USEFUL LIVES AND
ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group amortises its intangible assets with
finite useful lives on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives
reflect the management’s estimates of the periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these intangible assets.
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-
line basis over a period of five years. The Group
tests whether the intangible assets have suffered
any impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable in according
with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.7.
The recoverable amounts of the intangible assets
have been determined as the higher of its value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell, i.e.
the amount for which the asset could be sold
between knowledgeable and willing parties, net of
estimated costs of disposal. These require the use
of estimates.

ESTIMATED USEFUL LIVES OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group's property, plant and equipment,
and land use rights have been depreciated or
amortised based on their estimated useful lives
and estimated residual values. Management has
reviewed the estimated useful lives and considers
they are appropriate. These estimates are based
on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment and land
use rights of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response
to market conditions. Management will increase
the depreciation and amortization charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives or it will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and
therefore depreciation and amortisation expense
in the future periods.

4 EEGTFTHEHAE &)

(G)

(H)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the Executive Directors of the Group (collectively
referred to as the “CODM”) that make strategic
decisions. The CODM reviews the internal reporting of
the Group in order to assess performance and allocate
resources.

The CODM considers the business from a product
perspective and assesses separately the performance of
electronic products, and moulds and plastics products.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of the results of
reportable segments. Finance income and costs,
corporate income and expenses, fair value gain/(loss) of
financial assets and share of loss of an associate are not
included in the results for each operating segment that
are reviewed by the CODM. Other information provided
to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the financial statements.

Revenue from external customers is shown after
elimination of inter-segment revenue. Sales between
segments are carried out at mutually agreed terms.
The revenue from external parties reported to CODM
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement.

Assets of reportable segments exclude deferred income
tax assets, tax recoverable, available-for-sale financial
assets, bond investments, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loan receivables, interests
in associates and corporate assets, all of which are
managed on a central basis. Liabilities of reportable
segments exclude current and deferred income tax
liabilities and corporate liabilities. These are part of
the reconciliation to total balance sheet assets and
liabilities.
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B 75 3R 2R T 5
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 5 EER®
The segment information provided to the CODM for REBEE—T " NERER_FE—=F=A
the reportable segments for the years ended 31 March =+ HBLEFEEFRHPEMEZEERE
2014 and 2013 is as follows: AREZ S EERDT :
2014
—F-mE
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products Elimination Total
HAR
ETER BRBER EaF | &
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Revenue Wz
Revenue from external customers — JMNEEFEYas 1,216,396 28,432 - 1,244,828
Inter-segment revenue Rl - 12,300 (12,300) -
1,216,396 40,732 (12,300) 1,244,828
Results of reportable segments A 2WmnEEE 94,806 (2,583) - 92,223
A reconciliation of results of A ERDEEER
reportable segments to profit FRE 2 # R
for the year is as follows: R
Results of reportable segments OERDEHEE 92,223
Unallocated expenses, net KR 558 (2,595)
Other income Hr A 411
Other gains, net Hiplss  F58 622
Operating profit 8 Al 90,661
Finance income BhE WA 4,049
Finance costs &R A (2,371)
Share of loss of an associate FE(E —FEHE & A A
BB (742)
Profit before income tax 3% BT 45250 B g A 91,597
Income tax expense Fris i S (10,688)
Profit for the year F R 7 80,909
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B 7SR R N o
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEER @
2014
—E—MmE
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products Unallocated Total
BER
EFER BB ER ROER &5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#Ex TF#ExT F#ET TF#ET
Other segment information HithnEE R
Depreciation on property, e Y
plant and equipment e 9,130 1,769 3,169 14,068
Amortisation of intangible asset BB E 5,154 - - 5,154
Amortisation of land use rights -+ 3 {50 FA A 5 1,121 57 80 1,258
Additions to non-current assets FERBEEZIRE
(other than interest in (R —FEH & DA
an associate, financial assets and 2 1Ex B EE
deferred tax assets) MBERIAE =
BR4h) 98,353 66 124 98,543
Income tax expense Fris®i X 10,739 (14) (37) 10,688
2013
—F—=
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products prgducts Elimination Total
) BAK - \
BFEm BRBE M 8 a5
HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000  HK$000
FAT TAT TAT TAT
Revenue g
Revenue from external customers 4hR 2 F Uz 1,075,368 32,120 = 1,107,488
Inter-segment revenue DRk E = 10,198 (10,198) -
1,075,368 42318 (10,198) 1,107,488
Results of reportable segments Al 2D A4 80,507 (1,924) = 78,583
A reconciliation of results of CEX: R e !
reportable segments to profit F R 2 ¥ B8R
for the year is as follows: LUl
Results of reportable segments ~ A2 WY MEEE 78,583
Unallocated expenses, net ADBEEHY FE (875)
Other income HElA 692
Other gains, net H vz - 558 3,406
Operating profit bl 81,806
Finance income BMEWA 4,301
Finance costs Bl & B A (2,425)
Share of loss of an associate DiE B E QA
B8 (865)
Profit before income tax bR P15 1 Al A 82,817
Income tax expense FTSRAX (5,364)
Profit for the year F A% - 77453
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TSR M

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

5 o¥EER#)

2013
—T—=
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products Unallocated Total
EAR
ETEM BRBEM AAER =5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET
Other segment information HihnEE R
Depreciation on property, M HE RH&E
plant and equipment e 9,595 2,141 3,181 14917
Amortisation of intangible asset B A 4,724 = = 4724
Amortisation of land use rights 356 P AR 8 849 59 80 988
Additions to non-current assets FRBEELRE
(other than interest in an (R —MEHE A A
associate, financial assets and Z2KEss BIBEE
deferred tax assets) MBEEFRBHEE
BRIN) 100,574 271 290 101,135
Income tax expense FTis RS 6,090 (398) (328) 5,364
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The segment assets and segment liabilities as at 31
March and the reconciliation to the total assets and total

liabilities are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

A TS R BT

nEER (#)
M=A=+—BAEEER

DREEN

BEMAENRABHEBYRKRNOT

2014
—E—mE
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products Total
HAR
EFER WBER &t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&ET F#&ET
Segment assets PDEEE 724,237 30,394 754,631
Deferred income tax assets BIEFSHEE 2,811
Tax recoverable A Y 5] 7 18 257
Unallocated: ROME:
Property, plant and equipment ¥ % - BB &R & 46,126
Interest in an associate R—EEE AR 2R 1,702
Loan receivable B IE 16,250
Other investments Hig & 16,537
Other unallocated assets HEMARDEEE 3,149
Total assets per consolidated — #R&EBEB BRI~
balance sheet BERE 841,463
Segment liabilities DEAE 194,674 4,524 199,198
Income tax payable FERFT SRR 12,870
Deferred income tax liabilites ~ EIEFTISH: B & 4,649
Unallocated: RoBC:
Bank borrowings RITEE 85,529
Other unallocated liabilities Hitv RO EERE 20,688
Total liabilities per consolidated #r& BE B BRI~
balance sheet BEEE 322,934
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TSR M

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

5 o¥EER#)

2013
—E-=F
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products Total
RAR
BEFEM BRBE SR &&r
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
Segment assets DEEE 616,414 35,737 652,151
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTSHEE 3,524
Tax recoverable A Ug [ 74 18 2,407
Unallocated: KoL
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - WF’%& %1 48313
Interest in an associate n—EEE A TZ%E 1,868
Long-term loan receivable K HERE SR W SR 16,575
Other investments HiwE 21,294
Other unallocated assets EmARDBEEE 9,992
Total assets per consolidated A EEABERTT~
balance sheet BEMAE 756,124
Segment liabilities DIEaE 139,428 4,691 144,119
Income tax payable FET RIS 10,885
Deferred income tax liabilities uUﬁ SHERE 5,759
Unallocated: Ro
Bank borrowings ﬁﬁfﬂjai% 102,459
Other unallocated liabilities B ARDEREE 20,198
Total liabilities per consolidated #r& BE B EXR TR
balance sheet BERE 283,420
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B F R M 5
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 5 SEER @)
The Company is domiciled in Bermuda. An analysis ARARRBREAM - AEBHE_-ZT
of the Group’s revenue from external customers by —NEN T =ZF=ZA=1+—HILtFE
country for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 RERE D 2IREFP WAL -
is as follows:
2014 2013
—T—mE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FH&T FHET
The United States of America EE 523,527 458,159
United Kingdom [ 177,372 194,017
Japan SN 276,167 233,575
PRC (including Hong Kong) FE(BERES) 126,135 119,122
Australia B 61,140 34,090
Others B} 80,487 68,525
1,244,828 1,107,488
An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets, AEEZMRE D 2IERBEE (TEFE
excluding deferred income tax assets, by geographical BIEFTISTEE) DT T
locations is as follows:
2014 2013
—F-mE —F—=
HK$’000 HK$' 000
THET FET
Hong Kong BB 88,962 108,255
Mainland China R B K B 208,808 130,656
Macao Y P 66 146
297,836 239,057
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TSR M

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2014, five (2013: four)
major customers each accounted for 10% or more
of the Group's external revenue. The revenue from
these five (2013: four) customers is attributable to
the segment of electronic products and details are as

5

EER (8

BE_ZT-ME=-A=+—HLEFE &
Z(ZE—=F NR)I2ELEHEEN
REBINBY 2R 2 10% KA EoRBZ R
2 (ZT2—=F:OR)EPHaETIRE
EfEmMOR #BWET:

follow:

2014 2013
—E—MmE —F—=

HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Customer A ZEHR 243,431 174,485
Customer B L 178,446 186,274
Customer C ZFRA 126,814 91,790
Customer D XEET 125,976 121,558
Customer E BEPIK 124,933 152,758
799,660 726,865
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has been expensed in cost of sales, and HK$6,044,000
(2013: HK$5,838,000) has been expensed in general

and administrative expenses.

B 7 SRR T o
6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 ME -BEBERZE
Group
r£H
Leasehold Furniture
Land and improve-  Plant and and Construction
buildings ments  machinery  equipment in progress Total
TR e BEE BRE
BF  WERE e # TEIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THEL THEL THEL THEL THEL
At 1 April 2012 R-B-——%
‘mA—H
Cost XA 97,611 23,277 134,721 39,025 - 294,634
Accumulated depreciation 2ENE (14566)  (20,629) (110,849)  (31,912) - (177,956)
Net book amount RHEFE 83,045 2,648 23,872 7,113 - 116,678
Year ended 31 March 2013 #HZ_-F—=4%
=A=+—H
ILEE
Opening net book amount FNEREFE 83,045 2,648 23,872 7,113 - 116,678
Additions NE - 292 5,880 1,504 7,207 14,883
Disposals & - - 3) (5) - (8)
Depreciation e (2,531) (724) (9,079) (2,583) = (14,917)
Exchange differences BEHER 201 39 424 66 = 730
Closing net book amount FREHHE 80,715 2,255 21,094 6,095 7,207 117,366
At 31 March 2013 RZIE-—Z=%
ZR=t+-H
Cost (BN 97,854 23,750 140,946 39,030 7,207 308,787
Accumulated depreciation Z2IEME (17,139)  (21,495) (119,852)  (32,935) - (191,421
Net book amount REFE 80,715 2,255 21,094 6,095 7,207 117,366
Year ended 31 March 2014 HZ-FT—M4E
ZHA=+-H
%R
Opening net book amount FHHREHE 80,715 2,255 21,094 6,095 7,207 117,366
Additions NE 475 - 8,332 1,606 88,130 98,543
Disposals & - (67) (32) (20) - (119)
Depreciation nE (2,548) (711) (8,024) (2,785) - (14,068)
Exchange differences BEH =58 (194) (28) (354) (61) (142) (779)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 78,448 1,449 21,016 4,835 95,195 200,943
At 31 March 2014 RZE-—NF
‘ZR=+-H
Cost XA 98,086 14,245 122,782 29,273 95,195 359,581
Accumulated depreciation ~ RFEHE (19,638)  (12,796) (101,766) (24,438) - (158,638)
Net book amount REFE 78,448 1,449 21,016 4,835 95195 200,943
Depreciation of HK$8,024,000 (2013: HK$9,079,000) ¥ €8,024,0008 Tt (=& — =4 :

9,079,000/ 7C) ERHE R AN -
6,044,000/ 7t ( — T — =4 : 5,838,000
BT AR —REITRERERAHE-
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B RS R R M A
6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 ME BB ERZE®)
(Continued)
The Group’s interests in land and buildings held in AEBREBFEZLHREF 2 ESD
Hong Kong are analysed as follows: T :
Group
AEHE
2014 2013
—F-mE 2=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Leases between 10-50 years L FE N F10=504F 44,259 45,590
The remaining amounts represent properties held in the BRTIRIBRERPEFE2WE-
PRC.
As at 31 March 2014, certain bank borrowings are R-ZE—NFE=ZA=+—8 HTETE
secured by land and buildings with a carrying amount B ABREE 544,259,000 7T (— T —=
of HK$44,259,000 (2013: HK$45,590,000) (Note 21). F : 45,590,000/ 7T ) 2 i RIEFIEH T
(Bt5E21) ©
7 LAND USE RIGHTS 7 Ti{ERE
The Group’s interests in land use rights represented AEBRIHERECESRKEEHE
prepaid operating lease payments and their movements AR BEEE REREFE 2 ST
and net book value are analysed as follows: T
Group
AEHE
2014 2013
—F—-mE —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
Beginning of the year NG 60,798 4,159
Addition NE - 57,592
Amortisation X (1,258) (988)
Exchange differences =R (567) 35
End of the year GRS 58,973 60,798
Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBIRINFE :
Leases of between 10 to 50 years HAFEN F10=504F 58,973 60,798
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7 LAND USE RIGHTS (continued)

Note: On 19 December 2012, the Group entered into a

sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the
purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase, and the
Group conditionally agreed to sell, 100% equity interests
in Universal Gain Limited (“UGL") at cash consideration
of RMB138,000,000. UGL is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group which has interests in a piece of land and
certain buildings in the PRC. In addition, the purchaser
conditionally agree to grant the Group the right to
repurchase certain of the re-developed properties in future
upon the completion of the re-development. The disposal
is not yet completed as at 31 March 2014 and is expected
to be completed in the coming year. In this connection,
the Group had received a deposit from the purchaser of

Notes to the Financial Statements

FIRERAR IR

7 TiERE@)

f: RZB——&FE+ A +NB NEFTL
—mEEHZ Bt EFEBRHERERE
EMAKEE A KR = 5 & R Universal
Gain Limited ([UGL J) Z100%% # ' IR &
KRB A A R#138,000,0007t ° UGLJs Ax &£
Erz2EWBAR MERFEZ Bt
METEFHARRS I BEHEHB KN
FlE AR TR ERERAIASE RSB
ElETEEMEZEN HEEFER T
—E=A=+—HBHER5xK  LEEER
REFTRK - R=T—WMFE=F=+—
B AEEE 8 EHREIES 17,595,000
7t (P 5E20) (—ZF—=4:17,595,0007%
JL)  EERFAEUE 5 B8R 3% & E e Uk BR

HK$17,595,000 (note 20) as at 31 March 2014 (2013: e
HK$17,595,000) which was included in trade and other
payables.
8 INTANGIBLE ASSET 8 EIEEE
Intangible asset represents a customer relationship. BREEREEFBR - NFRAZEHN
Movement during the year is as follows: T
Group
AEHE
2014 2013
—FT—mE —T—=
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHT FET
Beginning of the year REF] 21,046 =
Recognised upon acquisition of RN —HEE B
remaining equity interest 2 B8N IR A B 1 BB
in a joint venture (Note 40) (FF7E40) - 25,770
Amortisation (Note 29) 2 5H (Fi5E29) (5,154) (4,724)
End of the year PGS 15,892 21,046

B §55,154,0008 . (=& — =& :
4,724,000/ 7T ) That AGRA SR A — A&
RITHEERERET -

Amortisation of HK$5,154,000 (2013: HK$4,724,000)
is included in general and administrative expenses in
the consolidated income statement.
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B FS SRR P 5
9 GOODWILL e
2014 2013
—E—ME —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi#ET FiT
Beginning of the year REF]) 3,949 1,059
Addition INE - 2,890
End of the year REL 3,949 3,949
IMPAIRMENT TEST FOR GOODWILL SRR

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating
units (“CGU") within the electronic product segment.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period
which incorporate the following key assumptions.

BENOIEREAEBENREFERDEANLZ
REeELEM ([REELBM]) -

ReEL BB HiREMREE
AEEREE ARAEDNREKEERELR
ZRERLFHRMBREEL 22BN
ERRET EBETNIEIERK-

2014 2013
—F-—mE —T—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET

Gross margin E =
Revenue growth rate 2518 R &
Discount rate B IH =

13.6% - 21.8% 13.0% - 18.0%
3.0% - 12.0% 3.0% - 5.0%
12.0% 12.0%

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2013/14



10

GOODWILL (continued)

The assumptions have been used for the analysis of
each CGU within the operating segment.

Management determined budgeted gross margin
and revenue growth rate based on past performance
and their expectations for market development. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant segments.

Based on the discounted cash flow forecast prepared
by management, the directors are of the view that there
is no impairment of goodwill as at 31 March 2014 and
2013.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES

(A) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

10
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GEXE D)

BERABKREAEIMEEIBBE NSRS
EEE-

EEERBEEERRNEMISHR 2 TEH
BEEMEREERKSEERR - FIRAZ
REERRSTHAIA X - Al RRBE D B2 15
E R -

REEEEEL CHRARLHERA
EERABBN T MER-T-=%
=A=+— Bt

B2 R 2R E R BB
N RFIA

(A) RIMBRFIZIRE

Company
VNN
2014 2013
—E—MmE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHT FET
Investments, at costs & RKANE 66,303 66,139

The Directors are of the opinion that the
underlying value of investments in subsidiaries is
not less than their carrying values as at 31 March
2014 and 2013.

BERA RNBRARZIEEZIEH
BEITNPRER =T —NHFR=
E—=F=A=+—HZE@EE-

EEEREEAR AR | 2013/14FH
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B 5 R Y A

10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(B)

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2013/14

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

10 KB~ R 2R E R BT B

NEIFRIE (&)

1]

(B) FEUHIE R RIFIE

The balances due from subsidiaries are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand. The carrying values of the amounts due

T LT B R RIR 2 A BR TS A
2R NARERER - REMB AT
RIAZ BREERENFERE -

from subsidiaries approximate their fair values.

DETAILS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS AT
31 MARCH 2014 ARE AS FOLLOWS:

Place of incorporation/

(C) RRBIR_ZE—MF=H
=T —HZEI2WBAFFE

Name

1

establishment and
kind of legal entity

R B R

AERERER

Suga International
Limited (ix)

Suga Electronics
(Hong Kong) Limited

British Virgin Islands,

limited liability company

RRERLEE ARAF

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B ARRA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

B ARRA

LU
Principal
activities
Issued share and place of
capital/paid-up capital Group equity interest operation
TEXHR
B&T/BABRE AEBEERAER RS
2014 2013
“E-mE —T—=%
Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding in
US$700 Hong Kong
ERR700%E T REBRSREER
Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of electronic
HK$2 products in
Hong Kong
LmR2ET REBEBEETEMR
Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of electronic
HK$2 products in
Hong Kong
LTmkosT RERBEETEM
Non-voting 100% 100%
deferred shares
HK$4,000,000 (i)
ERFEEERD
4,000,000/ 7(1)



10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(C) DETAILS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS

Notes to the Financial Statements

A TS R BT

10 RMIB AT ZHE REYWH B
NEIFRIE (&)

(C) RRABR—_ZE—ME=A
=+ HZEENBRAFB

AT 31 MARCH 2014 ARE AS FOLLOWS: R ()
(Continued)
Principal
Place of incorporation/ activities
establishment and Issued share and place of
Name kind of legal entity capital/paid-up capital Group equity interest operation
AEMBIL B R IEEBR
AT ERERER BBT/BARE AEEEGERDER RS
2014 2013
ZE-mE —T-=F
Suga Electronics Mainland China, limited HK$33,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. liability company electronic products
(i), (xi) in Mainland China
FEEF ORI HREIKREE - BERAA 33,500,000/ 7 RABAERES T
BRBAF (i)~ (xi) Em
Suga Networks Hong Kong  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of electronic
Limited liability company HK$100,000 products in
Hong Kong
EERBBEBRAE BB BRAA L i%100,000/% 7T REBEBEEFEM
Suga Technology Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of electronic
liability company HK$2 products in
Hong Kong
BERMERAR &R ARRA LER2ET REBEEETEM
Suga Networks Equipment  Mainland China, limited HK$17,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. liability company electronic products
(“SNESL") (iii), (xi) in Mainland China
EEMEEN ORI) R AR BRAR 17,500,000/ 7 RABEAERES T
BRAR ([EE8H% 2 m
1) (i)~ (xi)
On Million Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Property holding in
liability company HK$2 Hong Kong
shi AR A A & ARAA Limk2E T REBRAME
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B 5 R Y A

10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

10 R B AR Z ] E K EWH B
NEVFRIE (2)

(C) DETAILS OF THE PRINCIPAL (C) RRRINZ_ZE—HF=H
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS =t+—BIZEEMBAFIE
AT 31 MARCH 2014 ARE AS FOLLOWS: R ()

(Continued)
Principal
Place of incorporation/ activities
establishment and Issued share and place of
Name kind of legal entity capital/paid-up capital Group equity interest operation
AL R LB R IZEBR
&% ERERER BB/ BARE AEEEGRAESZ  EXHBE
2014 2013
“E-mE =%

Typhoon International British Virgin Islands, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Property holding in
Limited limited liability company ~ US$1 Mainland China
AEHBRERAA EBEAHS ARAR TARIET RABAERENE

Suga Macao Commercial ~ Macao, limited liability Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of pet
Offshore Limited company MOP100,000 products in Macao
(formerly known as
P&S Macao Commercial
Offshare Limited)

FEERMBFEERE  BF BRAA L fk100,0002 T RRMEBEYEM
BRRA (R AHEE
RPBEER X RS
BRAR)

Pets & Supplies (Shenzhen) Mainland China, limited HK$10,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Co., Ltd. ("PSSL") liability company pet products in
(iv), (xi) Mainland China

BEEX ORI REIARE  BRAA 10,000,000/ ¢ RAEAEEEEY
BRAA ([HERI]) Em
(iv) ~ (xi)

Suga Digital Technology Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Design and trading of
Limited liability company HK$2 electronic products

in Hong Kong

FEHBREERAR B BRAA EmR2E T REBRIREE

BFEm
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10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

A TS R BT

10 RMIB AT ZHE REYWH B
NEIFRIE (&)

(C) DETAILS OF THE PRINCIPAL (C) RRRIRNZ_ZE—HF=H
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS ST+ —HZEEMBRRFIE
AT 31 MARCH 2014 ARE AS FOLLOWS: R ()

(Continued)
Principal
Place of incorporation/ activities
establishment and Issued share and place of
Name kind of legal entity capital/paid-up capital Group equity interest operation
AEMBIL B R IEEBR
AT ERERER BBT/BARE AEEEGERDER RS
2014 2013
ZE-mE —T-=F
Precise Computer Tooling  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of moulds
Co., Ltd. liability company HK$500,000 and plastic
products in
Hong Kong
BIEKGIEERAR &BH ARAH &L B A%500,0007 7T REBEBERAK
BREM
Nodic-Matsumoto Tooling ~ Mainland China, limited US$6,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
and Plastic Injection liability company moulds and
(Huizhou) Co., Ltd. plastic products in
(“Nodic") (v), (xi) Mainland China
BMA—IRAEL TS REIARE - BRAA 6,000,000% T R B AREEERA
(BM)ARRAT REBEM
(TBEA1) ()~ (xi)

Happypaws International ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 70% 70%  Pet food distribution
Limited liability company HK$10 in Asia counties
FOBBRBRARRA B8 BRAA LARI0ET REMBER D #HEY)

R
SGI Venture Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 52% 52%  Design and trading of
liability company HK$100 electronic products
in Hong Kong
EEURBABRAR B BRAA LAER1004E T REARXTREEE
TEm
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B 7 2= P 5
10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 10 R B AR ZHE&E R B HB
AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM NRIFRIR (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(C) DETAILS OF THE PRINCIPAL (C) RARIRZ-ZZE—NMF=AH
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS =S+ —HZEEWMBRRFIE
AT 31 MARCH 2014 ARE AS FOLLOWS: N (&)
(Continued)
Principal
Place of incorporation/ activities
establishment and Issued share and place of
Name kind of legal entity capital/paid-up capital Group equity interest operation
AL AL R IEEBR
AT EEREBER B&IT/BABRE AEBEEGREAER EE B
2014 2013
ZE-mE —T-=F
Long Join (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Design and trading of
Electronic Co., Limited liability company HK$2 electronic products
in Hong Kong
B (BB)ET BE BRAA LEk2ET REBHET K
AR AT BESTEM
Chummily Trading Mainland China, limited HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Trading of pet
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. liability company products in
(“CTL") (vi), (xi) Mainland China
Xé’%(mﬂl\)*ﬁ ARl REAE ARAR 1,000,007 7T NGNS
(I&Ex]) (v BEEENER
Suga Technology Mainland China, limited US$8,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
(Dongguan) Co., Ltd. liability company electronic products
(“STDG") (vii), (x ) in Mainland China
Rl REEFRA REIAKE  BRAA 8,000,000 1T NP B RBEEE
([T ]) (vi) ETEM
Suga Electronics Mainland China, limited US$2,000,000 100% N/A Manufacturing of
(Dongguan) Co. Ltd. liability company electronic products
(“SEDG") (viii), (x) in Mainland China
GEETF (RR)ERAR +EAE FRAR 2,000,000 1 TEA RRBEARE4E
(IEEEFERR]) EfEM

(viii) * (x)
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FIRERAR IR

10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 10 RMIB AT ZHE REYWH B

AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM NERIFRIE (&)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(C) DETAILS OF THE PRINCIPAL ) AR —_ZE—WFE=H
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS =t+t—HZZEWERAIFE
AT 31 MARCH 2014 ARE AS FOLLOWS: R (&)
(Continued)
Notes: P aE -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

The non-voting deferred shares of Suga Electronics
Limited are held by Essential Mix Enterprises Limited
and Broadway Business Limited, which are owned
by Dr. Ng Chi Ho and Mr. Ma Fung On, directors
and beneficial shareholders of the Company. These
non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights,
are not entitled to dividends, and are not entitled to
any distributions upon winding up unless a sum of
HK$10,000,000,000 per ordinary share has been
distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares.

Suga Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is a wholly
foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland
China with an approved period of operation of 30
years until June 2024.

SNESL is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in Mainland China with an approved
period of operation of 20 years until October 2022.

PSSL is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in Mainland China with an approved
period of operation of 20 years until April 2024.

Nodic is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in Mainland China with an approved
period of operation of 30 years until September
2020.

CTL is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established
in Mainland China with an approved period of
operation of 30 years until April 2041.

STDG is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in Mainland China with an approved
period of operation of 20 years until April 2027.

SEDG is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in Mainland China with an approved
period of operation of 20 years until December 2033.

The shares of Suga International Limited are held
directly by the Company. The shares of the other
subsidiaries are held indirectly.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue
at any time during the year ended 31 March 2014.

All subsidiaries established in Mainland China have a
financial accounting year end date on 31 December
in accordance with the local statutory requirements,
which is not coterminous with the Group. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group were
prepared based on the management accounts of
these subsidiaries for the twelve months ended 31
March 2014.

e

() EEEFERRAAZELZERITER
7 Fa Essential Mix Enterprises Limited
&Broadway Business Limited# &
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Notes to the Financial Statements

e e N
11 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 11 REtE N NRIZHER
(A) INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (A) REtE AR ZER
Group
AEHE
2014 2013
—E—MmE —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Share of net assets b EEFE 1,702 1,868
The assets and liabilities of the Group’s AEEZHELETMBERARZIEER
associates, which is unlisted, are as follows: BEWMT:
Particulars of Country of
Name issued shares held incorporation Interest held Assets Liabilities Revenue Loss
48 HEEBRRAEE ERRIER HEkE a2 8 #A E#
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Z§-m% ZT-=F C$-RE “3-=F -§-M§ “P-=& D3N ST-=F §-mE SI-0F
HKS000  HISO0 HKSO00  HKSOD  HKSO0D  HKSOD  HKSO00  HKSOO
$#% TR FER  Ter AR TEr  TER  Tin
CKICOM Technology Limited Ordinary shares HK$1 (2013: HK$1) Hong Kong, 19.21% 19.21% 2,169 3142 15,366 12,343 301 831 3,865 4423
(Note) (H3E) LARIAL (2325 187) limited liabity company
Bk ERAR
Although the Group has less than a 20% equity B A RN E B HRCKICOMA # B
interests in CKICOM, the Group has significant R20% AR BEARNKEEE
influence over CKICOM and is able to participate CKICOMBERFE N1 A kpe2
in the financial and operating policy decisions of CKICOM®) B 78 S 48 & BB R FE ©
CKICOM.
(B) AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE (B) FEMHE= R RIFIA
Amount due from an associate is unsecured and B YNGIE: Iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁg ¢
non-interest bearing. A specified percentage of NIk Eﬂg tl:i’]mﬂ?l
profit from the associate’s profits will be used TEEE MR EERRER-

for repayment of the outstanding loans from
shareholders.
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A 15 R BT

12 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 12 REREI S ZHMEEERGE
BY CATEGORY

Group
rEE
Assets at fair
Loans and value through Available-
receivables  profit or loss for-sale Total
EATE
BHE EDNE
& e R I8 ZEE AEHE &5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAL FHAT FAT TET
Assets BE
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE—ME
=A=+-—H
Available-for-sale financial asset AR ERKEE
(Note 13) (BFsE13) = - 7,547 7,547
Financial assets at fair value through & A F{E AER
profit or loss (Note 14) ZHBEE
(FfzE14) - 1,279 - 1,279
Bonds investments (Note 15) BHEE
(FIzE15) 7,711 - - 7,711
Trade and other receivables, FENE 5 R R E A
excluding prepayments (Note 17)  EWGRIA T8 1E
AR HIE
(FIzE17) 219,889 - - 219,889
Amount due from an associate et — B = A A
(Note 11) A (HMiEELL) 267 - - 267
Derivative financial instruments TELBMIA
(Note 18) (KTsE18) - 145 - 145
Cash and cash equivalents RekREeEEY
(Note 19) (KFE19) 169,404 - - 169,404
397,271 1,424 7,547 406,242
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B 5 R MY A

12 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 12 RERIESI N ZHBFEERER

BY CATEGORY (continuea) (&
Group
rE
Assets at fair
Loans and value through Available-
receivables  profit or loss for-sale Total
ZAFE
BHE AR E
e K18 ZEE AHHE &&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHET
Assets aE
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=%Z=H
Ear=[g
Available-for-sale financial asset At HE B S EE
(Note 13) (BzE13) - - 4,323 4,323
Financial assets at fair value BAFEZABR
through profit or loss (Note 14) ~ ZEfiS & &
(KIsE14) - 7,832 - 7,832
Bonds investments (Note 15) BEHIRE (ME15) 9,139 - - 9,139
Trade and other receivables, FEWE S8R kS E
excluding prepayments b EUWGRIE T
(Note 17) EIRMRE
(FHEEL7) 144,870 ~ - 144,870
Amount due from an associate BN —REEE A A
(Note 11) ZIA (fFEL1L) 267 - - 267
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4A &R T A
(Note 18) (BzE18) - 696 - 696
Cash and cash equivalents e kReEEY
(Note 19) (FtEE19) 243,625 ~ - 243,625
397,901 8,528 4,323 410,752
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FIRE AR

12 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 12 RERIE Y ZHBEEREAR

BY CATEGORY (continued) (&
Group
K&
Other
Liabilities at financial
fair value liabilities
through at amortised
profit or loss cost Total
R

BATE HBAIERZ
EN K H fth B4 75

Z8E =0 a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATT THT TATT
Liabilities =0
At 31 March 2014 NR-E—M4E
=H=-F=F
Trade and other payables ERE SRR R EM
(Note 20) & {5t 738 (BT FE20) - 217,488 217,488
Bank borrowings (Note 21) RITEE (M5E21) - 85,529 85,529
Derivative financial instruments $74 4 & T B (Fiz£18)
(Note 18) 2,398 - 2,398
2,398 303,017 305,415
Other financial
liabilities at
Group amortised cost
1% 15 6H X A 51 BR
i EE ZHBHMBEER
HK$'000
FAET
Liabilities =0
At 31 March 2013 R-_FE—=H£=A=+—H
Trade and other payables (Note 20) BB SRR R E bR 5RIE
(FF7E20) 164,317
Bank borrowings (Note 21) RITEE (M5E21) 102,459
266,776
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B 5 R Y A

12 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

12 BENE D ZMBEERAR

BY CATEGORY (continuea) (%)
Loans and
Company Receivables
v /N B REWRE
HK$'000
FHET
Assets EiE
At 31 March 2014 R-E—MNE=H=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 10) JE U B B A &) 738 (Bd3$10) 116,685
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 19) ReERRSEFEY (H7FE19) 475
117,160
At 31 March 2013 R-_FE—=H#£=HA=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 10) U B B A B F3E (BdEE10) 114,054
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 19) ReRRESFEY (H7E19) 7,903
121,957

Other financial

liabilities at
Company amortised cost
1% 48 55 A AN 51 BR
¥ /NS ZHthHH K
HK$'000
FHET
Liabilities afR
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE—ME=ZRA=+—H
Trade and other payables (Note 20) FERTE 5 RN R H A FE 1 5RI8
(Kt7E20) 3,082
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=%=H=+—H
Trade and other payables (Note 20) FERTE 5 RN R H AL FE T 5RI8
(HM$5E20) 2,391
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B F R M 5
13 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 13 At HEMBFEE
ASSET
Group
AEE

2014 2013

—T—mE —T—=%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

F&T FET

At 1 April A A—H 4,323 2,679

Fair value gain NFEER S 7,099 1,644

Redemption & o] (3,875) -

At 31 March R=A=+—8 7,547 4,323
As at 31 March 2014, the available-for-sale financial R-E—NEF=ZA=+—H8" q#
asset represented 3,288 (2013: 5,000) non-voting, PEMBEERIELTRAE S
redeemable, and participating shares in an unlisted 3,288/ (=& — =4 : 5,000% ) £&
equity fund. It is denominated in US dollars and the FOREABERZEKERD - BEE
fair value is determined based on the net asset value EUETIE  EAFENREES
of the fund calculated by the fund administrator with EBAZERES 2 HBIRERER
reference to the quoted prices in active markets of MiS REFECECEEFEM

14

underlying investments of the fund.

B

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 14 B AFEHENEZZHBEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Group
A EH
2014 2013
—E—MmF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Non-current JE R B
Investment in listed bonds REMEHZZE - 1,279
Current TEh
Investment in listed bonds REMEHRZKE 1,279 6,553
1,279 7,832
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B 5 R MY A

14 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

15

14 BRATERNEGZMBEEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continuea) (%)
2014 2013
—E—NFE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHET
At 1 April REA—H 7,832 14,755
Disposals HE (6,375) (7,762)
Loss on disposal HEEE (178) -
Exchange difference fE N ZEx - 153
Changes in fair value N EEZEF) - 636
At 31 March R=A=+—H 1,279 7,832

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss represented listed corporate
bonds.

Listed corporate bonds with amount of approximately
HK$1,279,000 (2013: HK$6,553,000) will mature
within 1 year. The coupon rate of the listed corporate
bond is 7.04% per annum (2013: 6% to 7.04%). These
bonds are denominated in Renminbi.

At 31 March 2014, the fair values of the listed corporate

bonds were determined based on quoted market
prices.

BONDS INVESTMENTS

RN-E—NEN T =F=A=1+—
B ZAFELABSZYEEER LT
NEfES -

& R4 51,279,000 (— T —=4F:
6,553,000/ 7T) F A RIEHFER —F

NEH- ETARBEENEARAEE
7.04% (ZB—=F :6%E7.04% ) - %2 E

BHRAARKETIE-

R-ZZE-—MF=A=+—H ' LHAAE
HFZNFEEERTSREETE -

15 BE5iRE

Group

AEHE
2014 2013
—EF—mE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET BT
At 1 April R A—H 9,139 14,274
Disposals & (1,428) (5,163)
Exchange difference 5 ERE - 28
At 31 March R=A=+—H 7,711 9,139
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FIRE AR

15 BEK/E (&)
EHEE 2 BB T -

15 BONDS INVESTMENTS (continued)

The terms of maturity of the bonds investments are
summarised as follows:

2014 2013

—E—MmF —E—=4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FET

Less than 1 year DR —F - 1,428
Between 1 and 2 years F—FEF - _
Between 2 and 5 years F_FEFE - _
Over 5 years AE E 7,711 7,711
7,711 9,139

BEFEREZEERRBFL55% (ZF
—=%:290%%5.55% ) °

BEFREZATEEIIE:

The coupon rate of the bonds investment is 5.55%
(2013: 2.90% to 5.55%) per annum.

The bonds investments are denominated in the

following currencies:

2014 2013

—E—ME —T—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&T
US dollars ETT 7,711 7,711
Renminbi AR - 1,428
7,711 9,139

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting

RBEBH FAEERRAEFRELZ

date is the carrying amount of bonds investments. FREE-
16 INVENTORIES 16 7&

Group

AEH
2014 2013
—F-mE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
Raw materials RA 108,149 101,944
Work-in-progress F X R 22,399 20,888
Finished goods X 24,763 17,353
155,311 140,185
Less: Provision for impairment B E RS (7,933) (7,933)
147,378 132,252
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B 5 R Y A

16 INVENTORIES (continued)

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and

16 & (&)
ERAMY R AMERAZ B EK

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 BWE ZERFEHE it EWEKIE
Group Company
rE P N/N|
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE =% ZE-NE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FAT T#T FAT
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR 5K 191,345 115,452 - ~
Less: Provision for impairment 38 - SR {E R (3,898) (3,823) - -
Trade receivables, net FEWE 5 B8R 50T 5 187,447 111,629 - =
Prepayments BRI IR 3,316 2,162 264 313
Rental and other deposits HekEMize 2,668 2,770 - =
Value added tax receivables FEUIE E R 4,960 8,593 - =
Others Hth 8,564 5,303 - =
206,955 130,457 264 313
Trade and other receivables FEWE 58k 5 &
H i fE W 50 IE
— current portion — B H 206,103 126,582 264 313
— non-current portion —EmEE M 852 3,875 - -
206,955 130,457 264 313
Loan receivable (Note ) E&me%kz=
(PfH3Ea) 16,250 16,575 - -
Total trade and other receivables fEWE 5 B3 &
H i W F08
HxE 223,205 147,032 264 313

included in cost of sales amounted to HK$930,573,000

(2013: HK$822,686,000).

X /930,573,000 T (= &F — =
822 686,000/ 7T ) ©
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B F R M 5
17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 B E 5 BR X & H fth FE YR = IR
(Continued) (&
The carrying values of the Group’s trade and other ARE B FEULE 5 R SR N B B W Rk IR 2 BR
receivables approximate their fair values. HEHEEAFERS -
The ageing of trade receivables is as follows: FEWE SRR REAT :
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E—ME —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T FHET
0 to 30 days TE=+H 177,663 103,234
31 to 60 days =t+—Z=,x1+H 8,431 6,334
61 to 90 days At+—Z=A+A 279 1,133
91 to 180 days A+—F—BN+H 120 53
Over 180 days el =PAG =0 = 4,852 4,698
191,345 115,452
Less: Provision for impairment OB ERE (3,898) (3,823)
Trade receivables, net U E 2R FUF R 187,447 111,629
All trade receivables are either repayable within one FrEEWE ZRFER —FNH AR ENK
year or on demand. BE-
The Group generally grants credit terms of 30 days to AEE-—RGETEXFPIOAZEES-

its customers.
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

As of 31 March 2014, trade receivables of
HK$9,784,000 (2013: HK$8,395,000) were past due
but not considered impaired. These relate to a number
of independent customers who have no recent history of
default. The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

17 BYRE 5 fk =X & H ft B K IE

(%)

MZZE—MF=R=+—0 " 9,784,000%
7T (ZF —=4%:8,395,000/% 7T ) 2 FE Ut
EHRREBMER R EEIE ZFE
W 5 Bk R B % 2 4T B SR R R 8% 2 08
VEFPAR MEFRUERRREINT

Group

AEE
2014 2013
—E—ME —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
31 to 60 days =+—Z/+H 8,431 6,334
61 to 90 days A+—ZEA+H 279 1,133
91 to 180 days A+—ZE—BAN+A 120 53
Over 180 days e =PAG =0 = 954 875
9,784 8,395

As of 31 March 2014, trade receivables of
HK$3,898,000 (2013: HK$3,823,000) were considered
impaired. The individual impaired receivables are
mainly related to customers which no longer have
business relationship with the Group. The amount of
provision was HK$3,898,000 as of 31 March 2014
(2013: HK$3,823,000). The impairment was firstly
assessed individually for significant or long ageing
balances, and the remaining balances were grouped
for collective assessment according to their ageing
and historical default rates as these customers were
of similar credit risk. The ageing of these impaired
receivables is as follows:

RZZE—MF=H=+—H" 3,898,000
BT (ZF —=4%:3,823,0008 7T) 2 f&
WE SRR BECRE- B ERER
WHBETE2RBEENEEAXBKHE
ZEFPHB - —ET-—NE=A=+—H
Z B 7R3,898,0008 T (ZE— =4
3,823,000 7T) - ERHBHE AR
MIES EIEBL G BREEEPZE
ERRALL RARRRIE AR SR EER
R BIER BTG - L TR RERKR
R ERERIAT

Group
AEHE
2014 2013
—E—MmE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHET
Over 180 days —BNATHRLE 3,898 3,823

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2013/14



17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Movements of the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

FIRE AR

17 B E 5 BR 7R H fth B U X IR

(&
EUEZRIFAEREZSHNOT

Group
AEHE
2014 2013
—F—-NmE —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At 1 April REA—H 3,823 3,931
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment BERE S (#E) 75 (128)
Exchange differences ME W ERE - 20
At 31 March R=A=+—H 3,898 3,823

The credit quality of the trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired in the amount of
HK$177,663,000 (2013: HK$103,234,000) could be
assessed by reference to their payment history and
current financial position. These receivables relate to
a whole range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default. Management believes that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balance are expected
to be fully recoverable.

As at 31 March 2014, the trade receivables from five
customers accounted for approximately 55% (2013:
57%) of the total trade receivables. The Group’s credit
risk management is disclosed in Note 3 to the financial
statements.

During the year, the Group recognised a provision
of HK$75,000 (2013: a reversal of HK$128,000) for
impairment of its trade receivables. This provision/
reversal has been included in the general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

R B HA =k Rk (B FE B 5 BR 51177,663,000
BT (ZF—=%:103,234,000/8 7T) Z
EEEE2EHBEERNRBEY B
SUETTRE - X E B GRIE B 2 Z I i Y
EBHACECZEFEB-EEEME A
WMEEERIEERNEH RZESEHTBS
A2 EE - BARZEERIELRE
B -

MR-_ZE—NE=A=+—H -KAEAE
FZRKWESIRRIGEKE SRR BEL
55% (ZE—=F:57%) - KEBEZZE
B B PR A B S SRR I s3I R o

FR-AEEGEWE SRR ERER R
%575,00058 70 ( — T — =4 : #£[0128,000
BT o WEHE BB B ARE KRR
AN—RERITHEBRERIET -
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 FWNE SR R E thEUFRIE
(Continued) (&

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are JEWE ZERRZRABZRATERSE:

denominated in the following currencies:

148

Group
AEHE
2014 2013
—E—MEF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET
Hong Kong dollars BT 4,238 3,361
US dollars EVH 179,103 108,573
Renminbi AR #& 8,004 3,518
191,345 115,452

The Group is not aware of any credit risk on deposits,
value added tax receivables and other receivables as
their counterparties are either banks or government
or corporation or individual with good credit ratings.
The majority of these financial assets are neither past
due nor impaired and there is no history of default.
The carrying amount of deposits, value added tax
receivables and other receivables are denominated in
the following currencies:

AEEWTPAEERE  BUOEEHLE
fEEHBBEREERR  RRRRXS
B BRITRBNLEERIFEEFR
ZRAHBEN - ZFHEEERNG DGR
B|HASORE - B EIERADER - E - B
AR N A EWGRIBE 2 BREEIRIA T E

%A :

Group

AEHE
2014 2013

—E—ME —T—=

HK$’000 HK$' 000
F&xT FET
Hong Kong dollars I 1,043 711
Renminbi AR #& 24,875 29,175
US dollars ETT 5,341 1,312
Euro BT 1,033 2,043
Others Hb 150 =
32,442 33,241
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Note:

(a)

The loan receivable represents a loan to a third party of
RMB13,000,000 (2013: RMB13,000,000) (equivalent
to HK$16,250,000 (2013: HK$16,575,000)). Such loan
bears interest at 6% per annum and is repayable on 15
November 2014. The loan is secured by the pledge of a
property located in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
and a 98.81% equity interest in a PRC incorporated
company, which is engaged in educational consultancy
Services.

In addition to this loan receivable, the Group has also
entered into an option agreement with the borrower which
gives the Group the right to acquire 25% equity interests
in certain British Virgin Islands (“BVI") incorporated
companies which are engaged in trading of self-developed
social network systems and the provision of related
services. These BVI incorporated companies are 100%
beneficially owned by the borrower.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at each reporting
date is the fair value of each class of receivables as
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral
as security, except for the loan receivable of approximately
HK$16,250,000 (2013: HK$16,575,000).

17 fE

Notes to the Financial Statements

FIRE AR

W 5 8RR H fth FE YR 5UIR

(%)

B &L :

(a)

BERERRAEBERETE=ZEMNERA
R #13,000,0007t (—ZE—=%: AR
13,000,0007T) (#8 % 516,250,000/ T

—E—=%:16,575,00087T) ) BB E
RIEFFEMFRAERNE  WER=T
—ME+—A+RBEE - EFAERAR
REARLME ([HE])NMER —RE
PEFEMKIZNRF (EEBAHEBERR
75 ) H998.81 % A% AN #E 25 1E B 3K 47 o

Bk 1Lt T8 B R M AR TR O - 7 R BB B S R A
IREARRTSLERRE 7 A% - B4R T AR BRI -

AREE TR RBREXRES ([HEBERE
5 1) FEMKRIL 2 AR Z225% Bk - Tz S~
AN EEE B 1TR L WA R MR
HARRRTS - ZEN R B R AR SR L
ZRAFHABERAREESES -

NEHmE AR zHESEERRA RS ERE
WORIE 2 NP (E » A B RS A (AR
mEHHR - M B R IR IR 916,250,000/
JL(ZZF—=% 16,575,000/ 7z ) FR Hh ©

18 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 18 T4 &M I A
INSTRUMENTS
Group
KEHE
2014 2013
—F-lmEF —F=F
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
aE =L BE =R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT FATT FAT
Forward foreign exchange contracts &= Zi9NE & 47 145 2,398 696 =

The

notional principal amounts of the forward

foreign exchange contracts at 31 March 2014 were
US$4,000,000 (2013: US$6,000,000). These foreign
exchange forward contracts are held for trading and
will expire in April 2014 and November 2015. The
maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 March
2014 was the fair value of the derivative assets in the
consolidated balance sheet.

EHINERHN —FE—NF=A=1+—H

2 %FEA £ H4,000,000F T (=F
==

6,000,000k 7T) ° % FEMIMNE S K

DEEBEBEYRR_FT—HNFHAR=

=
=<

FFEt—AEm - R-_F-—NF=H

=t RZEREERRARGAEER
BERZITEBERFE
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

19 HekhBeEEY

Group Company
AEHE b /N

2014 2013 2014 2013
“F-mE —E-=F CZE-NFE =—ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET FAT
Cash at bank and on hand SBITRFHERS 140,875 243,625 475 7,903
Short-term bank deposits RESRITER 28,529 = - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReMESEEDY 169,404 243,625 475 7,903

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the
following currencies:

RekReEFBMRATERIE:

Group Company
&R b /N

2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-mE —T-=F CZF-MNE "—T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET FTERT FHT
Hong Kong dollars BT 7,529 17,676 422 454
US dollars e 83,014 129,195 43 7,438
Renminbi AR 78,710 96,376 - -
Other currencies H & & 151 378 10 11
169,404 243,625 475 7,903

As at 31 March 2014, the effective interest rate on bank
deposits was 1.0% (2013: 0.9%) per annum. The bank
deposits of the Group have an average maturity of 46
days (2013: 85 days).

The conversion of bank balances and cash of the
Group denominated in Renminbi into foreign currencies
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the Mainland Chinese
Government.
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20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Notes to the Financial Statements

FIRE AR

20 BB ZRRA R H BT 7R

Group Company
FEHE b /N
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-ME —T-—=F ZF-MNE —T—=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FBT FET FHET
Trade payables BN E SRR 171,749 121,938 - =
Salaries and staff welfare payable [E{t ¥ & & & T1& 7| 9,584 9,759 - =
Accrued expenses FEETE H 4,390 4,073 3,082 2391
Deposit received (Note c) BlizS (KHizEe) 17,595 -
Others Hit 14,170 10,952 - -
Trade and other payables BHEZERK
— current portion H e FUA
— BNEAER 217,488 146,722 3,082 2,391
Other non-current payables H th JE BN HA fE 1+
(Note c) FI8 (f3Ec) - 17,595 - -
Total trade and other payables ENE SRR R EM
e R IE RS 217,488 164,317 3,082 2,391
(a) The ageing of the trade payables is as follows: (a) ENEZERRZERITOT:
Group
A&
2014 2013
—E—MmE 2=
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT THETT
0 to 30 days TEZ=+H 145,566 114,644
31 to 60 days =E4=ZE5TE 16,560 1,006
61 to 90 days AtT—Z=N+H 1,379 608
91 to 180 days Nn+—=—daN+H 1,568 559
Over 180 days —BNATHHUE 6,676 5,121
171,749 121,938

The fair values of the Group’s trade and other
payables approximate their carrying values.

REE N E 5 AR N E Al AR
RZAFEEEREERS -
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BTSSR M aE
20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 BHE S RM R E B KE
(Continued) (&
(@) (Continued) (@ (#&)
The carrying amounts of trade payables are ENEZERZEERERATEE
denominated in the following currencies: FI1E
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E—ME —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHET
Hong Kong dollars BT 21,533 15,507
US dollars X7 131,676 93,932
Renminbi AR #& 18,540 12,499
171,749 121,938
(b) The carrying amounts of other payables are (by HEMENRBEZEREBERATER
denominated in the following currencies: HI{E -
Group Company
-] V. /NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F Z—F-NE —ZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT FiET FAT
Hong Kong dollars BT 8,977 6,239 3,082 2,391
Renminbi AR 34,554 33,848 - =
US dollars xETT 2,202 2,282 - -
Other currencies Hi g 6 10 - =
45,739 42,379 3,082 2,391
(c) In connection with the disposal of 100% equity (c) FHEERUGLZ100%A% #E (KIzE7)
interests in UGL (Note 7), the Group had mE @ ASEEDWEIE$17,595,000
received deposits of HK$17,595,000 (2013: B (ZF — =% :17,595,000/%
HK$17,595,000). JT) °
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B TS SRR M o
21 BANK BORROWINGS 21 RiTEE
Group
AEHE
2014 2013
—F-mF —F—=F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET TAT
Non-current IE B
Long-term bank borrowings RHERITEE 85,529 102,459
Less: current portion of long-term bank & : KEFSRITIEE RE D
borrowings (37,798) (16,927)
47,731 85,532
Current  xk®
Current portion of long-term bank RERITEERES I D
borrowings 37,798 16,927
Total borrowings EEAE 85,529 102,459
The terms of borrowings are as follows: BER TS| EAMEIE
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E—MmE —T—=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Within one year —FR 37,798 16,927
In the second year F-F 35,331 37,794
Between 2 and 5 years F_EEZFERF 8,703 41,091
Over 5 years AFEMNE 3,697 6,647
85,529 102,459
At 31 March 2014, the Group has aggregate banking R-ZE-ME=A=+—H ALEH
facilities of approximately HK$587,513,000 (2013: FX ERREZREARITEER
HK$437,667,000) for overdrafts, loans and trade %H #)587,513,0008 T (=& — = F :
financing. 437,667,000 7T ) °
Unused facilities at the same date amounted [ B Z REHA B E £1474,439,000/8 T (—
to approximately HK$474,439,000 (2013: = — = :312,566,0007 7T) g & AT
HK$312,566,000). These facilities are secured by: 518 B {EHE R
(a) certain land and buildings (Note 6) of the Group (a) AEMEERME(E AB44,259,0005 7T (=
with the carrying amount of HK$44,259,000 T — =4 : 45,590,000 7T) 2 H T
(2013: HK$45,590,000). T REF (H5E6) o
(b) corporate guarantees provided by the Company (b) AXARREETHBAFGREZA
and certain of its subsidiaries. AR o
In addition to the above, the Group has agreed to Br L EIN REEREEFE TRITHE
comply with certain restrictive financial covenants Nz & T BRI B 75 5255 o

imposed by certain banks.
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21 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R Y A

21 RITEE2)

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate AEBEERH  NEEHRERREHNE
changes and the contractual repricing dates were as FEBRHANT :
follows:
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—FT—mE —T—=%F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
F#ET FHET
6 months or less NE A AT 18,895 3,042
7 to 12 months t=+ @A 18,903 13,885
1 to 5 years —ZE R AE 44,034 78,886
Over 5 years FFELAE 3,697 6,646
85,529 102,459
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date REER ZEBRFERNT
were as follows:
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—F-mE —ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHET
Bank borrowings RITEE 2.1% 2.2%
As all the bank borrowings were at floating interest AR2RITEERZEFE - EEERA
rates, the carrying amounts of the borrowings BEERAQNFERE mMEHERTIRET

S -

approximate their fair values and all balances are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and

Notes to the Financial Statements

FIRE AR IR

22 IEEFTEH

EXFBREEMBERABAIRERNTT
AE IR IAE ERHE N IR A E 2R
AREMGHER —MEEEGTHE BN

when the deferred income taxes relate to the same T -EESERT
fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:
Group
AEHE
2014 2013
—F-mE —F—=
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHT F&T
Deferred income tax assets: BIEFTEHEE
— Deferred income tax asset to be —@+ @A’ E
recovered after more than 12 months EIEFTIS T E E (2,811) (3,524)
Deferred income tax liabilities: BIEFEHEE:
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — Bt _AARERL
settled after more than 12 months BEFBHRAaE 4,649 5,759

The movement in the net deferred income tax liabilities/

(assets) account is as follows:

ERELEREHAaRE/ (BE)FR2E
BT

Group
AEE
2014 2013
—ET—mE —T—=
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHT FHET
At 1 April REA—H 2,235 (858)
Deferred income tax liability recognised st —REA& B %
from acquisition of remaining equity BT AREMER 2
interests in a joint venture (Note 40) RIEFTS I & & (FI5E40) - 4,252
Credited to consolidated income statement R4R& WS K5 A
(Note 31) (FF&E31) (415) (1,159)
Exchange differences M N ZERE 18 =
At 31 March R=A=+—8H 1,838 2,235
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22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 22

The movement in deferred income tax assets
and liabilities during the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same
tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

IEIEFTEH (2)

BLEMSHEERBBRFANZED (K
ST RARE BB EEEREE 2 A8R) A
e

Intangible assets Accelerated tax depreciation Total
BREE MEREHE &t
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
—3-mg -“T-=% ZEF-ME —T-=F "F-mf —T-=%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TER THIL TET THL
Deferred income tax liabilities EEmEHAR
At 1 April REA—H 3,472 - 2,260 2,832 5,732 2,832
Deferred income tax liability BhE-HAELEL
recognised from the acquisition of & T A& i AER
remaining equity interests BEMEHAR
in the a joint venture (Note 40) (i 540) - 4252 - - - 4952
Credited to consolidated MR MERTA
income Statement (850) (780) (260) (572) (1,110) (1,352)
At 31 March W=A=1+-8H 2,622 3,472 2,000 2,260 4,622 5,732
Decelerated tax depreciation Tax loss Total
RERERE MEEE &it
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
—5-mE —F-=-% ZE-mf —FT--§5 ZF-mOF —FT--%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT TER THT TiEx THT
Deferred income tax assets EEMGHEE
At 1 April REA—H (955) (184) (2,542) (3,506) (3,497) (3,690)
Charged/(credited) to consolidated W& A RERNR /
income statement (5FA) (922) (771) 1,617 964 695 193
Exchange differences fE 5 =5 18 - - - 18 =
At 31 March W=A=1+-H (1,859) (955) (925) (2,542) (2,784) (3,497)
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FIRE AR IR

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 22 IEEERBH &)
As at 31 March 2014, the Group has unrecognised R-ZE—WNE=ZA=+—8 mEEHE
tax losses of HK$3,467,000 (2013: HK$214,000) for mmE(MESBEEMDY) AEEARXR
Hong Kong profits tax purposes, which have no expiry, KRR TEE183,467,00008 T (ZE—=
and unrecognised tax losses of HK$5,985,000 (2013: F : 214,000/ 7T ) © BB K BE D E TS
HK$5,411,000) for the Mainland Chinese corporate MM E - RECHER T IEE 18 45,985,000%
income tax purposes which will expire during year T (ZZT—=%:5411,000/87T) * WER
2014 to year 2018. No deferred tax assets have been —EOFEFEE_T - \FFEEH-
recognised for these tax losses as the directors consider HREERREREZERAAIETENAR
that it is not probable that the temporary difference will A RED - W ERZE R IBEERERE
be reversed in the foreseeable future. ERIBEEE
At 31 March 2014, deferred income tax liabilities of R-ZZE—WME=ZA=Z+—H ELEWH
HK$2,110,000 (2013: HK$2,197,000) has not been THEE2,110,0008 T (=& — =4
recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes 2,197,000 T) WA E THBEBRAFZK
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings AN ERENG REMRIE - RRAA
of certain subsidiaries as the Company controls the RATIEFZENB R R 2 BB
dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it is not ZEMBABETAIEEN A R KD IR
probable that these subsidiaries would distribute B RZTE—NEF=RA=+—HZKE
earnings in the foreseeable future. Unremitted earnings B AR A £ 542,196,000 T (—FE—=
totalled HK$42,196,000 as at 31 March 2014 (2013: F 142,938,000 7T,) °
HK$42,938,000).
SHARE CAPITAL 23 B
Number of
shares Nominal value
B8 H HE
‘000 HK$'000
T A% FHT
Authorised — ordinary shares of EATE —BRMEEO. 1B ITZ
HK$0.1 each L 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid — ordinary shares of 31T Kk & & — R EE
HK$0.1 each At 31 March 2013 and 0.1/8 7T 2 Eimhx
at 31 March 2014 R-ZE—=F=A
=t—BRZZE—MF
=HA=+—H 272,294 27,229
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24 SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 6 August 2012. Pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant
share options to certain grantees (including directors
and employees) of the Group to subscribe for shares of
the Company. The maximum number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under this Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes adopted
by the Group shall not exceed 30 per cent of the share
capital of the Company in issue from time to time. The
subscription price will be determined by the directors,
and will not be less than the highest of the nominal
value of the shares, the closing price of the shares
quoted on the Stock Exchange on the trading day of
granting the options and the average of the closing
prices of the shares quoted on the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
granting the options.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
during the year are as follows:

24 BE#E

ARABRZF——F\NANBRABK
st al ([T ) - RIRBBEST
g ARBAIARNKESE TERA (B
EZREE)HRBRIEURB AR AR
0o IRIFFE AT B R AR BB 2 (]
H A BB AT 81 B M M RIT R Z P %
TTHESNBERAEE TR A RERIT 2 &AM
MER  TRBEAARNKDEITHRA
30%  REBEHHEZEET «EILIR
BOEE #HERBEREZXZEERRND
FEBSEZZ P TR W Th (B I B BB AR HE X B
HA R {32 5 B B dn A5 32 P BT R T 15 1
mE(ARRERE) -

FRRRTERBREHE 2ZBMT -

2014 2013
—E—MmE —T—=fF

Average Average

exercise exercise
price in HK$ Number of ~ price in HK$ Number of
per share options per share options

SR Y SRz T
BRiTEE  BRERE  BTOEE BREHE
'000 ‘000
T4 Fin
At 1 April REA—H 1.316 1,486 1.323 1,587
Granted during the year FREET 1.780 3,670 = =
Lapsed B 1.145 (132) 1.145 (55)
Lapsed B 1.750 (60) 1.750 (46)
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 4,964 1,486
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24 SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 24 FERZHE (&)
As at 31 March 2014, all the outstanding options were R-ZE—NE=ZA=+—8" ' FTA KT
fully vested and exercisable, except for the 2,670,000 S EREEBEEBLAITE R
options granted on 21 March 2014 and 326,000 T—WF=ZA=+— B & 22,670,000
options granted on 21 October 2011, which have NEREMARZZE——F A+ —ABK
vesting periods of 1 year and 3 years respectively, and 1 2326,000 7 g 2 BB E D R B1F
are only exercisable on 21 March 2015 and 21 October M3F DR ZE—RAF=A=-+—HK
2014 respectively. RZE—NF+AZ+—BHA{TE-
Share options outstanding at the end of the year have REBRRITEBRE 2D EA REITEE
the following expiry dates and exercise prices: mr:
Number of options Vested percentages
Exercise %Ha%%ﬁ Eﬁgﬁﬁtt
Expiry date price 2014 2013 2014 2013
EHA TEE —F-Wm&E —T—=-F ZE-NE —T—=F
'000 '000
T4 T3
Directors £z
20 March 2019 “T-NF=A=1+H 1.780 800 - 100% -
Employees EE
28 April 2015 “Z-RAFMNA-FNR 1.331 110 110 100% 100%
2 June 2015 “Z-R%~AZH 1.145 858 990 100% 79%
21 October 2016 “E-RETHAZT-H 1.750 326 386 81% 47%
30 Mar 2019 “T-NF=A=1H 1.780 2,670 - 3% -
Others Hitr
20 March 2019 “Z-h&E=A=-1H 1.780 200 - 100% -
4,964 1,486

The weighted average fair value of the options granted REZE-ZT—MNE=A=+—HItFEARKRH
during the year ended 31 March 2014 determined — ZBRERAB -EAPEECERNE T 2 NE
using the binomial option pricing model was  FHRAFELHNEBROITE T - ZEAZEE
approximately HK$0.367 per share. The significant B AZIEARE L BHZREL.780%8 L £X
inputs into the model were share price of HK$1.780  FT/R Z1T{E (B * K 1838.57% * B A% #E 2 A Hi &F
as at the grant date, exercise price as shown above, HA R F - TEHARR B E 8 K7.425% Kk F E &R e
volatility of 38.57%, expected life of options of  F|&1.469% - IZFBEARERIFRZIZERZ=
five years, expected dividend yield of 7.425% and  ZKIBIIBIEAA R ZRERBEREER LB
annual risk-free interest rate of 1.469%. The volatility A AF R BERETE -

measured at the standard derivation of expected share

price returns is based on the historical volatility of the

Company’s share price over a period of 5 years before

the date when the options were granted.
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25 RESERVES 25 f#fs
Group
AEE
Share-  Available-
based for-sale
Capital compen- financial
Share reserve sation asset  Exchange Retained
premium  (Note (a)) reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
A E
BARE URHZF BBEE
BivEE (MiEe) MeRE e  EiRE REEF CEl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THT TAT THT THT THT THT
At 1 April 2012 R-ZE——FWA—H 63,778 10,591 249 - 40,881 294,644 410,143
Exchange difference arising A E/EINH B A Al

on translation of BUCERLERE

foreign subsidiaries - - - - 2,527 - 2,527
Fair value gain on an available- At EHBEE 2 AT

for-sale financial asset B = = = 1,644 = = 1,644
Employee share option scheme: (& 8 B A2 :

Value of employee services ~ EERE 2 EE - - 164 - = = 164
Profit for the year FRRF - - - = = 77,841 77,841
Dividends paid BIRRE - - - - - (46,290) (46,290)
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=%=7

=1+—~H 63,778 10,591 413 1,644 43,408 326,195 446,029
Representing: HER:
Proposed dividend BRRE 19,061
Others Hit 307,134
326,195
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25 RESERVES (continued) 25 f#B#
Group
i3-S

Share-  Available-

based for-sale

Capital compen- financial

Share reserve sation asset  Exchange Retained
premium  (Note (a)) reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
HHE

BAfE URBXH HMBEE
RpEE (@) MeHE e EifE HREEH CEl
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL TERT Ti#En THEL T#x Ti#Ex THEL

At 1 April 2013 R-ZZE—=FWA—H 63,778 10,591 413 1,644 43,408 326,195 446,029
Exchange difference arising ~ #EBINHB A BIFFEL

on translation of foreign BHESR

subsidiaries - - - - (4,348) - (4,348)

Release of fair value gain upon REEIA{EHERKEE
redemption of available-for B3R A FEME

sale financial asset - - - (2,958) - - (2,958)
Fair value gain on an available- A/t EHBEEZ

for-sale financial asset NFERE - - - 7,099 - - 7,099
Employee share option scheme: (& 8 B =& :

Value of employee services ~ EERE 2 EE - - 521 - - - 521
Profit for the year FRRF - - - - - 81,487 81,487
Dividends paid BIERE - - - - - (35,398) (35,398)
At 31 March 2014 RZT—F

=B=+—H 63,778 10,591 934 5,785 39,060 372,284 492,432

Representing: HER:

Proposed dividend Bk S 21,852

Others Hit 350,432

372,284

Note: B & -

(@) The capital reserve of the Group includes the difference (a) AEEEAREERER-_ZZ=_FAAR
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued by BAEEEABBRMNIBARRQRATET
the Company and the aggregate amount of the share capital TBEREEEMEENE QR ZBRARK
and share premium of subsidiaries acquired through an MR EREER 2 Z8-

exchange of shares pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation
in September 2002.
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25 RESERVES (continued) 25 f#B 2
Company
ARHE
Share-
based
Contributed compen-
Share surplus sation Retained
premium (note (b)) reserve earnings Total
BABH  LROXA
BRiaEE (b)) e RERA CEl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT
At 1 April 2012 R-ZZE——FWmA—H 63,778 64,872 249 46,216 175,115
Employee share option scheme: EEERES:

Value of employee services EERKEZEE - = 164 = 164
Profit for the year FRRA - = = 29,918 29,918
Dividends paid BIRRE = - - (46,290) (46,290)
At 31 March 2013 RZZ—=%

=B=+—H 63,778 64,872 413 29,844 158,907
Representing: HER:
Proposed dividend RS 19,061
Others Hity 10,783
29,844
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25 RESERVES (continued) 25 f##E (#)
Company
ApH

Share-

based

Contributed compen-

Share surplus sation Retained
premium  (note (b)) reserve earnings Total

BARS MR
BRVERE (b)) HeRE RERR ait
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FEx FEx FEx FEx FEx

At 1 April 2013 RZE-—=FMA—H 63,778 64,872 413 29,844 158,907
Employee share option scheme: EEHERETE:

Value of employee services EERBZEE - - 521 - 521
Profit for the year FREMN - - - 29,616 29,616
Dividends paid EIRAR S - - - (35398) (35,398)
At 31 March 2014 R-Z—MF

=A=1t—H 63,778 64,872 934 24,062 153,646
Representing: HER:
Proposed dividend BRR S 21,852
Others HA 2,210
24,062
Note: B 5T
(b)  Contributed surplus represents the difference between the (b) BARRIBERIMATEITRG 2 EEH
nominal amount of shares issued and the book value of the FrU BB A rliER F EEREE 2 £5 -
underlying net assets of subsidiaries acquired in return.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the RIBEARE—NN\—FRRE  BARERA]
contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders, subject DR T IR - MBS AT IR AR - Bl s B
to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a A BB TR SR A% S Bk 5K+ ()
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus NA A E RAISARE L 9 k& S A EEE R
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its HEaE (NEEECNEHEERRES
liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of B HEBTRARRKRMD®E 2 EF - 8T
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its BIEREBEDIK-

liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium.
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26 REVENUE

The Group is principally engaged in the research and
development, manufacture and sales of electronic

26 %

AEETERNEETER BAREBE
an T 55 R B3 E R I E KT o F AR

products, moulds and plastic products. Revenues B2 W
recognised during the year are as follows:
2014 2013
—E—MmE —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi&ET FHET
Sales of goods BYEERE
— electronic products —BTEmM 1,216,395 1,075,368
— moulds and plastic products —EERBRBER 28,433 32,120
1,244,828 1,107,488
27 OTHER INCOME 27 Hibdg A
2014 2013
—E—ME —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FHET
Scrap sales RERLHE 411 692
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28 OTHER GAINS, NET 28 H sz JF 5
2014 2013
—T—mE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHT FHET
Fair value gain on financial assets BEAFELABE 2T
at fair value through profit or loss BEZ AN FERZE - 636
Loss on disposal on on financial assets HERAFEZRABZZ
at fair value through profit or loss VB EERE (178) -
Net foreign currency exchange gain PE 5 W a5 R 3,226 5,281
Fair value loss on derivative TEEMIAY
financial instruments N EEE (2,949) (157)
Net realised gain on derivative PTESMTAZERKE
financial instruments R 791 2,825
Realised gain on redemption of available- B AJf# HERE 2
for-sale financial asset BIE 2,958 -
Gain on remeasurement of EFER —HEEDLE
previously held equity interest LRIFA 2 Wiz W=
in a joint venture (Note 40) (FF3E40) - 8,908
Other Hb - 52
3,848 17,595
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expenses are analysed as follows:

B RS R R M A

29 EXPENSES BY NATURE 29 EHEBEI S ZHEAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution and FAEERRN DHEREEERNAR—K
selling expenses and general and administrative RITHERERZASZOTIET

2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
Cost of inventories FERKA 930,573 822,686
Depreciation of property, plant and Y RENREETE
equipment
— owned assets —BEBEE 14,068 14,917
Amortisation of land use rights o Hb {55 A e 4 5 1,258 988
Amortisation of intangible asset | EEBE 5,154 4,724
Gain on disposals of property, plantand ~ H & - BE M&REZ
equipment Wz (439) (16)
Operating lease rental of premises BFsEEH0ES 6,731 5,748
Employee benefit expense (including BIRMNAZ (BEES
directors’ emoluments) (Note 35) ) (BizE35) 141,087 133,578
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of ~ FEWE S ERFURERE,
trade receivables (#m@) 75 (128)
Auditor’s remuneration % H A B & 2,476 2,455
Other expenses H 57,443 59,017
Total cost of sales, distribution and HENAK  DIEREE
selling expenses and general and BERANE—KE
administrative expenses THERERRRE 1,158,426 1,043,969

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2013/14



30 FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE

31

Notes to the Financial Statements

A TS R BT

30 MBWARMERE

COSTS
2014 2013
—F-mE —E—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET F&ET
Interest income from: RE THE T 2 FBEMA :
— bank deposits —RITER 2,339 1,681
— bonds investments —EHKE 9269 1,029
— others —HAfh 741 1,591
Finance income BE U A 4,049 4,301
Interest expense on: ATSZHIER 2F 8
— bank borrowings wholly repayable — AR AFRNBH
within five years BB ZIRITEE (2,371) (2,425)
Finance income — net REW A —F5E 1,678 1,876

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(A)

BERMUDA AND BRITISH VIRGIN
ISLANDS INCOME TAX

The Company is exempted from taxation in
Bermuda until 2016. The Company’s subsidiaries
in the British Virgin Islands are incorporated under
the International Business Acts of the British
Virgin Islands and, accordingly, are exempted
from the British Virgin Islands income taxes.

HONG KONG PROFITS TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits for the year.

(A)

(B)

31 RIBEHRAX

BREREBRZESIEH

ARARBE_ZT-R"FHRLYER
ERE - ARANRBRLES M
BRANRERBREZFSEEKD
FOXRFEMAL - FH bt R BB R B
SEH-

BEFER
BEBEHABELES% (ZF—=
F:16.5% ) B AF E G5t R G
R
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31 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

31 FIEHRAX 2

(C) MAINLAND CHINESE CORPORATE (C) FEBEFEM
INCOME TAX
Suga Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“SESL"), FEEEF(RINBRRA([EEF
Suga Networks Equipment (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. BF]) FEABHEM ORI ER
(“SNESL"), Pets & Supplies (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd AE ([fEEMEEEM]) REEX
(“PSSL"), Nodic-Matsumoto Tooling and Plastic CRIDBRAR ([AEEZE]) I
Injection (Huizhou) Co., Ltd. (“Nodic”), Chummily N—MABREFE (BM)BRAA
Trading (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“CTL"), Suga (A1) FEXEBEZERAR ([E
Electronics (Dongguan) Co., Ltd (“SEDG”) and X|) EEEF(RE)BRAA
Suga Technology (Dongguan) Co., Ltd (“STDG") ([EEEFRZE]) RRZH EESE
are subsidiaries established in Mainland China. BRAR ([REEE]) IR K
All the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are BER S 2B AR AREERFEK
subject to corporate income tax at 25% effective ECFEMBATE =S NE—
from 1 January 2008. H—BRBER25% 2 RGN FEFT
1§75t -
(D) MACAO TAXATION (D) RFITIAE
Suga Macao Commercial Offshore Limited FEERMBEEERKERAR (B
(formerly known as “P&S Macao Commercial BRmERMEEEERBERA
Offshore Limited”) is a subsidiary established 7)) BRRPFIKZ 2B AR - B8
in Macao and is exempted from Macao BPIFTIS TR -
Complementary Tax.
The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated BiRA SRR ZMERAOT
income statement represents:
2014 2013
—F—mE —T—=
HK$’000 HK$' 000
F#ET FHT
Current income tax: RS
— Hong Kong profits tax —BAENEM 9,929 7,272
— Income tax outside Hong Kong —BBBINTIERR 2,084 2,613
— Over-provision in prior years —BAFEBRBEEE (910) (3,362)
Deferred income tax (Note 22) RIEFRIS T (M53E22) (415) (1,159)
10,688 5,364
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B F R M R
31 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 31 fTEHAX )
The income tax on the Group’s profit before income REBE RS ADE N 2 TG EAES
tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise T EFE 2 ERmESBEBFITR 515
using the taxation rate in Hong Kong as follows: mr:
2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Profit before income tax B P13 3% A& A 91,597 82,817
Calculated at a taxation rate of #165% (ZE— =4
16.5% (2013: 16.5%) 16.5% ) M EFTH 15,113 13,665
Effect of different income tax rates on BERINTEEWARE
income arising outside Hong Kong TRIAMGHEzZE (588) (209)
Tax loss not recognised RIERTIAEE 1,510 1,069
Expenses not deductible for income Gy Tl 53
tax purpose 2411 2,200
Income not subject to income tax BEBMPTE R 2 WA (6,726) (7,974)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE (910) (3,362)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised BT ARERINIBEE
tax losses (122) (25)
Income tax expense Frisfi s i 10,688 5,364
There is no tax charge relating to components of other WMENIES HEAEMm K AIER G-
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32 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to
the extent of a profit of approximately HK$29,616,000
(2013: HK$29,918,000).

33 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(A) BASIC

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

32 AARAHEAEAEBGTZH

RREEA ARG E $ #29,616,000
BT (ZF—=%:29,918,000% T ) B 5
AR R o

33 BREF

(A) ER
SRR A BRI TS AR B R A S
{6552 FUBR DA% 9 BB 77 R AR 2 1
TR E -

2014 2013
—F-mE —F—=
Profit attributable to owners of ZN/NETE 2= DN )
the Company (HK$'000) sF (FET) 81,487 77,841
Weighted average number of BBITEERINETH
ordinary shares in issue ('000) i (F%) 272,294 272,294
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &FRREAZF (FEAL) 29.93 28.59

(B) DILUTED

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The
Company has one category of dilutive potential
ordinary shares which is the share options
granted to employees. For the share options, a
calculation is done to determine the number of
shares that could have been acquired at fair value
(determined as the average market price of the
Company’s shares) based on the monetary value
of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated
as above is compared with the number of shares
that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options.

SREERNTIRNREABE TS
BEBRDESRNBER T AERT
FEINE BARNHE F AR BM AT H - A
RAB—REBEEETE AR ARE
BREZEBRE - SLERENS A
BART E IR P A M I R 1T (E RE A
ZREE S EREERTE BT
BAFE (ARRRRD FAmER
BIBAZRMEE o LA Bt )5 A5
BZBRMHB S EBRRBRERET
B L HITHRMDEE L& -
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33 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 33 BlRAERN &)
(B) DILUTED (Continued) (B) #& (&)
2014 2013
—E—ME —F—=
Profit attributable to owners of KARHEB AEMNL
the Company (HK$'000) A (FAETT) 81,487 77,841
Weighted average number of ~ CE&FE@RmEFHS
ordinary shares in issue ('000) &g (F%) 272,294 272,294
Adjustments for share options (000) BEMHEFHEE (T17) 448 430
Weighted average number of SR &S RNz =@R 00
ordinary shares for diluted mEFHRE (TR)
earnings per share ('000) 272,742 272,724
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) & A% #4358 2 7 (/&1L ) 29.88 28.54
34 DIVIDENDS 34 I8
2014 2013
—F—-mE —F—=
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FHT FET
Interim dividend, paid, of HK6.0 cents BEIRFEHREGREBR
(2013: HK7.0 cents) per ordinary share 6.08I (=ZF—=4%:
7.07%40) 16,337 19,061
Final dividend, proposed, of HK8.0 cents  ##)k K B A% B & A% 5@ A%
(2013: HK7.0 cents) per ordinary share OB (=ZF—=%:
7.07%40) 21,852 19,061
38,189 38,122

At a meeting held on 25 June 2014, the directors
proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK8.0
cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2014.
Such dividends are to be approved by the shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting on 13 August 2014.
These proposed dividends are not reflected as a

dividend payable in the financial statements.
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35 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

35 EIRMAX (BREEME)

EMOLUMENTS)

2014 2013
—F-mE —F—=

HK$’000 HK$' 000
FExT FET
Wages and salaries TENRFG® 127,104 120,931
Bonus TE4T 1,267 2,516
Staff welfare 8 TER 6,359 5,931
Share-based compensation expenses A& 10 1~F 3% 3R B 38 2 521 164
Unutilised annual leave RERFER 213 35
Pension costs — defined contribution plans & k% B 728 — & 58 i F T 2 5,623 4,001
141,087 133,578

(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR A) EEME RS RERE A B ZHN

MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of every director for the year
ended 31 March 2014 is set out below:

BHE_ZT—NEF=RA=+—HIEF
EELZEFEZMEIWT

172

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme  Share-based Total
Fees benefits contributions compensation  emoluments
HER BHRER Bz 1 15 3%
g Hitvighl FHEIfR R & &5t
Executive director: HITEE:
Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman and R B S &+ (FER
Chief Executive Officer) TTE#E3) - 3,493 349 - 3,842
Mr. Ma Fung On BERKE - 1,621 81 - 1,702
Non-executive director: FHITESE:
Mr. Lee Kam Hung TRERE 180 - - - 180
Independent non-executive  BIUIFEHITES:
director:
Professor Wong Sook Leung, ®@E=#%
Joshua 240 - - - 240
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven ~ 2F 88554 180 - - - 180
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRAELE 180 - - - 180
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35 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 3 ETHENNAEAZ (BREEME)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ (%)
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)
(A) DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR A) EFTME RS REEABIHH
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (&)
The emoluments of every director for the year BHEe_Z—=F=A=1+—HIHF
ended 31 March 2013 is set out below: EE8REE2MEHIWT
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme  Share-based Total
Fees benefits  contributions compensation  emoluments
2k RIAEH AR
e HioEH ATEIER A M& At
Executive director: HWITES:
Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman and R B S &+ (FER
Chief Executive Officer) TR %) - 3,300 330 - 3,630
Mr. Ma Fung On BERELE = 1,452 73 = 1,525
Non-executive director: EHTES:
Mr. Lee Kam Hung TRERE 180 = = = 180
Independent non-executive B IFHITES:
director:
Professor Wong Sook Leung, Z@E =R
Joshua 240 - - - 240
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven ~ 2F 8554 180 = = = 180
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BALRLE 180 = = - 180
(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (B) A&E&EHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were RAFEE AEEBRA xS 5B A
the highest in the Group for the year included TEEMRB(ZE—=F - MAB)E
two (2013: two) directors whose emoluments =2 HFEZHMEER LSRR
are reflected in the analysis presented above. BR-FRAEMNEHK =R (ZT—=
The emoluments payable to the remaining three F=ZF)ALTZMERT:
(2013: three) individuals during the year are as
follows:
2014 2013
—F—mE —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Basic salaries, allowances and other EAR¥ 4 2B R EMEY
benefits in kind 2 7l 5,169 4,650
Contribution to retirement scheme R KETEI (3K 171 165
5,340 4,815
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35 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

35 BEIRMMAX (BEEEME)
(&
(B) AABRHMAL (&)
e T THE

Number of individuals

AE
2014 2013
—E—ME —E—=F
Emolument bands i <& &6 [E]

Nil — HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000/ 7T - =

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 0 &
1,500,000/% JT 2 2

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ &
2,500,000/ 7T - 1

HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ &
3,000,000/ 7T 1 -
3 3

No emoluments were paid to the directors or the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the year.
No directors or the five highest paid individuals
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year.

ARBRNFABBERNESRK A AR
SEMA LN - ERRSIE
BRSO EL N B AN SR I By 2 B B ok
BAEE-FA MBEEFIAEES
A T HESXFR B REE A -
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36 CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATIONS

Notes to the Financial Statements

FIRERAR IR

36 REXBELEZRE

Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash generated FREMELEEBMEARSEHEN
from operations as follows: ™~
2014 2013
—E—ME —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Profit for the year F A ) 80,909 77,453
Adjustments for: R
— Income tax expense — P13’ 2 10,688 5,364
— Finance income —BE WA (4,049) (4,301)
— Finance cost — & AN 2,371 2,425
— Depreciation of property, plant and —ME BERZREBITE
equipment 14,068 14917
— Amortisation of land use rights — - Hb {58 R R 5 1,258 988
— Amortisation of intangible asset — A EE Y 5,154 4,724
— Gain on disposals of property, plantand — &% HBE MR E
equipment 2 Wz (439) (16)
— Share based compensation expenses — B 11~ KR B 2 521 164
— Fair value loss on derivative financial —TESMIT A
instruments NEEEE 2,949 157
— Fair value gain on financial assets at -EBEATFETABRZ
fair value through profit or loss MEEEZ A FE
W %5 - (686)
— Loss on disposals of financial assets at —H &R AFELZA
fair value through profit or loss B WEEE
&5 18 178 -
— Realised gain on redemption of —EBRAIHHEEVBEE
available-for-sale financial assets Z BIR W (2,958) -
— Share of loss of an associate — o fh—RHEE AR EE 742 865
— Gain on remeasurement of previously —EHFERN—ME
held equity interest in EELELENFA
a joint venture Z IR 2 W - (8,908)
111,392 93,146
Changes in working capital: EELESEY:
— Inventories —-FE (15,126) 27,978
— Trade and other receivables — KB SER R
H b U FRIE (75,646) 56,912
— Amount due from a joint venture —ER—EEELENRIE - 30,083
— Trade and other payables BB SRR REM
i ANE 53,171 (86,729)
Cash generated from operations KEXBEEZR® 73,791 121,390
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36 CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATIONS (continued)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment comprise:

36 REEBFEXEZRE (&)

HEME BERREZH

BRERE:

2014 2013
—E—ME —_Eg—=

HK$’000 HK$' 000

FExT FET

Net book value (Note 6) BREFE (F13E6) 119 8

Gain on disposals of property, HEME BEK&

plant and equipment B W 439 16
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE MENEREZ

plant and equipment Fr155K8 558 24

37 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

As at 31 March 2014, the Company had provided Jr g
guarantees in respect of banking facilities of
its subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$587,513,000 (2013: HK$437,667,000).
The facilities utilised by the subsidiaries as at 31
March 2014 amounted to HK$113,074,000 (2013:

HK$125,101,000).

37 MBER

125,101,000/ 7T ) ©
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38 COMMITMENTS 38 KiE
(1) OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS () REEELEE
At 31 March 2014, the Group had future RZE—NNF=A=+—H8 ' A&£H
aggregate minimum lease payments in respect of REEMERBTIAIBELERLD
rented premises under non-cancellable operating RRER 2 ZEHRSERENT :
leases as follows:
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—F—mE —F—=
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET F&T
Not later than one year —F R 3,401 5,430
Later than one year and not later than —F & B R F A
five years 1,199 4,522
4,600 9,952
(1) CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (1) BEARELE
At 31 March 2014, the Group had the following R-ZZE—NNE=A=+—H 4~5E
capital commitments: B T E A AFE
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—T—mE —T—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Contracted but not provided for: EHENEE LR
— Property, plant and equipment — - BEREE 75,050 92,517
As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group has RZE—NEERZETE—=F=H
no significant commitments authorized but not =+—H AEEWEDFEEERET
contracted for. 2 BRAEYE-
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39 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
and its employees makes monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% to 10% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident
Fund legislation. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland
China, the Group contributes to state-sponsored
retirement plans for its employees in Mainland China.
The Group contributes approximately 7% to 12% of
the basic salaries of its employees, and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to retired
employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Macao,
the Group has arranged its Macao employees to
join the government provident fund scheme (the
“Macao Scheme”). The Group and its employees
makes monthly contributions of MOP30 and MOP15,
respectively, per month to each employee to the Macao
Scheme, and had no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond
the monthly contributions.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the aggregate
amount of the Group's contributions to the
aforementioned pension schemes were approximately
HK$5,623,000 (2013: HK$4,001,000).
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39 EERIAKEF

AEEEREBBEERIF2ERHIER
EestEl ([EEatEl]) - mEestalT)
ERHERGE HBUERABE RIE
mIETA S AREEERE D KRR
HERAERENE ARZ MR &8
REBWAZE%ZE10% ° — R
AEERBEELE - FIKEL

AREBR R B A FE R A FOE R 2 B TE -
REEPBEAEZ EERBIRE RN
SR AREIREBEEATENT%E
12% M5 BRFEREHRIN - L EER A
BARSHEBRRRBH 2 EMBEE-BIRE
BRARFEIBEMRNEE X NENZ R
BRI

BRRFIZRAERL REEELHE
BPIEB2MBUF AE S8 (DRPIF
gl -AEEIEREESANERERD
Bl FERPIET 8]t FR30RPI M R 15RFTH -
BEARSIN YTEERIMEARE SR
(NS R PA Y =g e

BE-_Z-—-NE=A=+—RHItEE-
AREER LM ERKRSFTEER 2 #R
HBE#) 55,623,000 L (ZT—=4F:
4,001,000/ 7T) °



40 ACQUISITION OF SUGA TECHNOLOGY

LIMITED

In May 2012, the Group entered into a business
combination to acquire the remaining 50% equity
interest in Suga Technology Limited, a then joint
venture, from the other shareholder of Suga
Technology Limited. The consideration was satisfied
by US$2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,500,000)
in cash. A contingent consideration, subject to a
maximum of US$500,000, was also agreed should
certain performance results achieved by Suga
Technology Limited during the 30-month period from
the acquisition date. Upon acquisition, Suga Technology
Limited became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group.

Based on a valuation performed by an independent
valuer, the fair value of the 50% equity interest in Suga
Technology Limited previously held by the Group on
acquisition date was assessed to be HK$8,908,000. A
gain on remeasurement of this previously held interest
of HK$8,908,000 was recognised in “other gains, net”
accordingly in the consolidated income statement
during the year ended 31 March 2013 (Note 28).

In accordance with HKFRS 3 (Revised), “Business
Combination”, the Group is required to recognise the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
that satisfy the recognition criteria at their fair value
at the acquisition date. Accordingly, the Group has
undertaken a purchase price allocation allocating the
purchase consideration to the identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired at the acquisition date. Significant
accounting estimates have been involved when
performing the allocation.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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40 B EERKERQ A

R-T——FER/ KEFEETEBS
B MERNEELEEERTTARAR
WE—MRRKEEERNTERATE
FRBOW% AR AN HE 75 © 7% (B LAZR £2,000,000
ZE 7t (A% 115,500,0005 7T ) 32 1+ o B4
MHE  WERUE BBt =1+ A 5
MR EERMERARENEFTRIRE
15 - B2 A A REH&R%500,000E T o 1
WHERIEE EERMER AR ALSE
EN2EHBAT -

BRI BB G ER AT TG E - AU
HES AT AEBAFEEREERTA
PR AR Z50%B AR A FENGH A
8,908,000/ 7T o & bt - FZ LRI FTIF B i
& 5T 8 #9 U 358,908,0005% 7T & KL FEEL
E_E-=F=A=+—BLEEZEA
SR A [HAabuias - F58 ] PprER (K
28) °

REBEEBW K REERNEIR (KEF])
[RBA] AREAZNKER SR
FERRTABRALENNAIHREE 8
BERIBRE R AEEDEETE
BESER BBERESKEWER B
BRNBEENBANBE - ETHERY
S EP N

A\
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40 ACQUISITION OF SUGA TECHNOLOGY
LIMITED (continuea)

The following table summarises the consideration
payable for the acquisition and the amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at

40 WEBEEHRHERARE (&)

TEREERUBEHRENHRE URE
YiE B A R BB A B EMAERE
A

the acquisition date.

HK$' 000

FHET

Cash consideration B RE 15,500

Fair value of previously held interest ERMFEERN R TE 8,908

Total consideration BB 24,408
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets AHRNBAEENAERRNRE

acquired and liabilities assumed, at fair value: R HATE:

— intangible asset — customer relationship —EREE-RF@ARK 25,770

— cash and cash equivalents —HekREeEEY 18,802

— trade and other receivables — U B Z) BR 5 K E th i YR I8 30,952

— trade and other payables —FET B 5 AR 3K N HAh JE < 5RIB (49,754)

— deferred tax liabilities —IREBIBEEE (4,252)

Total identifiable net assets AIRRFEELTE 21,518

Goodwill B 2,890

The following table shows the net cash acquired at the

acquisition date:

TEBE2EUBRHACBEANFRS:

HK$'000

FHT

Cash and cash equivalents acquired ERBANRERESEEYD 18,802
Cash consideration paid ENBEESRE (15,500)
Net cash acquired ERBARNFRS 3,302
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40 ACQUISITION OF SUGA TECHNOLOGY

LIMITED (continuea)

No contingent consideration was recognised as at
the acquisition date and as at 31 March 2014 as the
directors consider the specified performance results are
unlikely to be achieved.

Goodwill arising from acquisition of HK$2,890,000 is
attributable to the existence of an assembled workforce
and synergy expected to be achieved upon acquisition
of Suga Technology Limited through efficiency and cost
savings.

Acquisition-related costs of HK$136,000 have been
charged to general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
March 2013.

Revenue included in the consolidated income
statement since acquisition date contributed by Suga
Technology Limited was HK$152,758,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2013. This acquired business
contributed profit of HK$13,533,000 for the year ended
31 March 2013 from acquisition date.

Had the remaining 50% equity interest in Suga
Technology Limited been consolidated from 1 April
2012, the consolidated income statement would show
pro-forma revenue of HK$1,108,922,000 and pro-
forma profit of HK$78,887,000 for the year ended 31
March 2013.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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40 WEBEEHRHERARE (@)

HREERASTAAREEREARAR
fa e At ER B R RN T - F
A=t BEBREMKEGRE-

Uiy B8 = A 1Y 7 222,890,00058 7T 3k B IR AK
755 BB PX R A IR BB (S E R fiT B PR A BB
BHE BN R KA AR T BRI 7
[E) 2% FE

U B AR A A 2 136,000 TE RE E — &
—=F=A=1t—HILFENGAREE
N—RETREEBRT K-

REBE_ZT—=F=A=t—HILFE"
FAEREXRMEEEWERHEREER
15 PR 2~ 5] & B &) WA %152,758,0007%8
TT-RBE_ZT-—=F=-A=+—HLF
B FrUE 5578 B Wi B e B Bl
#113,533,000/% 7T ©

BREEERITAR R A& % T50%8 A
BHRE-_ZT——FNA—BEELHKA
AR AIREBE-_ZT—=F=ZR=+—
BILEFE SAKRSZRBTROEBES KA
/41,108,922 0005 Jt 1 & & & A &
78,887,000 7T ©
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41 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2014, 40.40% of the total issued
shares of the Company is owned by Superior View
Inc., a company incorporated in British Virgin Islands,
and 16.03% of the total issued shares of the Company
is owned by Billion Linkage Limited, a company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands. The ultimate
controlling parties of the Group are Dr. Ng Chi Ho, a
director of the Company, and Ms. Lee Wai Fun, wife of
Dr. Ng Chi Ho, respectively.

(A) TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES

In additional to amounts stated elsewhere, during
the year, the Group has the following related party
transactions:

41 FRAEALR 5

R-ZTE—ME=ZF=+—H ARQAE
BTN 4858 2 40.40% TV E R B R
BYEE AR 32 2 A AlSuperior View Inc.
B MAREBEEITRGD B 216.03% )
F7E R B R L A B A Z 2 & Billion
Linkage Limited ¥ 8 o N&E B RELITR AT
DRBARREERARBELRFESL
T(REZBLZET) -

(A) EBBEEALRS

BB SR RERERFR
BETIINEBEALRS :

2014 2013
—T—mE —ZT—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Sales of electronic products to m—ERB ARz E

a minority shareholder of BRRHEEFEM

a subsidiary 15,028 9,890
Sales of electronic products to mM—EeErEHE

a joint venture BT Em - 20,625
Management fee received from B—E4a B hEWE

a joint venture ZERE - 8

In the opinion of the Directors, the above
transactions were carried out in the normal course
of the Group’s business and conducted at terms
mutually agreed by the respective parties.

EERR CRRFRAEEEHE
B A S 5 E AR E 2 R
7o
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41 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41 BEAEANTX G (&)
(Continued)
(B) KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION (B) B2 EIEE M
The aggregate remuneration of key personnel FEEBEABZEFMEREED
management, including amounts paid to the NARREZERETERSHEEZ
Company’s directors and certain of the highest KIB (M EE35# R ) - HHA T
paid employees, as disclosed in Note 35, is as
follows:
2014 2013
—FT—mE —ZT—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi&RT FET
Salaries and other short-term FekEMEHESRET
employee benefits 10,983 10,967
Post-employment benefits B2 2R 634 630
11,617 11,597
(C) YEAR-END BALANCES WITH RELATED (C) HEBEANT ZFREHR
PARTIES
2014 2013
—F-mE —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ERT FHET
Amount due from an associate JE Y — Rl B & 8 &) 5K IB
(Note 1) (PfFED) 267 267
Amounts due to minority JENHIE AR 2 BT R
shareholders of B (FFFE2)
subsidiaries (Note 2) 2,835 2,235
Amounts due from minority NN Gl
shareholders of FIE (MtEE2)
subsidiaries (Note 2) 941 925
Note 1: The terms of balances with related parties are MisEl - EERIE AL &S T IEFNH
disclosed in Note 11. 11H 5 -
Note 2: The balances were unsecured, repayable on M2 S AEIEE IRBREERSD
demand and interest free, and are included B W RIEt A EMEMAZERE
in other payables and other receivables, b JiE Uy 2 T o
respectively.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—F—

A summary of the consolidated results and of the
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out below:

=ar)

WE=A=+—HILFE

AEEBEFRESBRFE 256
BEKBEHESHIIWT

For the year ended 31 March

BE-AZ+-HLEE

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—E-%F —T——F% —T—=F% —T-=F% —E-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FAEL FTAL TET FiET
Consolidated results GExE
Revenue Wiz 959,866 1,191,058 1,241,997 1,107,488 1,224,828
Operating profit R R 63,407 101,816 99,962 81,806 90,661
Profit before income tax BR FT75 A A 63,213 102,366 101,843 82,817 91,597
Income tax expense FrEfAY (6,708) (11,928) (8,757) (5,364) (10,688)
Profit attributable to the owners of A2 B %A A FE(L
the Company S Al 56,505 90,438 93,252 77,841 81,487
As at 31 March
R=A=+-—H
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—T-%F ZT——F —E—CF —E-=F —F-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET FTET FTET TET FERT
Consolidated assets and liabilities S&EER&E
Property, plant and equipment W% HERRE 105,892 113,367 116,678 117,366 200,943
Land use rights THfF e 4,267 4,225 4,159 60,798 58,973
Intangible asset B EE = = = 21,046 15,892
Goodwill eSS 1,059 1,059 1,059 3,949 3,949
Interests in an associate R—RBEAEZ
B - - 1,733 1,868 1,702
Amount due from an assaciate e —fE AT
FE] - - 267 267 267
Long-term loan receivables RBESEKZE = - 16,250 16,575 -
Available-for-sale financial asset ~ AIftHEBMKEE = 4,150 2,679 4323 7,547
Financial assets at fair value through#Z A FEG A B Z
profit or loss — long term BBEE-RH = 11,481 6,993 1,279 -
Bonds investments — long term ~ BHRE - K - 14,011 9,109 7,711 7,711
Deferred income tax assets BIEREHREE 2,301 1,838 3,665 3,524 2,811
Other non-current receivables HiIEm el z0R = = = 3,875 852
Current assets REEE 402,758 487,590 504,869 513,543 540,816
Current liabilities MEEE (156,927) (200,039) (204,985) (174,534) (270,554)
Net current assets REEEFE 245831 287 551 299,884 339,009 270,262
Total assets less current liabilities ZERERTHEE 359,350 437,732 462,476 581,590 570,909
Long term borrowings REEE (26,163) (33,499) (22,463) (85,532) (47,731)
Other non-current liabilities HwERBERE - - - (17,595) -
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMEHARE (2,579) (2,275) (2,807) (5,759) (4,649)
Total equity ERRE 330,608 401,958 437,206 472,704 518,529
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